Full Council

Thursday, 18th October, 2018 at 1.30 pm in the Council Chamber, County
Hall, Preston

Agenda

Index

-

Apologies and Announcements
2. Disclosure of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interests

3. Question Time (Pages 1 - 2)
Questions submitted under Standing Order B28.

A. Matters for Decision

4. Confirmation of the Minutes from the Meeting held on 19
July 2018 (Pages 3 - 10)

5. Report of the Employment Committee - Appointment of
Chief Executive and Director of Resources (Pages 11 -12)

6. Policy Position on the Future Provision of Halal Meat
(Pages 13 - 126)

7. Changes to Financial Regulations (Pages 127 - 132)

8. Report by the Local Government and Social Care
Ombudsman on the Blue Badge Service - 20 August 2018
(Pages 133 - 144)

9. Rural Services Network - Appointment of County Council
Representative (Pages 145 - 146)

Lancashire
County ‘6;?9:‘-‘3.
Council (3&';.::?)



10.

11.

Lancashire County Council Timetable of Meetings 2019/20
(Pages 147 - 150)

Urgent Business

An item of urgent business may only be considered under this
heading where, by reason of special circumstances to be
recorded in the Minutes, the Chairman is of the opinion that the
item should be considered at the meeting as a matter of
urgency. Wherever possible, the Chief Executive should be
given advance warning of any Member’s intention to raise a
matter under this heading.

Matters for Information

12.

13.

14.

15.

Report of the Cabinet (Part B) (Pages 151 - 162)
Report of an Urgent Key Decision (Pages 163 - 164)
Report of County Council Committees

To receive reports from:

(@) The Audit, Risk and Governance Committee (Pages
165 - 170)

(b) The Employment Committee (Pages 171 - 176)
() The Pension Fund Committee (Pages 177 - 188)

(d) The Overview and Scrutiny Committees (Pages 189 -
200)

(e) The Lancashire Health and Wellbeing Board (Pages
201 - 206)

Report of the Lancashire Combined Fire Authority (Pages
207 - 210)



C. Notices of Motion

16. To consider the Notices of Motion submitted under
Standing Order B36 (Pages 211 - 214)

Angie Ridgwell
Interim Chief Executive and
Director of Resources

County Hall
Preston

10 October 2018






Agenda ltem 3

Questions submitted under Standing Order B28

No.

To be asked by:

Question:

For answer by
(Cabinet
Member):

CC Barron

Will the Cabinet Member for Highways and
Transport please outline the remarkable
progress achieved by using modern
equipment and techniques on the
dilapidated state of the roads inherited by
the new administration in May 20177

CC Iddon

CC Fillis

Could the Cabinet Member for Highways
and Transport please inform me why the
current  Lancashire  County  Council
administration has failed to take into
account the policies, procedures,
community interest and democratically
elected councillor's local knowledge by
installing bollards outside 54c and 54b,
Roby Mill Road, Roby Mill without any form
of response to concerns raised by the local
councillor on behalf of local residents?

CC Iddon

CC Hennessy

Since 2013 when Public Health
responsibilities were transferred to local
authorities, how much grant has the County
Council received each year to deliver our
public health services?

CC Turner

CC Dowding

Can the Cabinet Member for Highways and
Transport please inform us what Lancashire
County Council is doing to reduce its use of
glyphosate given the increasing evidence of
harm caused to wildlife and human health?

CC Iddon

Page 1




Page 2



Minutes

Agenda ltem 4

At a meeting of the Full Council held at Council Chamber - County Hall, Preston,
on Thursday, 19th July, 2018

T Aldridge
A Ali

T Ashton

A Atkinson
M Barron

L Beavers

J Berry

P Britcliffe

| Brown

P Buckley
T Burns

J Burrows
Mrs S Charles
S Clarke

J Cooney

L Cox

C Crompton
M Dad

B Dawson
F De Molfetta
G Dowding
G Driver

J Eaton

C Edwards
K Ellard

D Foxcroft
J Fillis

Present:

County Councillors

A Gardiner
J Gibson

G Gooch

M Green
PV Greenall
P Hayhurst
N Hennessy
S Holgate

A Hosker

D Howarth
K Iddon

M Igbal

A Kay

H Khan

E Lewis

Ms S Malik
J Marsh

T Martin

J Mein

J Molineux
S C Morris
Y Motala

E Nash

D O'Toole
Mrs L Oades
G Oliver

M Parkinson

Page 3

County Councillor Anne Cheetham (Chairman)

J Parr

M Pattison
M Perks

E Pope

J Potter

J Purcell

J Rear

P Rigby

A Riggott

M Salter

A Schofield
J Shedwick
D T Smith
K Snape

D Stansfield
P Steen

M Tomlinson
C Towneley
S Turner

A Vincent

C Wakeford
D Whipp

G Wilkins

P Williamson
B Yates



1. Apologies and Announcements

Apologies for absence were presented on behalf of County Councillors Alf
Clempson, Lizzi Collinge, Andrew Snowden and Jeff Sumner.

Announcements

The Chairman informed Full Council of the recent changes to Standing Orders
which now meant that Question Time was an integral part of the Full Council
agenda.

The Chairman also informed Full Council that she had agreed a variation to the
running order for both Question Time and the Notices of Motion. Question 5 and
Notice of Motion 3 would be dealt with first.

2. Disclosure of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interests
Name of Councillor Agenda ltem Number Nature of Interest (non-
pecuniary unless stated)
George Wilkins Notice of Motion 1 — Property Owner with Fast
Obesity and Hot Food Food Facility (Pecuniary)
Takeaways
3. Question Time

County Councillors Paul Greenall, John Fillis, Julie Gibson, Nikki Hennessy and
Peter Steen asked their respective questions and the appropriate Cabinet
Members responded.

In respect of Question 5, the Chairman read out a statement of apology on behalf
of County Councillor Alan Hosker.

4. Confirmation of the Minutes from the Meeting held on 24 May 2018

Resolved: - That the minutes of the meeting of Full Council held on 24 May 2018
be confirmed and signed by the Chairman.

5. Report of the Cabinet (Part A)

County Councillor Geoff Driver moved a report setting out the recommendation of
the Cabinet to approve the revised Minimum Revenue Provision policy
statements for 2017/18 and 2018/19, utilising the annuity method to calculate the
Minimum Revenue Provision of both supported and self-financed capital
expenditure.

Resolved: - That the recommendation of the Cabinet to approve the revised

Minimum Revenue Provision policy statements for 2017/18 and 2018/19, utilising
the annuity method to calculate the Minimum Revenue Provision of both

Page 4




supported and self-financed capital expenditure as set out in the report, now
presented, be approved.

6. Appointment to Independent Remuneration Panel

County Councillor Albert Atkinson moved a report setting out details of a proposal
to re-appoint a member of the Independent Remuneration Panel.

Resolved: - That the re-appointment of Mr Dennis Mendoros OBE, DL, as a
member of the Independent Remuneration Panel for a further four years until 5
October 2022, be approved.

7. Urgent Business

There was no urgent business to be considered.

8. Report of the Cabinet (Part B)

County Councillor Geoff Driver moved the report of the Cabinet from its meeting
on 14 June 2018.

Resolved: - That the report of the Cabinet, now presented, be noted.
9. Report of an Urgent Key Decision

County Councillor Geoff Driver moved the report of an urgent Key Decision taken
since the last meeting of Full Council.

Resolved: - That the report of an urgent Key Decision taken since the last
meeting of Full Council, now presented, be noted.

10(a) The Pension Fund Committee

County Councillor Eddie Pope moved the report of the Pension Fund
Committee from its meeting on 8 June 2018.

Resolved: - That the report of the Pension Fund Committee, now presented,
be noted.

Page 5



10(b) The Overview and Scrutiny Committees

County Councillor David O'Toole moved the report of the Overview and
Scrutiny Committees from their meetings as follows:

- Children's Services Scrutiny Committee - 22 May 2018
- Education Scrutiny Committee - 25 June 2018

- External Scrutiny Committee - 4 June 2018

- Internal Scrutiny Committee - 18 May 2018

Resolved: - That the report of the Overview and Scrutiny Committees, now
presented, be noted.

11. Report of the Lancashire Combined Fire Authority

County Councillor Frank De Molfetta moved the report of the Lancashire
Combined Fire Authority from its meeting on 18 June 2018.

Resolved: - That the report of the Lancashire Combined Fire Authority, now
presented, be noted.

12. To consider the Notices of Motion submitted under Standing Order
B36

1. It was moved by County Councillor Frank De Molfetta and seconded
by County Councillor David O'Toole that:

Since 28 June 2018 Lancashire Fire & Rescue Service and its partners have
been dealing with a major wildfire incident at Winter Hill.

Many partners have been, and continue to be, involved in fantastic work in
extreme weather and difficult conditions to protect the safety of residents, animals
and wildlife. These include officers, firefighters, support staff, the County
Council's Fleet Maintenance Service, partners and volunteers who have worked
tirelessly to contain the fire thereby protecting the infrastructure on the top of the
hill and threats to life and property while maintaining operational fire cover across
Lancashire. The generosity and support of members of the public who have sent
messages of support and given generous donations of supplies and machinery is
also noted.

Lancashire County Council therefore asks the Interim Chief Executive and
Director of Resources to liaise with the Chief Fire Officer to ensure the Council's
gratitude is expressed to all Partners to thank them for their support.

On being put to the vote the motion was CARRIED and it was:

Page 6



Resolved: - That:

Since 28 June 2018 Lancashire Fire & Rescue Service and its partners have
been dealing with a major wildfire incident at Winter Hill.

Many partners have been, and continue to be, involved in fantastic work in
extreme weather and difficult conditions to protect the safety of residents, animals
and wildlife. These include officers, firefighters, support staff, the County
Council's Fleet Maintenance Service, partners and volunteers who have worked
tirelessly to contain the fire thereby protecting the infrastructure on the top of the
hill and threats to life and property while maintaining operational fire cover across
Lancashire. The generosity and support of members of the public who have sent
messages of support and given generous donations of supplies and machinery is
also noted.

Lancashire County Council therefore asks the Interim Chief Executive and
Director of Resources to liaise with the Chief Fire Officer to ensure the Council's
gratitude is expressed to all Partners to thank them for their support.

2. It was moved by County Councillor Charles Edwards and seconded
by County Councillor Stuart Morris that:

In Lancashire approximately 67% of the adult population are living with excess
weight. High levels of excess weight are also prevalent amongst the children of
Lancashire, with the highest prevalence figures being found in the most deprived
wards.

Obesity is a complex issue and requires a multifaceted approach. One element of
this approach is working together to limit the over proliferation of hot food
takeaways.

Between 2012 and 2016 every district in Lancashire saw increases in the
numbers of fast food outlets, and Lancashire as a whole has seen an increase of
20%. In Lancashire 48.7% of fast food outlets fall within wards that sit in the 20%
most deprived nationally.

Based on a review of evidence and implemented planning policies from other
areas the 'Hot Food Takeaways and Spatial Planning Public Health Advisory
Note' recommends that local planning authorities consider the development of
policies or supplementary planning documents that include:

- A 400m restriction zone for new hot food takeaways surrounding
secondary schools — limiting children's access to unhealthy food.

- Refusing applications for new hot food takeaways within wards where
more than 15% of year 6 pupils and 10% of reception pupils are classed
as obese.

- Prevent the clustering of too many hot food takeaways in deprived
neighbourhoods.

Page 7



Lancashire County Council therefore asks that the Leader of the County Council,
the Cabinet Member for Economic Development, Environment and Planning; the
Cabinet Member for Health and Wellbeing and the interim Chief Executive and
Director of Resources jointly write to the Chief Executives and Leaders of each of
the 12 Lancashire District Councils to support this request.

On being put to the vote the motion was CARRIED and it was:
Resolved: - That:

In Lancashire approximately 67% of the adult population are living with excess
weight. High levels of excess weight are also prevalent amongst the children of
Lancashire, with the highest prevalence figures being found in the most deprived
wards.

Obesity is a complex issue and requires a multifaceted approach. One element of
this approach is working together to limit the over proliferation of hot food
takeaways.

Between 2012 and 2016 every district in Lancashire saw increases in the
numbers of fast food outlets, and Lancashire as a whole has seen an increase of
20%. In Lancashire 48.7% of fast food outlets fall within wards that sit in the 20%
most deprived nationally.

Based on a review of evidence and implemented planning policies from other
areas the 'Hot Food Takeaways and Spatial Planning Public Health Advisory
Note' recommends that local planning authorities consider the development of
policies or supplementary planning documents that include:

- A 400m restriction zone for new hot food takeaways surrounding
secondary schools — limiting children's access to unhealthy food.

- Refusing applications for new hot food takeaways within wards where
more than 15% of year 6 pupils and 10% of reception pupils are classed
as obese.

- Prevent the clustering of too many hot food takeaways in deprived
neighbourhoods.

Lancashire County Council therefore asks that the Leader of the County Council;
the Cabinet Member for Economic Development, Environment and Planning; the
Cabinet Member for Health and Wellbeing and the interim Chief Executive and
Director of Resources jointly write to the Chief Executives and Leaders of each of
the 12 Lancashire District Councils to support this request.

Page 8



3. It was moved by County Councillor Gina Dowding and seconded by
County Councillor Paul Hayhurst:

Lancashire County Council notes:

That in May this year Ministers outlined a proposal in a Written Ministerial
Statement to redefine non-hydraulic fracturing shale gas exploration
applications as permitted development and to redefine large scale shale gas
production sites as Nationally Significant Infrastructure Projects, thus
removing any local authority control and community involvement in decision-
making.

That the Government consultation on these proposals is expected to begin
during the middle of July 2018.

That on 5 July 2018, a report by the cross-party Housing, Communities and
Local Government Committee warned the Government against its proposal to
bring fracking applications under the Nationally Significant Infrastructure
Projects regime, concluding that Mineral Planning Authorities, which

in Lancashire is the County Council, were best placed to understand the local
area and how fracking could best take place.

That the above report said the Nationally Significant Infrastructure Projects
regime was unlikely to speed up the application process for fracking.

Lancashire County Council is committed to the principles of localism and the
involvement of local communities in decisions that affect their environment, their
health and safety and their well-being.

Lancashire County Council believes:

That moving decisions about fracking, which have huge implications for local
communities, to a national level would contradict the principles of localism.
That ‘Permitted Development’ — the category of planning that the government
wants to move Shale gas exploration drilling into — which was designed for
developments with low environmental impacts, is an inappropriate category
for drilling with such wide-reaching implications for local communities and
climate change.

That bringing fracking applications under the Nationally Significant
Infrastructure Projects regime will be harmful to local communities.

That local authorities are best placed to continue to make decisions
throughout the planning process for shale gas exploration drilling, appraisal
and production.

Lancashire County Council resolves:

To respond to the forthcoming government consultation with the above views.
To share this response with Lancashire MPs and relevant government
ministers.

The following amendment was proposed by County Councillor Barrie Yates and
seconded by County Councillor Peter Steen:

Page 9



Lancashire County Council notes that in May this year Ministers outlined a
proposal in a Written Ministerial Statement to redefine non-hydraulic fracturing
shale gas exploration applications as permitted development and to redefine
large scale shale gas production sites as Nationally Significant Infrastructure
Projects, thus removing any local authority control and community involvement in
decision-making.

Lancashire County Council is committed to the principles of localism and the
involvement of local communities in decisions that affect their environment, their
health and safety and their well-being and resolves to respond to the
Government's forthcoming consultation that applications for fracking should be
determined by local planning authorities in accordance with planning law and
guidance, and also to share this response with Lancashire MPs and relevant
government ministers.

The amendment was accepted and became the substantive motion. The
substantive motion was then put to the vote and was CARRIED. It was therefore:

Resolved: - That:

Lancashire County Council notes that in May this year Ministers outlined a
proposal in a Written Ministerial Statement to redefine non-hydraulic fracturing
shale gas exploration applications as permitted development and to redefine
large scale shale gas production sites as Nationally Significant Infrastructure
Projects, thus removing any local authority control and community involvement in
decision-making.

Lancashire County Council is committed to the principles of localism and the
involvement of local communities in decisions that affect their environment, their
health and safety and their well-being and resolves to respond to the
Government's forthcoming consultation that applications for fracking should be
determined by local planning authorities in accordance with planning law and
guidance, and also to share this response with Lancashire MPs and relevant
government ministers.

Angie Ridgwell
Interim Chief Executive and
Director of Resources

County Hall
Preston

Page 10



Agenda ltem 5

Meeting of the Full Council
Meeting to be held on Thursday, 18 October 2018

Report submitted by: Head of Legal and Democratic Services

Electoral Division affected:
None;

Report of the Employment Committee - Appointment of Chief Executive and
Director of Resources

Contact for further information:
Ryan Hyde, Tel: (01772) 536212, Business Support Officer,
ryan.hyde@lancashire.gov.uk

Executive Summary

The Employment Committee has conducted interviews for the appointment to the
post of Chief Executive and Director of Resources.

The Chair of the Employment Committee will report on the decision of the
Employment Committee, from its meeting on 9 October 2018, at this meeting.

Recommendation
The Full Council is asked to consider the recommendations of the Employment

Committee from its meeting on 9 October 2018 in respect of the appointment of the
council's Chief Executive and Director of Resources.

Background and Advice

The Full Council has delegated to the Employment Committee the role of appointing
the Chief Executive (Head of the Paid Service) and other senior officers including
Executive Directors, the Monitoring Officer and the Chief Financial Officer (s. 151
Officer).

The terms of reference of the Employment Committee provide that, where the
Committee is appointing the Chief Executive, the Monitoring Officer or Chief
Financial Officer, the Full Council must approve the appointment or dismissal before
an offer of appointment is made. This is subject to the appointment being notified to
every member of the Cabinet and that either:

(a) Within the period specified in the notification no objection has been made by
the Leader on behalf of the Cabinet to the appointment; or

Lancashire
Sncadie
Council (Srg:?)?

Page 11



(b) The Committee making the decision is satisfied that any objection made is not
material or is not well founded; or

(c) The Leader has, within the period specified in the notification, notified the
Committee that neither he/she nor any member of the Cabinet has any
objections.

Interviews for the post of Chief Executive and Director of Resources were held on 9
October 2018. The recommendation of the Employment Committee and the outcome
of any consultations with members of the Cabinet will be reported orally to Full
Council at the meeting.

Consultations

N/A

Implications:

This item has the following implications, as indicated:

Risk management

N/A

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
List of Background Papers

Paper Date Contact/Tel
None
Reason for inclusion in Part Il, if appropriate

N/A

Page 12



Agenda ltem 6

Meeting of the Full Council
Meeting to be held on Thursday, 18 October 2018

Report submitted by: Learning and Skills - Start Well

Electoral Division affected:
(All Divisions);

Policy Position on the Future Provision of Halal Meat
(Appendices 'A' to 'C' refer)

Contact for further information:
democratic.services@lancashire.gov.uk

Executive Summary

The county council is considering its current policy for the supply of Halal meat to
schools. The council currently provides both stunned and un-stunned halal meat in a
small number of schools (27) across multiple districts, providing this service for the
provision of school meals where there is the demand for it from the Muslim
community and where the Headteacher and Governing Body request this for a
proportion of their children. The county council is considering the proposal that,
where halal meat is supplied, this must be stunned.

Recommendation

Full Council is asked to consider and review the findings in this report to aid formal
decision making on this issue. Particularly, Full Council is requested to:

(i) Note Appendix 'A' and associated annexes together with background papers
demonstrating the history of this policy area;

(i) Note the findings from the public consultation and the updated Equality Analysis
(Appendices 'B' and 'C' refer); and

(ii)Make a decision and, in coming to that decision, review and consider any
relevant mitigation and agree next steps.

Lancashire
Sncadie
Council (Srg:?)?

Page 13


mailto:democratic.services@lancashire.gov.uk

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
List of Background Papers

Paper Date Contact/Tel

Report to Cabinet - Review 14 September 2017 Josh Mynott/(01772)
of the County Council's 534580

policy relating to the supply

of Halal meat to schools

Full Council report - Review 26 October 2017 Josh Mynott/(01772)
of the County Council's 534580

Policy relating to the Supply

of Halal Meat to Schools

Reason for inclusion in Part Il, if appropriate

N/A

Page 14



Appendix A

Review of the County Council's policy relating to the supply of Halal meat to

schools

Background and Advice

In June 2017, with the current contract for the supply of Halal meat coming to an end
the council is reviewing its current policy on supplying Halal meat to schools with the
current contract coming to a clause. The Council's current policy is to provide both
stunned and un-stunned Halal meat and this report sets out the implications of
changing this policy to stunned meat only.

The provision of Halal meat within school meals is not without controversy. School
meal providers have to tread a fine line between satisfying the dietary expectations
of a significant section of the community whilst respecting both procurement law and
food standards legislation.’

Key considerations

No single defined standard for Halal exists in the UK.

A local authority may specify that animals must be stunned before slaughter
within the supply tender.

To favour one accreditation body over another would breach EU procurement
law.

What does Halal mean, how is it defined and by whom?

Halal - Arabic: ‘Permissible’ - Meat slaughtered and prepared in accordance with
Islamic/Sharia law.

Haraam - ‘prohibited by God, unwholesome, foul’.

The Qur'an makes reference to what is prohibited in terms of food and meat. From
the verses, Muslims interpret what is Halal and Haraam (leaving scope for differing
views).

Elements which are quite clearly established for Halal slaughter are:

Only a permitted and healthy animal/bird can be slaughtered.

Animal welfare is essential from farm to slaughter.

The animal must be alive at the point of slaughter.

Only a Muslim slaughter man using a sharp knife of adequate size can
slaughter.

The knife must be cleaned after each cut and sharpened out of sight.

No animal must be allowed to see another being slaughtered or the blood.
The windpipe, gullet, and preferably 2 carotid arteries and 2 jugular veins
must be cut in a single action. Slaughter man must audibly recite "Tsmiyya"
that is Bismillah Allahu Akbar ('in the name of Allah, Allah is greatest') at the
time of doing the Zibah (religious slaughter).

The Qur'an is also clear as to what is not permitted:

1 Association of Public Service Excellence — The Halal Dilemma Sept 2011

Page 15



e Meat from swine, carrion (dead/rotting carcass), carnivorous animals/birds,
and blood.

e Animals that have been sacrificed to other gods.

e Animals that have not been fed on a natural diet.

e Alcohol — in context of meat production — alcohol based cleaners and solvents
for hand wash or equipment cleaning.

e Meat by-products, such as meat based gelatine and lard, from animals which
have not been slaughtered in accordance with Islamic/Sharia law.

Pivotal issue: Stunning
e The Qur'an does not expressly forbid stunning (animals must be alive).

This manifests itself with differences of opinion within Muslim communities and
consequently there is no single authoritative body in the UK representing a single
agreed definition/standard for Halal. This has led to divided supply of options and
competing 'regulatory' regimes.

School Food Regulations 2014

The requirements for School Food Regulations 2014, are to ensure that food
provided to pupils in school is nutritious and of high quality; to promote good
nutritional health in all pupils; protect those who are nutritionally vulnerable and to
promote good eating behaviour.

School governing boards must provide school meals to a pupil free of charge if the
pupil and/or a parent meets eligibility criteria set out within the Education Act 1996
and a request is received for free meals to be provided either by the pupil or
someone acting on their behalf. The free school meal must comply with the
requirements for School Food Regulations 2014; also referred to as the school food
standards.

From September 2014 every child in reception, Year 1 and Year 2 in state-funded
schools, is entitled to a free school lunch which must also comply with the school
food standards.

The school governing board is also responsible for ensuring that the national school
food standards are met.

Governing boards are strongly encouraged to work with its senior leadership team to
develop a whole school food policy; setting out the school’s approach to its provision
of food, food education (including practical cooking), the role of the catering team as
part of the wider school team and the school’s strategy to increase the take-up of
school lunches. This is expanded on further in The School Food Plan (Alliance)
which places an onus on schools to adopt a whole school approach to school meals
and food education.

The School Food Regulations 2014 require meat or poultry to be served on at least
three days per week. Lancashire school meal menus are designed to comply with
this requirement, with meat and poultry dishes being predominantly served between
Monday and Thursday. Where a meat or poultry dish is included on a Friday, Roman

Page 16



Catholic schools may adapt their menus to restrict the consumption of meat due to
religious edict. However, the menu provision for the week must still include the
provision of meat or poultry for a minimum of three days per week to ensure that the
standards are met.

Prior to the School Food Regulations 2014, the government endorsed two sets of
standards for school lunches:
a) Food-based, which defined the types of food that children and young people
should be offered in a school lunch and their frequency; and
b) Nutrient-based which set out the proportion of nutrients that children and
young people should receive from a school lunch.

The introduction of the School Food Regulations 2014 combined the benefits of
these two standards, ensuring that the correct food choices and their constituent
nutrients were reflected in the new standard. Meat and poultry are an important food
group in respect of the 14 key nutrients, being a good source of protein, B vitamins
and minerals, including iron and zinc.

Protein is required to repair body cells and make new cells, repair and build tissue. It
is vital for building bones, muscle, cartilage, skin and blood. Zinc is needed for
growth and maintenance in the body. It is also vital for the immune system and
healing and is also used in the breakdown of carbohydrates.

Iron is required to make haemoglobin. Without haemoglobin the body cannot carry
oxygen from the lungs to the rest of the body, without enough haemoglobin we are
susceptible to anaemia. B vitamins are involved in many metabolic functions,
including energy metabolism. B12 is generally lacking in a meat free diet as it is
difficult to obtain from other sources, other than breakfast cereals which are fortified.

In 2012/13, the County Council conducted a limited year group survey which
identified that upwards of 67% of pupils in Burnley and Pendle secondary school,
arrive to school without having consumed breakfast; thus limiting the intake of
fortified vitamins and minerals from breakfast cereals.

Department for Education

Advice from the Department for Education states that schools should make
reasonable adjustments for pupils with particular requirements, for example to reflect
medical, dietary and cultural needs and that school food menus are designed for
the maijority of the school population.

An evaluation of the benefits of universal free school meals was funded by the
Department for Education (DfE) and the Department of Health (DH) between autumn
2009 and summer 2011. The pilot scheme and resultant evidence led to the then
coalition government introducing universal free school meals for all infants and key
stage 1 pupils from September 2014.

The universal pilot had a significant positive impact on attainment for primary school
pupils at Key Stages 1 and 2, with pupils in the pilot areas making between four
and eight weeks’ more progress than similar pupils in comparison areas. These
effects could have arisen either through the provision of free school meals directly or

Page 17



through the wider activities that accompanied the pilot (such as the promotion of
school meals and healthy eating to pupils and parents) or both.

The universal entitiement pilot also appeared to improve attainment by more,
amongst pupils from less affluent families than amongst pupils from more affluent
families. It also appeared to improve attainment by more, for pupils with lower prior
attainment than for those with higher prior attainment.

Of particular note is the fact that the universal pilot approach improved outcomes
among children from less affluent families: it increased the take-up of school meals
among pupils who were already eligible for free school meals before the pilot was
introduced and it had positive impacts on diet among these pupils. School staff in the
qualitative case studies also noted that the pilot had a ‘levelling effect’ on the quality
of lunches eaten by pupils from different backgrounds; the implication was that while
the quality of packed lunches varied considerably by socio-economic background, all
pupils taking school meals had access to a nutritious, balanced meal, thus reducing
socio-economic differences in the quality of food eaten at lunchtime. The
improvements in attainment in the universal pilot areas also appeared to be greater
for children from less affluent backgrounds and those with lower prior attainment.

In July 2012, a report was presented to Lancashire County Council's Cabinet on an
approach to increase the level of free school meals across Lancashire Schools.
National evidence from take up campaigns suggested that the main reason for
failure to claim was a lack of general awareness of entitlement, sometimes
compounded by having to deal with a perception of a complex process of claiming
free school meals. It was agreed that all Councils in Lancashire to joining up data to
increase the level of free school meals across Lancashire schools (see Annex 2).

A move away from the current policy to supply both stunned and un-stunned Halal
meat, may have adverse effects such as; fewer young people accessing their free
entitlement of free school meals; risk of quality assurance within the supply chain;
high uptake of packed lunches that don’t meet the school food regulations; and
longer term effects on attainment and achievement of young people, from high risk
social economic backgrounds.

Ofsted’s Common Inspection Framework

Under Ofsted’s Common Inspection Framework, which came into force in September
2015, inspectors assess how “children and learners keep themselves healthy,
including through healthy eating”. Inspectors will look at “the food on offer and visit
the canteen to see the atmosphere and culture in the dining space and the effect this
has on pupils’ behavior. In a recent Children's Food Trust survey only 1% of packed
lunches met the requirements for School Food Regulations 2014, the study also
found anecdotal evidence that pupils behaviour was adversely influenced by the
varying contents of packed lunches.

Page 18



Current situation

In Lancashire, we currently supply twenty seven schools, where the Governing Body
has chosen Halal school meals, with 'un-stunned' Halal school meals as an option
and cater for up to 12,000 children on roll. Not all 12,000 children will choose un-
stunned Halal meat. These schools are within Lancashire County Council
boundaries, Nelson, Burnley, Rawtenstall, Hyndburn and Preston including
Blackburn with Darwen council area.

Financial information relating to these school catering contracts are detailed below
under 'financial implications'. It explains that there is a potential loss of ¢.£285,000
(contribution to overhead) per annum, if these contracts are lost following this review.
There is also the possibility that schools will seek alternative suppliers of Halal meat
who may not be 'Accredited’ suppliers. We currently offer meat accredited by the
Halal Monitoring Committee which is a trusted quality brand amongst Lancashire's
Muslim communities.

Another key factor to consider here is that there is currently no demand for stunned
Halal meat from any school within the authority's catering service.

In Lancashire, where school meals are predominantly provided by the local authority,
as a traded service, compliance with the school food standards is specified within the
catering service level agreement and the catering service provide the governing
board with evidence of compliance with the standards. The authority catering service
is also intrinsic in ensuring that schools who use the service are able to meet their
statutory obligations to provide pupil premium and universal infant free school meals.

The catering service strategy and pricing model acknowledges and communicates
the combined benefits of increasing primary school meal uptake, with the price per
meal charge to schools being lower the higher the school meal uptake percentage.
Any reduction in school meal uptake has an adverse effect on the price per meal
charged to schools and would most likely result in schools moving from a profit
making school meal service to a loss making service.

As mentioned earlier, a reduction in school meal uptake may also impact upon the
overall academic attainment levels; affect pupil's behaviour during lunchtime and
afternoon lessons; and lead to an increase in the attainment gap between pupils
from different socio-economic backgrounds. However, we cannot claim that a
potential change in the County Council's current policy, would see academic
attainment reduce as a direct result. There are other providers, other than the
County Council, of Halal meat available to schools, to help them meet their cultural
food requirements.

In reviewing this policy, we have also considered other County Council
establishments where Halal meat may be in demand. Having consulted the Head of
Service, Adults and Older People, at present, there is no current demand for Halal in
residential care establishments however, there is a possibility of receiving requests
via rehabilitation for Halal meat dishes and for future residents.

Page 19



Considerations

Nationally, Central Government and Local Authorities continue to address the needs
of a diverse set of residents against the following issues:

e The UK's legal position in religious slaughter.

e Stunned or not stunned Halal — supply options and animal welfare matters.

e Labelling and food provenance.

e Possibility for a single supply option that respects both Halal and Non-Halal

consumers.
e Halal

What the legislation says:
e EU/UK law requires farm animals to be stunned prior to slaughter (Halal and
Kosher slaughter Guidance October 2015).
e Exemption for religious slaughter: Schedule 12 of The Welfare of Animals
(Slaughter or Killing) Regulations 1995 Jewish and Muslim.
e Significant meat producing countries such as Denmark (EU) and New
Zealand legally mandate pre-stunning even for Halal slaughter.

The ability of the animal to feel pain following stunning is the subject of much debate
and academic study and the exemptions to stunning are opposed by organisations
such as the RSPCA who are opposed to the slaughter of any animal without first
ensuring it is rendered insensible to pain and distress.

There is debate amongst Muslims about some aspects of the Halal rules, and there
is no single set of national or international standards. In the UK, “Halal” is not defined
in law. Instead, there are a range of Halal accreditation agencies who will inspect
and accredit firms involved in the production and handling of meat in order for that
meat to be described as Halal.

The two biggest accreditation agencies in the UK are currently the Halal Food
Authority (HFA) and the Halal Monitoring Committee (HMC).

Whilst the two organisations agree on many things, there are also differences,
perhaps most notably on the issue of stunning animals before slaughter. The HFA
allows this in certain conditions, the HMC does not allow it at all.

In 2014, there was a Halal and Kosher meat debate in the House of Commons
relating to the labelling of such meat at the point of sale. Part of this debate
examined the method of 'slaughter labelling’2. The Parliamentary Under-Secretary
of State for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs at the time, (George Eustice),
concluded that; "such regulation should be introduced at a European level however,
if one were to introduce compulsory method of slaughter labelling, | think one would
go not for labelling as halal or kosher, for the reasons | gave earlier, but for labelling
as stunned or unstunned”.

In December 2013, written evidence was received from a number of the bodies listed
below (see Annex 1 for further information). In reviewing the current policy, where

2 https://hansard.parliament.uk/Commons/2014-06-12/debates/14061240000021/HalalAndKosherMeat

Page 20


https://hansard.parliament.uk/Commons/2014-06-12/debates/14061240000021/HalalAndKosherMeat

the County Council supplies both stunned and un-stunned Halal meat to schools, a
desktop exercise took place where the following information was gathered. Notably,
none of the advice and guidance has changed:

e Food Standards Agency (FSA) - The animal should be alive or deemed to
be alive at the actual time of slaughter and slaughter must be carried out in
compliance with Islamic Sharia and the Welfare of Animals (Slaughter or
Killing) Regulations 1995 (as amended). The FSA animal welfare survey
undertaken in abattoirs across Great Britain during one week in September
2013 showed around 84 per cent of animals slaughtered by the Halal method
were stunned before slaughter.

e Animal Welfare - The ability of the animal to feel pain following stunning
is the subject of much debate and academic study and the exemptions
to stunning are opposed by organisations such as the RSPCA who are
opposed to the slaughter of any animal without first ensuring it is
rendered insensible to pain and distress

e Halal monitoring Committee — The British Law allows the Muslim to carry
out religious slaughter without stunning.
e Halal Food Authority — stunning allowed as per European Council

Regulation EC1009/2099

e Humane Slaughter Association (HSA) - The view of the HSA remains that
all animals should be effectively stunned prior to being bled, because this
precludes the possibility of suffering.

e The Farm Animal Welfare Council (how Committee) (FAWC) - “Slaughter
without pre-stunning is unacceptable and that the Government should
repeal the current exemption”. Until then any animal not stunned before
slaughter should receive an immediate post-cut stun.

¢ Muslim Council of Britain (MCB) - At the end of the day, informed consumer
choice, rather than prejudice should be the motivating factor here.

¢ Lancashire Council of Mosques (LCM) — a number of attempts have been
made to meet with the LCM which have been declined. The LCM have
engaged in the consultation and it is the view that based on the events in
2103, that the LCM will take the same view and boycott school meals.

Advice received from Lancashire County Council services

This isn’t the first consideration of this item as referred to in Annex 1. The following
advice looks at the impact of a potential change in policy to supply stunned meat
only, to Lancashire schools;

Financial implications

Lancashire County Council currently supplies, where the school and Governing Body
have chosen Halal school meals, Halal meat to twenty seven schools and caters for
up to 12,000 children who are served over 1.2m meals per annum. Not all 12,000
children will choose Halal un-stunned as an option. These schools are in Blackburn,
Nelson, Burnley, Rawtenstall, Hyndburn and Preston where the catering service
employ 139 part time, term time, catering employees.

Page 21



Currently, JW Young's are our Halal frozen meat supplier.

When considering a change in this policy, if Lancashire County Council were only to
buy Halal stunned meat, there would be variable factors to such a decision.

When Halal un-stunned (HMC) meat was banned from use in Lancashire in
2013, the Lancashire Council of Mosques asked all Muslim families to boycott
Lancashire school meals completely, not just the ones who were affected by
the ban of Halal un-stunned meat. This was followed not just in the schools
who were affected by the ban of Halal un-stunned meat. The boycott resulted
in a significant drop in meal uptake in schools serving both Halal and non-
Halal menus and thus income and contribution. The effect was particularly
damaging in the east of the county and the central Preston area where school
meal uptake decreased by over 7%.
The school meals service is charged to schools who in turn charge parents for
paid meals or receive a price per meal from the government for universal
infant free school meals. If the primary schools (Annex 2) are unable to satisfy
the cultural food requirements of their pupils, and consequently their parents,
there is a strong possibility that they will choose to contract with an alternative
catering provider, or manage their own catering arrangements in house.
Secondary school contract income is predominantly received from pupils, so
again, if the secondary schools are unable to satisfy the cultural food
requirements of their pupils there is a strong possibility that they will also
choose to contract with an alternative catering provider, or manage their own
catering arrangements in house.
A potential reduction in the County Council's competitiveness in a commercial
environment as it could see new entrants in the market place providing this
service for example, other Council Catering Services. This would also limit the
services diversification plans in entering new markets and territories. As a
change in current policy would reduce our ability to provide a full end-to-end
service.
The potential loss of the twenty seven Halal school meal catering contracts
would result in the loss of ¢c.£2.5m of traded income and ¢.£285,000 per
annum reduction in contribution to corporate overheads; plus reduction in
food procurement rebates, plus any additional impact of another school meal
boycott by the Lancashire Council of Mosques.
The impact of the loss of the twenty seven Halal school meal catering
contracts, the headlines of which are:

e Food expenditure could decrease by £981,369 per annum, 75% of

which is spent directly with local food manufacturers and distributors

e 139 catering employees could be faced with TUPE transfer to
alternative catering providers, or directly to schools.
Annual catering income could decrease by 8.36%
Annual contribution could decrease by 5.41%
10.59% of Lancashire's pupil population may be affected
Food rebates could decrease by £28,000
It is important to note that there is a potential risk of further income losses for
the service if there is a wider boycott of school meals (as was the case in
2013) across Lancashire.

Page 22



e Under the current policy where the council provides stunned and un stunned
Halal meat. In the 27 schools there is currently no demand for stunned Halal
meat, nor would there be an expected increase in demand for stunned Halal
meat if the Lancashire Council of Mosques adopt the same position of
boycotting all school meals and only advocating un-stunned Halal meat.
Ultimately, schools and individuals will choose whether to accept stunned
Halal meat should there be an absence of un stunned Halal meat.

e Our pricing model is based upon a sliding scale of charges whereby the
higher the meal uptake the lower the meal charge to schools. Any resultant
reduction in meal uptake from a change in policy would see the price per meal
charged to schools increase.

As detailed above, there are the additional impacts, such as the government's school
food standards, nutritional impact, obesity and diabetes, increase in packed lunch
uptake and pupils leaving the premises for home lunches to be considered.

There is also the financial impact on the Muslim community, if they were to boycott
school meals. Families may be encouraged to provide alternative food options for
their children (which may not meet the School Food Regulations) whether this be as
a packed lunch or provided at home. This also could lead to additional costs in terms
of travelling from school to home and back again.

Legal implications

It is possible that the Council would face a risk of challenge to a decision to procure
only halal meat that has been stunned prior to slaughter. Such a challenge could be
based upon an allegation that:

(1)  The Council has breached the Public Contracts Regulations 2015; and/or

(2)  The Council has failed to comply with the equality Act 2010

Procurement implications

The County Council is obliged to procure in accordance with the Public Contract
Regulations 2015 (the "Regulations") which prohibit any form of tender process
which effectively restricts or distorts competition. Accreditation (or any aspect of the
accreditation including for example a restriction on stunning prior to slaughter) of
meat as Halal is classed under the Regulations as a "technical specification"

Regulation 42 (10) states that:

"Technical specifications shall afford equal access of economic operators to the
procurement procedure and shall not have the effect of creating unjustified obstacles
to the opening up of public procurement to competition".

A requirement that animals should be stunned prior to slaughter could also be
categorised as a "characteristic" of a technical specification addressed under
Regulation 42 (6) which provides that:

"In the case of any public contract, the required characteristics may also refer to -

Page 23



(a) the specific process or method of production or provision of the requested works,
supplies or services, or

(b) a specific process for another stage of its life cycle, even where such factors do
not form part of the characteristics’ material substance provided that they are linked
to the subject-matter of the contract and proportionate to its value and its objectives".

To stipulate one sole accreditation body, or a specific slaughter process, for Halal
meat in Lancashire may breach Regulation 42 (10) if it could be proved that it
creates an unjustified obstacle to potential bidders. = However, Regulation 42 (6)
suggests that there is some flexibility allowing authorities to specify processes as
part of a technical specification provided that the process relates to what is being
procured and does not for example lead to a disproportionate increase in costs.

It does not seem immediately apparent that limiting the range of possible bidders to
those who stun animals prior to slaughter would either unfairly restrict competition or
introduce an extraneous requirement that would be unreasonable of itself.

Equality Impact Implications and Assessment

The County Council is under an obligation to consider each strategic proposal in
terms of possible impact upon certain groups (defined in the Equalities Act 2010 by
reference to protected characteristics). This process is usually undertaken by way of
an equality impact assessment which addresses the potential impact of a proposal
upon equality issues in a substantive and thorough manner. Whilst the Equalities
Act 2010 does not prohibit public authorities from taking decisions which may
detrimentally affect those with protected characteristics, authorities must have due
regard to such matters when making relevant decisions. As the assessment
attached as appendix C to this report makes clear, the review of the procurement of
halal meat is likely to have an impact upon a number of groups with protected
characteristics in a number of ways.

Undertaking an equality impact assessment evidences the process by which
appropriate information is sought and analysed in terms of the potential impact upon
groups with protected characteristics. The contents of the assessment must be
considered when making a decision in order to be able to make a lawful decision and
to evidence that relevant considerations have been taken into account.

Failure to comply with the Act and to evidence that this is the case has in the past
proved a fruitful ground of challenge and the assessment should be fully considered
as part of the decision-making process.

An Equality Analysis has been completed and can be found at Appendix C.
Academic implications

As explained in detail above, the provision of a nutritious meal in the middle of the
day to the children of Lancashire is of fundamental importance. This is not just a

matter for Muslims or Muslim children. For some children, it may be the only meal
they get in a day, and for all children, the importance of good nutrition in the

10
Page 24



development and achievement is key. The aim of all the people involved in this
ongoing debate has been to make sure that Lancashire is offering something to its
children that presents them with a genuine choice, that presents them with meat
they, and their parents, feel comfortable with as being reflective of their needs and
wishes.

Economic implications

The economic impact would affect the County Council, the suppliers the County
Council currently trade with and the suppliers along the food chain, schools and
families.

The international market for Halal is worth around £423bn making up approximately
16% of the global food market;

e 1.8 million Muslims live in the UK,
e 356,458 in the North West and
e 96,600°% in the Lancashire 14 area.
o Blackburn with Darwen (27.0%) and
o Pendle (17.4%) had high rates of Muslims.
o The Blackburn with Darwen rate was the third highest in England and
Wales.

The debate is not just around the supply of Halal meat to schools, The Muslim
Council of Britain claim that many popular curry houses and restaurants clearly
displaying Halal, attract customers who are not often Muslims. They welcome any
move by mainstream companies to cater for Muslim consumers. They also believe
that at the end of the day, informed consumer choice, rather than prejudice should
be the motivating factor here.

It is also understood that well known food retailers such as Nandos and KFC in the
Blackburn area, only serve Halal meat based on studying the racial make-up of the
area. It is difficult to qualify in figures, particularly in the global economic market
place and where a number of establishments state to provide meat that is Halal
whether this is stunned or unstunned Halal meat.

In terms of schools, the impact on schools has been explained in terms of them
making a profit through take up of school meals against the potential loss of income
if Halal supply did not meet the demand. As schools are now more self-sufficient and
have a choice on whether to buy services from the County Council or elsewhere, a
change in this policy could see a reduction in the number of school
catering/lunchtime supervisor staff at certain times, due to the reduction in pupils
staying in school for lunch.

There is also the potential for more schools to seek Academy status as we may be
seen as not responding to the market. If we cannot supply choice within the market,
schools may choose to buy elsewhere. Just by the County Council changing its
policy, doesn’t mean that schools will follow.

3 Census, March 2011 indicated that their religion was Muslim

11
Page 25



Emergency Planning

Government Guidance on evacuation and shelter (2014) requires Emergency
Planners to consider individuals or groups who may require special care and
attention and to consider potential special requirements. These could be for
example, dietary (Halal food) cultural (unisex facilities) or religious (need for prayer
facilities). A change in the County Council's policy will impact on our emergency
responses planning.

Social implications

The fact remains that slaughter without stunning for religious purposes remains legal
in this country, and that government agencies such as the Foods Standards Agency
have made it clear that there is no single 'correct' definition of Halal.

As identified by the Halal Meat Supplies Task Group, the opportunity remains that a
choice is made available to Muslims at a local level. This could be achieved by
allowing individual schools, if they so choose, to make a judgement for their own
pupils on issues connected to accreditation and stunning. Parents would be able to
make their views known to the Head Teacher and Governors of an individual school,
and the County Council would be able to meet that requirement.

It should be noted that locally and nationally policy changes around the provision of
stunned and un stunned halal meat to schools may result in community tensions and
some may use this policy to feed the agenda of the far right whose activity is
currently growing across the UK and Europe. Community tensions are already
heightened following recent terrorist attacks from both ISIL/Daesh and Far Right in
London and Manchester. As experienced in 2013 there is likely to be a strong
response from the both the Muslim community and far right activist impacting
negatively on community tensions, community cohesion and integration across our
Lancashire communities.

This policy area has the potential to lead individuals undertaking acts of hate
incident/crime and Leaders/ Governing Boards/ communities spokespersons will
have a role and be key to managing this . Extreme hate ideology can be a trigger
along with other frustrations of an individual that lead to them to carrying out a
terrorist act. Evidence shows that the community tensions are very delicate at the
moment. From the opposite spectrum certain communities can feel marginalised
and feel they are being targeted by the effects of policy changes made by public
bodies e.g. the Muslim community and Halal meat provision. This can be
exacerbated by press coverage and social media comment.

However, there is support available from across Lancashire agencies to respond
following any referrals or concerns raised.

Thought and consideration also needs to be given in terms of Lancashire's Muslim
population where they have expressed a preference for un-stunned Halal meat only
and that the Jewish community will only accept un-stunned meat and will watch
closely what happens in the Muslim community.

12
Page 26



Cultural leadership across Lancashire is very strong and the County Council should
be mindful of the reaction of communities and schools, who may perceive the
authority distancing themselves from their cultural needs and differences and thus
marginalising the affected schools.

Communications

The last time un-stunned Halal meat was banned in school meals there was a
significant amount of negative media attention, particularly focused on opposition to
the policy by the Lancashire Council of Mosques, and their boycott of Lancashire
school meals.

Media reaction this time around is likely to be determined by the reaction of the
Muslim community. If the Lancashire Council of Mosques again opposes the policy,
as seems likely, then it would be reasonable to assume that more negative stories
will again be generated.

Consultations

. The following information/reports/views have been considered:

= Report of the Halal Meat Supplies Task Group: December 2013.

In addition a desk top exercise has been conducted to research the current national
and local intelligence relating to the supply of halal meat, particularly to schools. The
main bodies referred to are:

e Food Standards Agency;

e Halal Monitoring Committee;

e Halal Food Authority;

e Humane Slaughter Association;

e The Farm and Animal Welfare Council;
e Muslim Council of Britain;

e Lancashire Council of Mosques.

Consideration has also been given to the demographics of the areas most affected
by this policy and representatives from key service areas within the county council
have been consulted, including School Meals/Catering Service, Legal, Procurement,
Adult and Older Peoples Services and Equality and Cohesion.

A 4-week public consultation exercise was launched during which, the council
continues to supply halal meat under the terms of the contract that supports current

policy.

The consultation was carried out between 7 February and 7 March 2018. The
consultation report can be found in Appendix C

Implications:

13
Page 27



This item has a number of implications, as indicated above.

Risk management
This report has significant risk implications as detailed above and are summarised
below:

e Legal — Animal Welfare vs. School Food Regulations/Requirements of Sharia
Law

Procurement — restrict/distort competition

Finance — potential loss to LCC and individual schools

Community — increase in community tensions

Market place — not seen as a supplier of school meals to Muslim schools

The monitoring and review of these risks have been included in the Policy,
Information and Commissioning Team's Risk Register.

List of Background Papers

Paper Date Contact/Tel

Lancashire Education Act 12t March 1984 Ajay Sethi 01257 517100
1984 The Asian Religions —

Their Dietary Restrictions

(Annex 5)

Report of the Halal Meat 6t December 2013 Josh Mynott 01772 534580
Supplies Task Group)

Procurement of a supplier 215t October 2014 Rachel Tanner 01772

or suppliers to provide 534904

Lancashire County Council
with frozen Halal meat
(Annex )

14
Page 28



App A - Annex 1

Halal Meat Task Group - Final report
Background
In July 2013, Lancashire County Council’s Full Council considered a motion that

"This Council confirms that it will not provide meat to any of its kitchens unless the
animal was stunned before it was slaughtered."

Following discussion, it was resolved by Full Council

"That consideration of this motion be referred to the Scrutiny Committee with a
request that a task and finish group be set up to examine all issues relating to the
council's supply of Halal meat"

The proposal was put to the Scrutiny Committee in September 2013, where it was
agreed to establish a Task Group to consider the matter.

Membership

CC Bill Winlow (chair)
CC Geoff Driver CBE
CC David O'Toole
CC Sandra Perkins
CC Yousuf Motala
CC Chris Henig

CC Munsif Dad

Scope

At the Scrutiny meeting in September 2013, the scope of the task group was agreed.
The key objective was agreed as:

To consider all issues relating to the supply of Halal meat to the County Council in
order to recommend to the Cabinet the basis for a policy on the provision of Halal
meat.
Initial analysis made it clear that by far the most significant area in which the supply
of Halal meat was an issue was in relation to the provision of school meals. It was
therefore this area where the Task group concentrated their attention.
Methodology
The Task Group considered a range of evidence, written and oral.
¢ Roger Eakhurst, Assistant Director (Catering), Lancashire County Commercial
Group (LCCG) attended all meetings of the Task Group to advise and
support.

The task group spoke to:

1

Page 29



¢ Lancashire Council of Mosques (LCM)
o Abdul Qureshi, Chairman
o Imam Yusuf Shabbir
o Ishmael Nakhuda, General Manager

¢ Halal Monitoring Committee (HMC)
o Nadeem Adam, Operations Manager
o Mohammed Giga

¢ Halal Food Authority (HFA)
o Sagib Mohammed, Acting Chief Executive
o Sardar Qadri, Sharia law expert
o Munsur Ahmed, Meat and Poultry lead

The Task Group watched a video produced by the English Beef and Lamb industry
organisation EBLEX, showing various types of Halal slaughter.

Written evidence was received from:
o RSPCA “Religious Slaughter” February 2013
e Laura Sales, Assistant County Solicitor (Contracts and Procurement),
Lancashire County Council
e Association of Public Service Excellence (APSE) “The Halal Dilemma”
September 2011
¢ Lancashire Council of Mosques Halal Sub Group “Criteria and Definition of
Halal” April 2007
EBLEX Halal Survey results November 2013
Halal Monitoring committee “UK Scholar Halal Survey” August 2009
2011 Census Information on Religious Belief
Briefing Note prepared by Roger Eakhurst outlining the history of the issues
from 2001-present

Findings

Lancashire has a significant Muslim population. According to the 2011 census,
around 5% of the total population of Lancashire is Muslim, rising in some districts to
between 10% and 17%. It is clearly essential that Lancashire County Council
properly takes into account the needs of this population when making its decisions.
One key area is the provision of food for Muslim children in Lancashire schools,
which means making sure that the food offered is Halal.

“Halal” is an Arabic term which means permissible or lawful. In terms of food, it
relates to both what food can be eaten, and also how that food must be prepared. In
terms of meat, certain animals are completely prohibited or forbidden (haraam), such
as pork. Other meat — beef, chicken, lamb, for example - can be eaten so long as it
is prepared in line with certain rules. A brief summary of some of the key rules is as
follows:

e The slaughterman must be a Muslim
e The slaughterman must invoke the name of Allah before every slaughter

Page 30



e The slaughter must be done with a single stroke of a clean, sharp blade,
severing the arteries without damaging the spinal cord
e The animal must be alive prior to slaughter

There are also rules that require each animal to be slaughtered separately without
seeing or hearing the slaughter of another animal or seeing its blood.

There is debate amongst Muslims about some aspects of the Halal rules, and there
is no single set of national or international standards. In the UK, “Halal’ is not defined
in law. Instead, there are a range of Halal accreditation agencies who will inspect
and accredit firms involved in the production and handling of meat in order for that
meat to be described as Halal. The two biggest accreditation agencies in the UK are
currently the Halal Food Authority (HFA) and the Halal Monitoring Committee (HMC).
Whilst the two organisations agree on many things, there are also differences,
perhaps most notably on the issue of stunning animals before slaughter. The HFA
allows this in certain conditions, the HMC does not allow it at all.

UK law requires that all animals are stunned before slaughter. However, in the
regulations that set out what is permissible, the Welfare of Animals (Slaughter or
Killing) Regulations 1995 — known as WATOK, there is a specific exemption for
religious slaughter, meaning that for Muslims and Jews, slaughter may take place in
properly licensed slaughterhouses without stunning.

Stunning is a major area of debate for Muslims and non-Muslims alike. For some, it
is an issue of animal welfare. The RSPCA, for example, actively campaign for a
change to the law to remove the exemption for religious slaughter. They believe that
slaughter without stunning increases the pain and distress felt by the animals, and
have produced studies they say proves this.

There is no consensus within the Muslim community itself. Whilst the more Muslims
oppose stunning than support it, it is clear that many will accept meat as “Halal” even
if it is stunned. The main issue for Muslims is ensuring that the meat is killed by the
incision, and whether stunning can be done in a way that is reliably recoverable. In
other words, for many Muslims, whilst there remains a risk that the stunning will
(inadvertently) kill the animal, the technique cannot be relied upon as Halal. Other
Muslims believe that stunning can be done in a way that ensures that the stun
doesn’t kill the animal, for example through appropriately low current, or by a “post-
cut” stun (where the animal is stunned after its neck is cut).

What Lancashire County Council cannot do is come to any judgement on what is
and what isn’t Halal. That is entirely a matter for Muslim scholars and the wider
Muslim community. Individual Muslims will make their own choices on what they
accept as Halal, based on advice and information. When it comes to school meals,
however, the supplies are procured by Lancashire County Commercial Group
(LCCG) on behalf of schools, and so there is an imperative to ensure that this food is
acceptable to those to whom it is being served.

In Lancashire, Halal meat has been an option on the school menu from at least
1994. In 2007, The Lancashire Council of Mosques (LCM) Halal Sub Group
undertook a considerable amount of work on the issue, and, having developed a

3

Page 31



criteria and definition, approached the County Council to discuss the issue. The LCM
Halal Sub Group aimed at a definition that was as all-inclusive as possible, setting
criteria that all Muslims in the county would agree were Halal. One key issue
highlighted by the LCM was that whilst some Muslims may accept stunned meat, all
Muslims accept non-stunned meat, and so, to ensure as many Muslims as possible
could accept the criteria, non-stunning became part of the definition. The LCM
expressed a view supportive of the Halal Monitoring Committee’s approach and
accreditation, which does not allow stunning, and which also required a high level of
strict monitoring throughout the production process. The County Council adopted the
LCM criteria for its procurement of Halal meat, including the requirement in its tender
documentation of “HMC accredited Halal Meat or equivalent”

In 2009, the contract was due for renewal. At this point, the County Council’s legal
team provided advice that made it clear that the term “HMC accredited Halal Meat of
Equivalent” severely restricted competition, in a way that left the county council open
to challenge. Approaches had already been received from the HFA expressing
concern about companies with their accreditation being excluded. Advice from the
County Council’s legal department was that the term should be removed, and that
Halal meat from any accreditation body should be accepted. This advice was shared
with the LCM at the time.

No changes to the supply were made, however, until October 2012, when the
County Council’s policy was changed to require that all Halal meat supplied to the
County Council was stunned before slaughter. The LCM expressed concern at this
move, and, following conversations with the County Council, the LCM took the
decision to advise that all Muslims boycott school meals. Following discussions, it
was agreed that this boycott would be reduced to simply be a boycott of meat meals.
The LCM have continued to ask the County Council to reconsider the policy, and in
the meantime, to withdraw any meat described as by the County Council as “Halal’.

Whilst the County Council has always sought the views of the LCM in developing its
policy on Halal, a major issue exists in reconciling that with the legal obligations on
the County Council in relation to procurement. The Task Group sought to confirm the
legal advice provided in 2009, and the County Council’s legal department provided a
clear statement (see “Legal Position” below). The advice was also supported by
guidance produced by the Association of Public Service Excellence (APSE). The
Task Group were clear that, regardless of any other consideration, these rules meant
that the Council simply could not either specify a single accreditation agency or set
of production processes where these would exclude significant parts of the market. It
was made clear that, if the council was to specify non-stunned meat only, that this
would be open to challenge, which would very likely lead to the council losing the
challenge, at significant expense.

Although the task group considered at some length the issue of whether slaughter
without stunning was more painful or distressing for animals, and strong views were
expressed on both sides of the argument by task group members, the task group
ultimately resolved that the County Council should be recommended to accept both
stunned and non-stunned meat. This was reflective of the fact that slaughter without
stunning for religious purposes remains legal in this country, and that government

Page 32



agencies, such as the Food Standards Agency have made it clear that there is no
single “correct” definition of Halal.

What was identified by the Task Group, however, was an opportunity to ensure that
a choice was available to Muslims at a more local level. This could be achieved by
allowing individual schools, if they so chose, to make a judgement for their own
pupils on issues connected to accreditation and stunning. Parents would be able to
make their views known to the Head Teacher and Governors of an individual school,
and the County Council, through LCCG, would be able to meet that requirement.

In the Task Group’s considerations, it was very clear that there was significantly
more to the issue than the single point of slaughter. The Task group noted and
accepted many of the points made by the LCM and both accreditation agencies
spoken to in relation to the integrity of the food served, the importance of
understanding the provenance of all our food, and the need to create trust in the food
on our plates. The Task Group was cognisant of the significant food security issues
in the news earlier this year, and, whilst this was not formally part of the task groups’
remit, it was very clear that the criteria and definition of Halal developed by the LCM,
as well as the wider principles of Halal food, had much to say about the provenance
of food and respect for animals that could usefully apply to all food supplies to the
County Council and elsewhere. It was clear to the task group that there were many
lessons that could be learnt from the rules of Halal that applied to all food bought and
served by the County Council, and the task group was keen to see that work
developed further, in partnership with the LCM as well as other interested bodies.

Partly with these issues in mind, the task group received significant reassurance
from LCCG about the inspection regimes in school kitchens. LCCG conforms to
ISO9001, which is a raft of requirements set down to ensure that food is prepared in
a clean safe environment, that cross contamination of different foods (for example
Halal and non-Halal meat) did not occur, and that staff were well trained to
understand the issues. The task group noted that some Halal accreditation bodies
would willingly accredit schools (the HMC, for example, offer a service involving a
termly inspection for a fee of £50 pa with a £100 initial joining fee), which some
schools may be interested in, where this would add reassurance to their local
communities. It was widely agreed, however, that the ISO9001 standards provided
ample reassurance to schools, parents and children that the food they were served
was sourced and prepared in line with whatever requirements they might have.

This final point highlights what was universally regarded as the real key issue. The
provision of a nutritious meal in the middle of the day to the children of Lancashire is
of fundamental importance. This is not just a matter for Muslims or Muslim children.
For some children, it may be the only meal they get in a day, and for all children, the
importance of good nutrition in the development and achievement is key. The aim of
all of the people involved in this debate has been to make sure that Lancashire is
offering something to its children that presents them with a genuine choice, that
presents them with meat they, and their parents, feel comfortable with as being
reflective of their needs and wishes.

To achieve this, the task group heard, requires good information to enable choices to
be made. Whilst the task group was clear that the County Council must operate

5

Page 33



within procurement law, it was felt that, by providing information to schools and
parents, informed choices could be made which would enable children and parents
to confidently enjoy school meals in Lancashire schools.

Legal Position

The following advice was provided to the task group by the County Council’s
lawyers:

“Before specifically advising on the regulations governing procurement some careful
research was undertaken in relation to how Halal meat is classified and dealt with by
food regulation agencies in the UK.

The classifications "HMC" and "HFA" refer to two out of the many accreditation
bodies that accredit Halal meat products. "HMC" is generally considered to be more
orthodox although both comply with Sharia law according to the Food Standards
Agency. There is no clear cut definition of Halal, and this extends to the belief as to
whether stunning the animal prior to slaughter is appropriate otherwise.

The County Council is obliged to procure in accordance with the Public Contract
Regulations 2006 (the "Regulations") which prohibit any form of tender process
which effectively restricts or distorts competition. Accreditation (or any aspect of the
accreditation including for example a restriction on stunning prior to slaughter) of
meat as Halal is classed under the Regulations as a "technical specification".
Regulation 9(4) states that we must :

........ ensure that technical specifications afford equal access to [ bidders] and do
not have the effect of creating unjustified obstacles .....to .....competition".

To stipulate one sole accreditation body, or a specific slaughter process, for Halal
meat in Lancashire would breach Regulation 9(4). It would unnecessarily limit
competition which would enable dissatisfied suppliers to challenge the decision and
if successful to claim substantial compensation from the Authority".

Note that this advice applies only to Halal meat supplies. It was made clear to the
Task Group that meat supplied to Lancashire schools is not Halal unless it is clearly
labelled as such. No children in Lancashire schools would eat Halal meat
unknowingly. Even in schools where the majority of meat meals may be Halal, a non-
Halal equivalent alternative will always be provided for those children for whom there
is no requirement or wish to eat Halal food.

Conclusions

Clearly the County Council cannot and should not make a judgement of any time on
what is or is not Halal.

It is also clear that the law allows for religious slaughter. This is specifically included
in the WATOK regulations. It is the view of the task group that, whilst individuals may

Page 34



hold views on that for moral, ethical or religious reasons, the county council should
focus on the practical matter of procurement and contracting.

The task group does note that the aim of all bodies involved is honourable in intent,
and all agree on certain key issues, such as the need to increase our knowledge on
where our food comes from and our trust in the products being provided. Recent
scandals in Lancashire and across the country have highlighted the wider issue of
contaminated food. This is not just a matter for Muslims and Halal, but a crucial
lesson from the evidence supplied is that the Halal meat issue is about much more
than the moment of slaughter; It is about respect for the animals we eat and a desire
to properly understand its provenance.

Recommendations
The Task Group recommends that Lancashire County Council should:

1. recognise the importance of providing meat for Muslim children in Lancashire
schools that is:
a. Produced and prepared in line with Halal requirements
b. Accredited by a recognised Halal accreditation body
c. From a trusted source and traceable

2. recognise the value of the work of the Lancashire Council of Mosques (LCM)
in this area; acknowledge that LCM is a representative body which speaks for
the vast majority of Muslims in Lancashire; and understand and respect the
principles behind the LCM statement on Halal, but recognise that legal
constraints prevent the council from specifying the procurement of only non-
stunned meat.

3. recognise and accept the current legislation that allows for religious slaughter
without stunning.

4. recognise that the production of meat in accordance with Halal principles is
not simply about the actual moment of slaughter, but a question of all aspects
of the welfare of animals and the provenance of the food on people's plates.

5. recognise it is not in a position to make a judgement itself on what constitutes
Halal meat. It should procure from suppliers accredited as Halal, and should
work with suppliers and schools to provide accurate information about the
production methods used.

6. should take steps through its procurement process to ensure that schools are
able to make a choice which allows them to meet local needs.

7. make clear its belief that the current inspection regime to ISO9001 standard
provide ample assurance for schools, parents and children that food is
prepared and served in line with Halal requirements. It should also note that
some accreditation agencies offer accreditation to schools as food preparers,
and that individual schools may wish to consider this.

Page 35



8.

9.

10.

11.

continue to work with the Lancashire Council of Mosques and others to
promote school meals, provide information to schools, parents and children,
and work to ensure that the food provided by Lancashire County Council
meets the needs of individual schools

take steps to provide the information to schools, parents and children to
enable them to make an informed choice about the meat they eat, and the
reassurance to enable them to be certain that Halal meat is provided to those
children who want it, and non-Halal meat to those who don't

recognise that the provenance of food served to our children is a vitally
important issue, not just for Muslim children, and so would support any
initiatives which increase reassurance about the provenance and integrity of
all food.

support efforts nationally and internationally to agree universal standards for
Halal food.

Page 36



App A - Annex 2

Cabinet - 5 July 2012

Report of the Chief Executive

Electoral Division affected:
All

Benefits Take Up - Free School Meals and the Data Sharing Opportunities

Contact for further information:
Eddie Sutton, (01772) 535171, Office of the Chief Executive,
eddie.sutton@lancashire.gov.uk

Executive Summary

To set out an approach to increasing the level of free school meals across
Lancashire Schools.

Recommendation

The Cabinet is asked to:

(1) Note the approach agreed by all Councils in Lancashire to joining up data to
increase the level of free school meals across Lancashire Schools;

(i) Authorise the Chief Executive to take forward these proposals with One
Connect Ltd.

Background and Advice

In 2011/2012 some 23,500 children were awarded free school meals (FSM) in
Lancashire. However, national statistics would suggest that more than 10% of
entitled families to this benefit do not claim this entitlement.

Free school meals are recognised as a vitally important contribution to the nutrition
of children in low income families. The cash value of free school meals is around
£400 per child per year. A significant sum to a family in poverty.

Failure to award free school meals has a major impact on school funding. Schools
now receive an annual pupil premium worth £600 for each child eligible for free
meals. It is likely that Lancashire schools are missing out on around £1.5 million.
Essential local spending to support improving the life chances of the most
economically deprived children is not available due to a simple failure to join up data
and ensure entitlement.

Lancasgye
Sooney {;gg

»

Page 37


ljohnstone001
Typewritten Text


National evidence from take up campaigns suggests that the main reason for failure
to claim is a lack of general awareness of entitlement which can sometimes be
compounded by having to deal with what seems like a complex process of claiming
free school meals.

The majority of families that are entitled to free school meals will be receiving
Housing and / or Council Tax Benefit from their local Council. They will have actually
provided all the income information needed to process a claim for free school meals
as part of this process. If this data could be used then all families entitled to (but not
receiving) free school meals could be identified and the benefit awarded to the
benefit of, families, children and schools.

An approach to joining up data has been proposed that will overcome these historic
problems of failure to claim. This approach has been agreed by each of the Councils
of Lancashire. This approach will also help to open up the possibilities of further
data integration to support improved intelligence led take up claims for other
vulnerable households and individuals across Lancashire.

Working Together To Award Free School Meals

By all Councils (and the County Council) working together the failure to take up free
school meals can be remedied very quickly and simply. However this will need full
support and cooperation from all Borough and District Councils over the coming
weeks and months. However the prize is great.

A new and proactive approach to maximising the take up and award of free school
meals is proposed which looks to secure the customer’s consent to share income
and household details from Housing and Council Tax Benefit (HB/CTB) claims with
the County Councils. This will allow the children of families entitled to free school
meals to be awarded and schools to receive additional funding without parents
having to make any further claim.

This approach overcomes reservations that some Councils have previously
expressed about data sharing. District and Borough Councils HB/CTB claim forms
often allow for the claimant to consent that the data held about them can be used to
positively identify their entitlement to other benefits. However some Councils have
suggested that information supplied for HB/CTB claims could not be used for this
purpose because free school meals do not fall within the legal definition of a ‘benefit’.
Others have expressed concerns that some information was supplied by DWP solely
for HB/CTB processing.

The simple remedy to overcome these concerns is to write to all customers to advise
them of this change and ask their permission to share the data using an ‘informed
consent’ process.

What will happen next?

Councils across Lancashire award HB/CTB to around 110,000 households.

Information on income and family make up is used to calculate entitement to these
benefits. By comparing this with the existing records for free school meals claims

Page 38



and school admissions data held by the County Council it is possible to identify
households that are entitled to but not claiming free school meals.

By writing to households receiving HB/CTB with school age children and seeking
‘informed consent’ to share data with the County Council all those entitled to free
school meals can be awarded without the need to complete a claim form.

The first stage will involve each Council running reports from its HB/CTB system to
identify households who meet the criteria for free school meals. At this stage it will
not be possible to ascertain which households are already receiving free school
meals.

The next stage will involve a mail shot to all potentially qualifying households to
advise that unless they object, then the Council will share their details with
Lancashire County Council to allow them to confirm and award free school meals
entitlement.

A special telephone and email ‘hotline’ will be set up by One Connect Limited for a 4
week period in line with data protection requirements to any customers that do not
want to take part and to opt out. During the final stage for those customers who
decide not to opt out, their details will be securely shared with the County Council's
Children and Young People Service to confirm and award any missing entitlements.
The school and the child’s parent or guardian would then be notified of their award
ahead of the early October school census data. This census data will be used for
the allocation of funding in the coming year and it is therefore essential to both
families and schools to complete this exercise before October 2012.

The high level tasks associated with the project are:

¢ Councils identify FSM eligible households.

e County Council provides template to all local Councils for mail shot to eligible
parents.

Hotline set up with One Connect Limited to receive any opt out responses.
Mails hot issued by local Councils with 4 week period for parents to respond.
Hotline closes and all opted out households removed from list.

Remaining households sent securely to the County Council Children’s
Services.

¢ Eligibility confirmed and entitlements awarded.

e Schools and parents notified of awards.

Future Opportunities

This exercise will demonstrate that by integrating data and working together
vulnerable households can be assisted to claim. The approach is far more effective
than publicity or outreach campaigns because it uses specific data intelligence to
identify under-claiming and award benefits. Traditional take up campaigns cannot
target in this way and ultimately place the responsibility to claim on the individual
(who has already failed to claim perhaps due to ignorance, the complexity of the
process or other reasons).

Page 39



Soon the Government plans to introduce new data sharing powers enabled under
the Welfare Reform Act. Regulations will come into force in July 2012 to enact new
powers. These will enable local Councils to share data gathered for the processing
of HB/CTB with other ‘welfare services’ and County Councils. This will include:

e Social Care Financial Assessments (home and residential care).
e Blue badges.

e Homelessness.

e Disabled Facilities Grant.

Data sharing will relate to households affected by restrictions on housing benefit
under new rules about excessively large accommodation in the social sector.

This opens up major opportunities to maximise the income of vulnerable households
within local areas. At the same time by re-using data it will be possible to make sure
customers do not have to repeatedly supply the same information to different
services. This also reduces costs to Councils with fewer transactions and
duplication. For example it would be possible to:

e Compare data on households receiving care to confirm if local Councils hold
details of disability benefits that trigger higher HB/CTB payments.

¢ Remove the need for customers receiving a new care package to supply
financial details if theses have already been used to claim HB/CTB.

¢ Identify further take up campaigns around disability benefits.

These are new opportunities and they demand that County, Boroughs and District
services start to understand how they can best join up to support vulnerable
customers, maximise entitlements, improve customer services and ease the process
of claiming benefits or receiving a financial assessment.

Consultations

District Councils in Lancashire.

Implications:

This item has the following implications, as indicated:

Financial

As indicated in the body of the report, by increasing the take up of free school meals
the County Council will be maximising the resources available to Lancashire schools
through the pupil premium mechanism potentially increasing resources within the
schools budget by c£1.5m (c0.2%). In addition, the provision of free school meals if

taken up by families will reduce the financial pressure they are under which may
reduce demand on other County Council services.

Page 40



Risk management

The risks relating to data sharing will be be managed by writing to customers to
advise them of the change and ask their permission to share the data using an
"informed consent" process.

Any representations made to the Cabinet prior to the issue being considered
in accordance with the Public Notice of Forward Plans

Name: Organisation: Comments:

N/A

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
List of Background Papers

Paper Date Contact/Directorate/Tel
N/A
Reason for inclusion in Part Il, if appropriate

N/A

Page 41



Page 42



App A - Annex 3

Briefing 11- 48 September 2011

The Halal Dilemma

To APSE catering and main contacts throughout the UK.

The provision of Halal meat within school meals is not without controversy. School meal
providers have to tread a fine line between satisfying the dietary expectations of a
significant section of the community whilst respecting both procurement law and food
standards legislation.

Key points:

* Nosingle defined standard for Halal exists in the UK

* Alocal authority may specify that animals must be stunned before slaughter within
the supply tender

» Tofavour one accreditation body over another would breach EU procurement law.

1.0 Background:

The international market for Halal is worth around £423bn making up approximately 16%
of the global food market. Around 1.8 million Muslims live in the UK.

What does Halal mean, how is it defined and by whom?

Halal - Arabic : ‘Permissible’ : Meat slaughtered and prepared in accordance with
Islamic/Sharia law.

Haraam - ‘prohibited by God, unwholesome, foul'.

The Qur'an makes reference to what is prohibited in terms of food and meat. From the
verses, Muslims interpret what is Halal and Haraam (leaving scope for differing views).

Elements which are quite clearly established for Halal slaughter are:

*  Only a permitted and healthy animal/bird can be slaughtered.

* Animal welfare is essential from farm to slaughter.

* The animal must be alive at the point of slaughter.

*  Only a Muslim slaughter man using a sharp knife of adequate size can slaughter
* The knife must be cleaned after each cut and sharpened out of sight.

* No animal must be allowed to see another being slaughtered or the blood.

Page 43



2.0

* The wind pipe, gullet, and preferably 2 cartoid arteries and 2 jugular veins must be
cut in a single action. Slaughter man must audibly recite “Tsmiyya” that is
Bismillah Allahu Akbar (‘In the name of Allah, Allah is greatest’) at the time of doing
the Zibah (religious slaughter).

The Qur'an is also clear as to what is not permitted:

* Meat from swine, carrion (dead /rotting carcass), carnivorous animals/birds, and
blood.

* Animals that have been sacrificed to other gods.

e Animals that have not been fed on a natural diet.

e Alcohol - in context of meat production - alcohol based cleaners and solvents for
hand wash or equipment cleaning.

Pivotal Issue: Stunning

* The Qur'an does not expressly forbid stunning (animal must be alive).
This manifests itself with differences of opinion within Muslim communities and
consequently there is no single authoritative body in the UK representing a single agreed
definition/ standard for Halal. This has led to divided supply options and competing
‘regulatory’ regimes.

Issues for public bodies:

* The UK's legal position on religious slaughter.
e Stunned or not stunned Halal - supply options and animal welfare matters (recent
research & views from the RSPCA & FAWC).

* Labelling.
* Possibility for a single supply option that respects both Halal and Non-Halal
consumers

* Halal accrediting/regulatory organisations

Legislation

* EU/UKlaw requires farm animals to be stunned prior to slaughter.

* Exemption for religious slaughter : Schedule 12 of The Welfare of Animals
(Slaughter or Killing) Regulations 1995 (S1 731) Jewish & Muslim.

» Significant meat producing countries such as Denmark (EU) and New Zealand
legally mandate pre-stunning even for Halal slaughter.

The ability of the animal to feel pain following stunning is the subject of much debate and
academic study and the exemptions to stunning are opposed by organisations such as the
RSPCA.

One supply option for both Halal and Non-Halal consumers

Page 44



Regulation exists to ensure meats labelled Halal are authentic (Trade Descriptions etc),
however there is no legal requirement for non-Halal meat to be labelled so, or to be
labelled stunned or not stunned at slaughter. It is estimated that 40% of poultry and 30%
of lamb consumed in the UK meets Halal specifications. Halal meat is therefore routinely
served to non-muslims and this can lead to objections from other faith groups

Halal meat served to everybody - a simple service solution?

e More than 200 schools use only Halal meat . LCC FOI request Aug 10.

* Top councils for Halal-only meat: Tower Hamlets 103; Waltham Forest 44;
Westminster 20; Harrow 10; Herefordshire 9; Camden 6; Slough 5; Bolton 3; Surrey
2; Leeds 2; Wandsworth 2, Hertfordshire 2.

* Sports fans are unknowingly being served Halal meat: All beef, chicken and lamb at
Wembly, Ascot and Twickenham is Halal.

e Whitbread which owns Costa Coffee shops and Premier Inn hotels said 80 per cent
of its chicken is Halal

Accreditation / Regulation

There is no single agreed standard for Halal therefore no single authoritative UK
accrediting body for validating authenticity.

e The World Halal Council (WHC) was established in Dec 99 aiming for an
international Halal certification standard.

e There has been an increasing trend for local government departments to take
charge of Halal certification as a result of the increasing demand for Halal exports.

* Examples incl: Malaysia, Thailand, Indonesia, Singapore, Philippines and this has
added further complications to agreeing a global standard.

Some certification bodies purely address the religious authenticity of the
products/production and not food safety i.e., BRC/STS/SALSA .

The UK has in excess of 20 different Halal certification bodies. Some permit the use of
stunning while others (Halal Monitoring Committee and the Muslim Council of Britain)
firmly reject such practice. By way of example:

Halal Food Authority | Halal Monitoring Committee
(HFA) (HMCQ)

Status Not for profit Not for profit

Established 1994 2003

Coverage UK UK

Labelling Yes Yes

Inspection / Monitoring Annual licence with [ Employment of a HMC
unannounced inspections Monitor - continuous 24/7

Page 45



Stunning permitted? Yes No

Approved outlets | 20 slaughterhouses, 21 [ 25 butchers in the NW, other
(excludes restaurants & | food processors regions also except Scotland &
takeaways) Ireland at present.

Schools n/a 3 certified schools in Blackburn

European Halal Development Agency (EHDA)
The EHDA launched the European Halal Standard (EHS) in 2009:

» Auditincorporates food safety as well as Halal authenticity so is akin to BRC & EFSIS
(European Food Safety Inspection Service).

* Third party qualified food technologists audit - not the EHDA themselves.

» The EHS allows for both stunned or non-stunned slaughter provided there is clarity
in labelling.

* Relatively new standard uptake/popularity has yet to be established

Defining a defensible procurement solution:

Local authorities are often forced to balance potentially conflicting requirements for the
supply of Halal food.

The school meal provider should ensure that they fully understand their customer base
(religious diversity) and the religious food requirements of those customers. They should
also ensure that they understand the sensitivities around slaughter (stun vs non-stun).
Research conducted in schools by APSE’s best value consultancy uncovered cultural
misunderstandings around food handling that inadvertently led some pupils to reject
meat that they considered no longer Halal

Be fully aware of existing supply arrangements:

» Current purchases - religiously/Halal slaughtered whether or not labelled Halal?

* Media attention & FOI requests.

*  Your supplier should have full traceability on the products and be able to advise if
the product is Halal (stunned or not).

» Cross reference policies i.e., ethical purchasing policies; free range eggs, or farm
assured meats. Take care not to disregard the likely concerns of non-Muslim
communities, or create inequalities (fresh/frozen).

Understand the statutory/legal obligations as a public body:

¢ To achieve Best Value (Local Government Act 1999)
e  To comply with the Public Contracts Regulations 2006

Page 46



4.0

* SLAs and consultation with regional Council of Mosques
* Obligation to provide school meals that are nutritionally beneficial.

Tendering

A local authority (LA) cannot specify a restrictive Halal standard (either by reference to a
non-mainstream accreditation or by prescribing in detail the slaughter/ production
methodology). To do so would lead to a high risk of challenge for distorting/restricting
competition and discriminating against other Halal accreditations.

An example which arguably distorts competition and is likely to fail to achieve Best Value is
to mandate no-stunning when it is known the majority of Halal slaughters in the UK
employ stunning. An Halal procurement exercise should ideally be opened up to the
whole of the Halal accredited market (and not to one specific standard).

The LA can however specify that the product is identifiable as Halal (labelled) but cannot
specify which particular label (would have to state ‘or equivalent’).

A contracting authority may lay down special conditions relating to social and
environmental issues provided:

» they relate to the performance of the contract

» orforgoods - the characteristics, performance or production process
* they're compatible with EU law (equality, non-discrimination etc)

* they're advised in the contract notice or specification.

If a LA was opposed to non-stunned slaughter then it is permissible to mandate stunned
slaughter in a tender because this is the desired method under the EU directive:

So to mandate stunning:

*  Would not distort competition as most Halal slaughters in the UK employ stunning.
e Just as it is permissible to specify 'free range' when it comes to eggs, the
requirement of stunning relates to the 'production method'.

Interestingly the Food Standards Agency was unable to find any justification for favouring
a particular definition of Halal and their stance remains that unless the particular Muslim
community to be served can demonstrate that certain forms of Halal conflict with Sharia
Law then all should be allowed.

APSE Comment

APSE cannot give an opinion as to what sort of Halal is the correct sort of Halal and it
would be inappropriate for us to do so. Until a widely agreed standard emerges, local
authorities should not specify a particular accreditation body in a tender document.

Page 47



Again it is not for APSE to specify whether animals should be stunned before slaughter,
however it is right that individual authorities determine their own ethical policy on the
subject and that their procurement of Halal meat reflects this.

It has to be remembered that whatever local agreements exist on procurement of food
with sections of the community, contractual terms are automatically void if they conflict
with national or EU procurement law.

Rob Bailey
Principal Advisor

Page 48



Appendix B

Lancashire County Council's policy on
the supply of halal meat to schools -
consultation 2018

Summary report — June 2018

Lancasbhir
ancasese

: )
www.lancashire.gov.uk Council & f)\'))
)

&

)

Page 49



Lancashire County Council's policy on the supply of halal meat to schools —

consultation report 2018

Contents
1. EXECULIVE SUMMAIY ...coiiiiiiiiiie e e e et e e e e e e e e e et e e e e e e eeeennnes 3
1.1 Key fINAINGS .cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 3
1.1.1 Demographic information ... 3
1.1.2 Views on the proposal...........ccoovvvviiiiiiiii e 3
INEFOTUCTION e 5
MetROdOIOGY ..cooiiiiiiiiiii 5
3.1  Fieldwork period and respondent numbers............ccccooeeeiiiiiiiiiiineeeen, 5
3.2 Analysis Of OPEN QUESTIONS .......uuuuuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiieeeeeeaees 6
3.3  Responses using the Lancashire Council of Mosques template........... 6
G N I o 11 =i [0 o 1 8
4. Main consultation fiNdiNgS ....cccoooiiiiiiii e 9
4.1  Demographic infOrmMation ..........coooeeeiiiiiiieeeeeeeee 9
4.2  Agreeing or disagreeing with the proposal............cccoooeeviiiiiiiiiinneeenn. 10
5. Other responses to the consultation ............cceiiiiiiiiieceicc e 15
Appendix 1: Demographic BreakdOWn.........cccccvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeee 16
Appendix 2: Other responses to the proposal .........cccoovvviiiiiiiieccceeeeee e, 19

L] 2 L]
Page 50



Lancashire County Council's policy on the supply of halal meat to schools —

consultation report 2018

1.Executive summary

Lancashire County Council's current policy is to provide both stunned and un-
stunned halal meat to schools. We currently supply around twenty-seven
Lancashire schools, where the governing body has the option to provide either
stunned or un-stunned halal in their school meals. Un-stunned halal is provided in
the provision of school meals for some of the 12,000 children in those schools.
There is currently no demand for stunned halal meat from any school in
Lancashire.

The consultation sought to understand people's views on the proposal to provide
only stunned halal meat to schools. It asked respondents if they agree or disagree
with the proposal and why, what impact they think the proposal will have and if
they think anything regarding the proposal could be done differently.

This report summarises the response to the consultation concerning Lancashire
County Council's policy on the supply of halal meat to schools.

For the consultation, online questionnaires could be accessed from
www.lancashire.gov.uk.

The fieldwork ran for four weeks from 7 February 2018 until 7 March 2018. In
total, 8,545 questionnaire responses were received.

1.1 Key findings
1.1.1 Demographic information

e Over half of respondents (53%) said that they were responding to the
consultation as a Lancashire resident.

e A third of respondents (33%) said that they were responding to the
consultation as a parent/carer of a Lancashire school pupil.

e Over two-fifths of respondents (45%) said they are Muslim, about a quarter
of respondents (24%) said they are Christian and about one in six
respondents (17%) said that they have no religion.

e Three-fifths of respondents (60%) said that they have children in their
household.

1.1.2 Views on the proposal

¢ About two-thirds of respondents (65%) strongly disagree with the proposal
and a third of respondents (33%) strongly agree with the proposal.

¢ Nine-tenths of Muslim respondents (90%) said that they disagree with the
proposal.

e Of those respondents who strongly disagree with the proposal over two-

fifths (44%) said that they are Muslim. Nearly two-fifths (38%) of
respondents who strongly disagree with the proposal didn't answer the
guestion about their religion or answered 'prefer not to say'.

L] 3 L]
Page 51


http://www.lancashire.gov.uk/

Lancashire County Council's policy on the supply of halal meat to schools —

consultation report 2018

e The most common reasons given for agreeing or disagreeing with the
proposal were because of animal welfare reasons (40%) and because
stunned slaughter is not halal (39%).

e Of the respondents who agree with the proposal and who stated their
reasons why, over three-quarters (77%) said that they agree with the
proposal for animal welfare reasons.

e The respondents who disagree with the proposal and who stated their
reasons why can broadly be divided into two groups. One group can
broadly be categorised as disagreeing with the proposal because they
support un-stunned halal being supplied to schools in Lancashire (70%).
The other group of respondents can broadly be categorised as disagreeing
with the proposal because they don't think any halal meat should be
supplied to schools in Lancashire (30%).

e When asked about the impact of the proposal the most common responses
were children will stop eating meat in school (27%), adverse effect on our
health/diet (20%), would lose confidence/trust in the system (20%), it will
remove our choice (18%) and feel better knowing the animal hasn't
suffered and was slaughtered according to British animal welfare standards
(18%).

e Muslim respondents who are a parent/carer of a Lancashire school pupil
most commonly said that the impact of the proposal on them would be that
their children would stop eating meat at school (37%) and it would be
inconvenient and more expensive (32%).

. 4 .
Page 52



Lancashire County Council's policy on the supply of halal meat to schools —

consultation report 2018

2.Introduction

Lancashire County Council's current policy is to provide both stunned and un-
stunned halal meat to schools. We currently supply around twenty-seven
Lancashire schools, where the governing body has the option to provide either
stunned or un-stunned halal in their school meals. Un-stunned halal is provided in
the provision of school meals for some of the 12,000 children in those schools.
There is currently no demand for stunned halal meat from any school in
Lancashire.

The consultation sought to understand people's views on the proposal to provide
only stunned halal meat to schools. It asked respondents if they agree or disagree
with the proposal and why, what impact they think the proposal will have and if they
think anything regarding the proposal could be done differently.

3.Methodology

This report summarises the response to the consultation concerning Lancashire
County Council's policy on the supply of halal meat to schools.

3.1 Fieldwork period and respondent numbers

The fieldwork ran for four weeks from 7 February 2018 until 7 March 2018 and the
online consultation questionnaire could be accessed from
www.lancashire.gov.uk/haveyoursay.

In total, 8,545 questionnaire responses were received; 7,840 online and 705 paper
copies.

We received 47 other responses to the consultation — 10 letters and 37 emails. The
majority were from members of the public (44). Three responses were also
received from organisations, a response from the Board of Deputies of British
Jews, a response from Lancashire Council of Mosques and a response from the
National Secular Society.

. 5 .
Page 53


http://www.lancashire.gov.uk/

Lancashire County Council's policy on the supply of halal meat to schools —

consultation report 2018
3.2 Analysis of open questions

The questionnaire asked four open questions

e Why do you say this? (as a follow up question to, ‘how strongly do you agree
or disagree with the proposal to provide only stunned halal meat to schools?")

e What impact would this proposal have on you?

e What, if anything, do you think could be done differently in providing halal
meat to schools?

e |s there anything else you would like to tell us?

Responses to the open questions have been classified against a coding frame to
quantify the qualitative data. This coded and quantified data is presented in this
report.

Coding is the process of combining the issues, themes and ideas in qualitative
open responses into a set of codes. The codes are given meaningful names that
relate to the issue, so that during close reading of responses it can be seen when
similar issues relate to a similar code. As the analysis process continues the coding
frame is added to and refined as new issues are raised by respondents. All
responses to open questions are then coded against the coding frame, and can be
subsequently analysed as quantitative data.

22,320 written responses were received across the consultation questionnaire's
four open questions.

An external research company with coding experience completed this part of the
data processing. The company was

Feedback Market ResearchLtd
Fieldhouse Farm

Main St

Sigglesthorne

Hull

HU11 5QA

3.3 Responses using the Lancashire Council of Mosques
template

In addition to submitting a response to the consultation as an organisation,
Lancashire Council of Mosques (LCM) promoted the consultation and encouraged
local people to respond.

LCM promoted the consultation on http://www.lancashiremosques.com where a
template was provided suggesting how people could respond to the consultation
guestions. We received about 1,300 online responses from people who chose to
follow this template. It is difficult to put an exact figure on the number of

L] 6 L]
Page 54


http://www.lancashiremosques.com/

Lancashire County Council's policy on the supply of halal meat to schools —

consultation report 2018

respondents who chose to respond in the way suggested by LCM, as although
many respondents exactly copied the wording, many other respondents chose to
phrase their comments in a slightly different way and/or include their own additional
points.

We also received 705 paper copies of the consultation questionnaire from LCM.
These paper copies had the LCM template responses pre-printed on them.
Respondents signed or printed their name on their form to indicate this was how
they wished to respond to the consultation. These printed questionnaires did not
include the online questionnaire's ‘about you' demographic questions.

The template suggested by LCM was as follows:

How strongly do you agree or disagree with the proposal to
provide only stunned halal meat to schools?

Answer: Strongly disagree
Why do you say this?

Answer: Stunned meat is against the teachings of my faith. And it
is also unhealthy.

What impact would this have on you?

Answer: We will stop eating meat
It will make me lose confidence in the system
It will have an adverse effect on my health and removes
my choice

What, if anything, do you think could be done differently in
providing halal meat to school?

Answer: Keep providing the unstunned meat.
Is there anything else you would like to tell us?
Answer: Why do you keep opening this issue.
The responses from respondents who chose to respond in the way suggested by

LCM have been analysed and presented in this report in the same way as all other
consultation responses.

. 7 .
Page 55



Lancashire County Council's policy on the supply of halal meat to schools —

consultation report 2018

3.4 Limitations

The findings presented in this report are not representative of the views of the
population of Lancashire and should only be taken to represent the views of people
who were made aware of the consultation, and who had the opportunity and felt
compelled to respond.

In charts or tables where responses do not add up to 100%, this is due to multiple
responses or computer rounding.

The 705 paper copies of the consultation questionnaire submitted by Lancashire
Council of Mosques didn't include responses to the questions in 'about you' section
of consultation questionnaire. In the analysis included in this report it has been
assumed that these 705 respondents were Muslim.

L] 8 L]
Page 56



Lancashire County Council's policy on the supply of halal meat to schools —

consultation report 2018

4.Main consultation findings
4.1 Demographic information

A full breakdown of the response to the questions asked in the 'about you' section
of the consultation questionnaire is presented in appendix 1. However, a brief
summary of the key information is described below.

Respondents were asked if they were responding to the consultation as a
Lancashire resident and/or in any other capacity. For example, a parent/carer of a
Lancashire pupil. Over half of respondents (53%) responded to the consultation
as a Lancashire resident. A third of respondents (33%) responded to the
consultation as a parent/carer of a Lancashire school pupil.

Nearly half of respondents (49%) said they are male and over two-fifths (44%)
said they are female.

Nearly three-fifths of respondents (56%) said that they are aged 35-64 and a fifth
of respondents (20%) said that they are aged 20-34.

Over two-fifths of respondents (45%) said they are Muslim, about a quarter of
respondents (24%) said they are Christian and about one in six respondents
(17%) said that they have no religion.

Three-fifths of respondents (60%) said that they have children in their household.

L] 9 L]
Page 57



Lancashire County Council's policy on the supply of halal meat to schools —

consultation report 2018

4.2 Agreeing or disagreeing with the proposal

First, respondents were presented with the following statement...

"The county council is considering its current policy for the supply of halal meat to
schools. The council currently provides both stunned and un-stunned halal meat
in a small number of schools, providing this service for school meals where there
is the demand for it. The county council is considering the proposal to provide only
stunned halal meat to schools."

Respondents were then asked how strongly they agree or disagree with the
proposal to provide only stunned halal meat to schools. About two-thirds of
respondents (65%) strongly disagree with the proposal and a third of respondents
(33%) strongly agree with the proposal.

Chart 1 - How strongly do you agree or disagree with the proposal to
provide only stunned halal meat to schools?

1% <1%

<1%

33% “‘ 65%

1%
M Strongly agree
OTend to agree
O Neither agree nor disagree
OTend to disagree
@ Strongly disagree

O Unsure/don't know

Base: all respondents (8,499)

Nine-tenths of Muslim respondents (90%) said that they disagree with the
proposal.

Of those respondents who strongly disagree with the proposal over two-fifths
(44%) said that they are Muslim. Nearly two-fifths (38%) of respondents who
strongly disagree with the proposal didn't answer the question about their religion
or answered 'prefer not to say'.

. 10 .
Page 58



Lancashire County Council's policy on the supply of halal meat to schools —

consultation report 2018

Respondents were then asked why they agree or disagree with the proposal. Just
over four-fifths of respondents (83%) answered this follow up question.

The most common responses to this question was for animal welfare reasons
(40%) and because stunned slaughter is not halal (39%).
Chart 2 - Why do you say this?

Animal welfare reasons - unstunned slaughter is not humane 40%

Religious belief - stunned slaughter is not halal 39%

Halal is healthier (blood is fully drained) 20%
Cannot have different laws for different religious beliefs in

0,
this country 16%

Halal meat should not be used in schools - especially without 9%
prior knowledge ?

All halal meat should be banned/not served in UK 8%

All animals should be stunned before slaughter 8%

Freedom of choice/religion - not for the council to interfere - 6%

Muslim children should be offered unstunned halal meat in - sy
schools, so they are not deprived of warm meals ?

Other comment 5%

It's unlawful to feed unstunned halal meat to non-muslims . 3%

Unstunned slaughter is better (eg clean, more humane) . 3%

Halal meat can be stunned - individuals only need to say a . 3%
prayer before consumption to make it halal °

Not stunning before slaughter is against UK law . 3%

Members of other religions can't eat halal meat . 3%

Reduce the amount meat used in schools (eg offer more

. . 2%
vegetarian options)

Base: all respondents (7,069)

Of those respondents who agree with the proposal and who stated their reasons
why, over three-quarters (77%) said that they agree with the proposal for animal
welfare reasons.

The respondents who disagree with the proposal and who stated their reasons why
can broadly be divided into two groups. One group can broadly be categorised as
disagreeing with the proposal because they support un-stunned halal being
supplied to schools in Lancashire (70%). The other group of respondents can
broadly be categorised as disagreeing with the proposal because they don't think
any halal meat should be supplied to schools in Lancashire (30%).

. 11 .
Page 59



Lancashire County Council's policy on the supply of halal meat to schools —

consultation report 2018

Respondents were then asked what impact this proposal would have on them.

The most common responses to this question were children will stop eating meat in
school (27%), adverse effect on our health/diet (20%), would lose confidence/trust
in the system (20%), it will remove our choice (18%) and feel better knowing the
animal hasn't suffered and was slaughtered according to British animal welfare
standards (18%).

Chart 3 - What impact would this proposal have on you?

Children will stop eating meat at school 27%

Adverse effect on our health/diet 20%

Would lose confidence/trust in the system 20%

It will remove our choices 19%

Feel better knowing the animal hasn't suffered and was

0,
slaughtered according to British animal welfare standards 18%

A huge impact on my kids/family 15%

Inconvenient and more expensive for me as my children 15%
would stop having school dinners ?
We would not eat halal meat-disagree with it/against our

beliefs

10%

Other comment 9%

It would mean its not halal so can't eat it as against my
religion

8%

As we are a majority Christian country with Christian

0,
values that we should stand up for 7%

Nothing 7%

It denies our basic democratic rights/choices/beliefs 6%

| feel it is a step towards a complete ban of halal meat - 3%

It would make me feel better and more happy/satisfied - 3%
that council are listening ?

It will enable my children to eat school meals with a happy 0
conscience - 3%
It would make muslim children feel left out and

0,
discriminated against 2%

It disgusts/offends me 2%

It would give me peace of mind . 2%

Base: all respondents (6,686)

Muslim respondents who are a parent/carer of a Lancashire school pupil most
commonly said that the impact of the proposal on them would be that their children
would stop eating meat at school (37%) and it would be inconvenient and more
expensive (32%).

. 12 .
Page 60



Lancashire County Council's policy on the supply of halal meat to schools —

consultation report 2018

Respondents were then asked what, if anything, they thought could be done
differently in providing halal meat to schools.

The most common responses to this question were keep providing un-stunned
halal meat (36%) and no-halal in UK schools/the UK (26%).

Chart 4 - What, if anything, do you think could be done differently
in providing halal meat to schools?

36%

Keep providing unstunned halal meat

26%

No Halal in UK schools/the UK - ban it

Regardless of religion all animals should be stunned before
slaughter according to UK law

A choice should be given - let schools/parents have their - 9%
own informed choice ?

Cut out the meat option or increase the vegetarian/vegan - 7%
options available °

Have a contract/buy from a local butchers/and suppliers
that HMC certified

Take own food/packed lunches - more support for families
. I -
bring packed lunches

Halal meat should only be given to muslim children - - 4%
import it and charge it to them ?

No cross contamination - keep it separate and all halal . 2%
meat should be clearly labelled °

LMC to consult with muslim community and take guidance l 2%
from religious leaders/HMC/Mosques °

Nothing/Don't know

|
N
X

Educate people as to what halal meat actually is I 2%

Stricter regulations and a better governing body to I 2%
oversee the process ’

A blessing/prayer is all that is required over the meat I 2%

A survey should be provided for schools - should be an

0,
open and transparent consultation with all the facts 2%

Other comment I 1%

Base: all respondents (6,379)

. 13 .
Page 61



Lancashire County Council's policy on the supply of halal meat to schools —

consultation report 2018

Finally, respondents were asked if there was anything else they wanted to tell us.
The most common responses to this question were, why change things and keep

opening this issue (32%) and all animals must be stunned and animal welfare
should come before religion (18%).

Chart 5 - Is there anything else you would like to tell us?

Why change things and why keep opening this issue 32%
All animals must be stunned and animal welfare should

- 18%
come before religion

Stop giving preference to one minority religion ie Islam (we
are a majority Christian country)

13%
Nothing more 12%

Other comment 11%

It is very important for the Muslim community that you keep - 8%
providing non stunned halal-HMC certified ?
All halal goods should be banned in the UK - 7%
Everyone deserves to be listened to and heard - should have
an option - freedom of choice/religion

Halal meat should not be allowed in our schools - education
-~
should be secular

Be brave and make a stand - lead by example and set a - 4%
precedence °

Halal meat should not be fed to non-Muslims - it is an
offence

3%
| am disgusted you are asking this - this council is a - 3%
disgrace/unprofessional and should not be in charge ?

Non stunned halal meat is healthier/hygienic and helps with . 3%
a varied diet for the kids ?

People/parents should be informed so can make their own . 3%
informed decisions ’

Going down a very dangerous road with this - could lead to
2o [l 2%
unease/resentment/further division

Stop targeting the Muslim faith/community - no more
islamophobia

2%

Please sort this issue out asap and make the right decision . 2%

Base: all respondents (4,850)

. 14 .
Page 62



Lancashire County Council's policy on the supply of halal meat to schools —

consultation report 2018

5.0ther responses to the consultation

In total, we received 47 other responses to the consultation — 10 letters and 37
emails. The majority were from members of the public (44). Nearly all these
responses from members of the public supported the proposal. Only one
respondent opposed the proposal.

We also received three responses from organisations, a response from the
Board of Deputies of British Jews, a response from Lancashire Council of
Mosques and a response from the National Secular Society. The responses from
the Board of Deputies of British Jews and Lancashire Council of Mosques
opposed the proposal and the response from the National Secular Society
supported the proposal.

All these responses can be found in full in Appendix 2.

. 15 .
Page 63



Lancashire County Council's policy on the supply of halal meat to schools —

consultation report 2018

Appendix 1. Demographic Breakdown

Table 1 - Are you responding to this proposal as...?

% No.
A Lancashire resident 53% 4,076
A parent/carer of a Lancashire school pupil 33% 2,497
Other 22% 1,657
A member of a voluntary, community or faith organisation 6% 467
A pupil at a Lancashire school 5% 353
A local business owner 4% 296
An employee of Lancashire County Council 3% 196
A member of staff at a Lancashire school 2% 187
A representative of a voluntary, community or faith 2%
organisation 159
A school governor at a Lancashire school 1% 97
A representative of a private sector company/organisation 1% 87
An elected member of a Lancashire district council 0% 26
An elected member of a parish or town council in 0%
Lancashire 18
An elected member of Lancashire County Council 0% 16
Total 7,660

Table 2- Areyou...?

% No.

Female 44% 2,323
Male 49% 2,614
Prefer not to say 7% 353
Total 5,290

. 16 .
Page 64



Lancashire County Council's policy on the supply of halal meat to schools —

consultation report 2018

Table 3- What was your age on your last birthday?

Page 65

% No.
Under 16 3% 145
16-19 2% 132
20-34 20% 1,074
35-64 56% 2,985
65-74 9% 496
75+ 1% 71
Prefer not to say 8% 415
Total 5,318
Table 4 - Which best describes your ethnic background?
% No.
White 43% 2,287
Asian or Asian British 34% 1,806
Black or Black British 1% 33
Mixed 2% 113
Other 2% 114
Prefer not to say 18% 954
Total 5,307
Table 5- What is your religion?
% No.
Muslim 45% 2,707
Christian 24% 1,448
No religion 17% 1,010
Buddhist <1% 21
Jewish <1% 15
Sikh <1% 13
Hindu <1% 8
Any other religion 1% 49
Prefer not to say 12% 744
Total 6,015
17




Lancashire County Council's policy on the supply of halal meat to schools —

consultation report 2018

Table 6 - Arethere any children or young people in your household aged under

20?
% No.
No, but expecting 3% 149
Yes, aged under 5 19% 1,032
Yes, aged 5-8 22% 1,188
Yes, aged 9-11 20% 1,056
Yes, aged 12-16 22% 1,157
Yes, aged 17-19 11% 566
No children aged under 20 24% 1,270
Prefer not to say 16% 846
Total 5,305

. 18 .
Page 66



Lancashire County Council's policy on the supply of halal meat to schools —

consultation report 2018

Appendix 2: Other responses to the proposal

These responses are presented in the order they were received

Response 1

_ - 2% 12.8017

ﬁ: C//i- @tfa]L 2#[1"8!" r‘all\u./@./f &

e Lolal mear
7.1%55/% . @(0[470 g//uef m,c /Dﬁ‘/‘ah

Appés
M[;ﬁ, f&ﬁf%e th Géf// b

ﬂwﬂd afways plrehas
"i“ g waym%zrw 7[0* mw wdw

W heier
0% o Rso acﬁe /ﬁw Lol
\/1(4,,_ e YooK @ @Mé /LQf' cause

deserve e Kindtlr
;fﬁi‘g‘, ;ér v 6/7 and ol s o o€

{;I; “Z‘é"fd I a // as ﬂheaf K ///ad M@u

o aihGlP & fhessed & foupher !

foell doke O IOKIAp & Stound .

Youss aucevel )

. 19 .
Page 67



Lancashire County Council's policy on the supply of halal meat to schools —

consultation report 2018

Response 2

Hang ia theve Geofr — 141y Shawelull
Hhay geofle W authority haven't Taicen
Haiy Stand. bekave Yot - 1 pPeople and
busivess' ¢ conbinue.” fo take o @a§\1
WM On- with talal Meal- | +Haen
Hy ‘Sare o (mimal t;d\ﬂo«a o;\ Ha s

r vesles Zoo veay) .
pucine Q\/@M Showldh t‘?@gaiveﬂ ol
N4 and 1'm O Cavel

Qa\(f\fdi | abowy war ! %

e20
Page 68



Lancashire County Council's policy on the supply of halal meat to schools —

consultation report 2018

Response 3

PeaR CouncibieR DRER

MANY —TRANKS -T0 YouRELE AN ALL -THE OTeR
Coord®y CoudciLLoR® WHo \otews AGAINST -fAE

PRActice of BeRuide HALAL mMear Whicd Had Not
Beed PRe - STunded

How AarlMoNe CAd e n FAVOUR. OF 1oRTORIMG ANMALYR
1o DreTh FoR WHATENER ReASod Escales ME,

Mg VELFARE oF THE ANIMALS sHould BE e MAW
Concell AND T Wolfe ans RRAY At -fins Iecsied

Witk Not Be RedeRsed (A Tle FutuRe,

Wiet e DECision WAs TAKEL 1o AlLow ARIMALS
«o Bec TReEATED (A Sucw A CRUEL W&y No onE
WAS Colsulred AT &t -TiME Unlake Tae Coodal

Fok MOSQUES Whose oPinlods APPeAR To BE
ABOVE OTHERS .

VRS SincerelY

. 21 .
Page 69



Lancashire County Council's policy on the supply of halal meat to schools —

consultation report 2018

Response 4

B oo oyl ot
7 = let

by L LTI ) L insabctg 5t
/W& here a [Z,”}/M” Sal "”9 W%ﬂ%@n?? Lonste i

D2
Page 70



Lancashire County Council's policy on the supply of halal meat to schools —

consultation report 2018

Response 5

Veterinary Surgeon

ER Al

9" November, 2017

Geoffrey Driver Esq.,
Leader,

Lancashire County Council,
PO Box 78,

County Hall,

Fishergate,

PRESTON,

Lancs., PR1 8XJ.

Congratulations on your efforts to have halal meat banned in the county, or at least labelied os
such.

Most reasonable electors in Lancashire accept that it is a medieval practice and without any
apparent basis in science.

| am sure that you already had background information prior to your proposal, but | thought the
enclosed measured arficle from a respected veterinary jounol might be useful in arguing your
case. The British Veterinary Association (BVA) is o non-confrontational organisation to which
most veterinary surgeons belong. Lord Trees, who was Sandy Trees in another life, is o well-
raspectad academic and Dean of the Faculty of Veterinary Medicine at the University of
Liverpool.

Moare power to your elbow and good luck.

s ke

«23 .
Page 71



Lancashire County Council's policy on the supply of halal meat to schools —

consultation report 2018

Response 6

Lancashire County Council
PO Box 78 County Hall
Fishergate, Preston
Lancoshire

PR1 8XJ
2 Janvary 2018
Dear Clir Geoff Driver CBE,

Firstly, | wish 1o commend you and Lancoshire County Council in trying fo implement ofl schools in your
authority to serve meat from non-halsl suppliers. | is refreshing fo hear you are Irging 1o make a stand for
the vast mojority ogainst this cruel and unnecessary slaughter methad,

You have the overwhelming support of the British Public. My porents were not bom in the UK, however they
both whole heorily agree no enimal should die o peinful deoth based purely on ‘religicus’ belief as do 1.

Pleose keep up the momentum and do not allow some quarters [who do not speck for ‘us'] fo silence the
animals’ screams and general public’s compassionate voice.

Balow | have quoted some public opinions in response to this, source:
hip:/fwww.dailymail .co.uk/news/aricle-520807 5/Loncashire-mosques-legal-oction-ogoinst-council . halol-
ban. himl#ixz2525labdHb.

The number of green ‘best rated’ comments, show feeling on this subject maotter is very strong |over 7,783).
The words written speck for themselves in tarms of how the public feel obout Abdul Homid Quureshi's (CEO
of the Lancashire Council of Masques (LCM)) idictic end without merit stonce.

| have also written to the Sacratary of State for Environment, Food ond Rural Affoirs - Michoel Gove MP 1o
see whot he can do to help assist in this matter to ensure animels do not need to suffer this unnecessary ond
cruel sloughter, | enclose my letier writter 1o Mr Gove for your reference. As Mr Gave has soid in his own
words: ‘oll animals should be freated with the uimas! respect af oll slages of life subject to the highest
possibie weffore stondords’.

Newest ] Oldest Best rated ~ Worstrated i ‘
g, Viewall

The comments below have been moderated In advance.

| G| onticus Reading, Unged Kaingdom, 3 days ago

No need lo consult It's a berbaric stoneage practice thet hes no place in the modem world. It fles
n the face of our anli crugity legisiation. It they are that devoul then go toa mu S | | m country and
Stop trying to tum oul inte one

Clichtorase <> 7880 O 220
2 of 5 replies | See all replies:

e 2/ o
Page 72



Lancashire County Council's policy on the supply of halal meat to schools —

consultation report 2018

ﬁ mysieybamp The slreets d Kngdam, 3
‘ Not as hurtful and negatve as the poor animais endure. Ban halal for the whole UK
FOBEBEE  chhiwoe ¢ e O 176
m sceplic

The majority of the Entish population do not agree with the siaughier of animals i the halet way,
Lhey and thair children should not be forced into eating il edher at school of in restaurants. The
same goas for halal meal on sale in supermarkets that is not marked as such If perents do not
want thewr children 10 eat non halal meat at school, they should instruct their chiidren not o eal the
meeal thay can continue to feed o their children at home Good for Lancashire County Councd,
hope all other UK councils follow thewr [ead

Clicktorate < 5164 O 110

ey i Ut o 3

The halal meat shouldn't be forcad on the non-Musiim population. end shoud be banned in ths
country, because off suffering of animais!

Clicktorate ¢ 5507 & 84

m Carchne | imousin, Mra

Thay were not consulled, weil what about all the parents of the chidren who were served this who
are agains! it So theyr feslings were hurt, wall nol as much as e animals they bar bancaly sl au
ghter who sulfer the most hor end ous pain when ki led Well done Lancashire Councl, now ban it
n avery school |1 should be outlawed in a country that sugposed 10 support anmal weifare

Cllektorata <) 5258 O 92

ﬁ\l ScotMk k. Unded Kingdom, 3 days ago

Were we asked if it was OK to have halal meat served g our Schools in the first place?

NIRRT cickone 0524 O
M Web349 rorn Yarks, United Kkegdom. 3 days ago

This 15 a good decision and should ba mada law for avaryana

Clicktorate < 4988 < 152

e 25
Page 73



Lancashire County Council's policy on the supply of halal meat to schools —

consultation report 2018

;Ca‘w Wembley |
Hope the courts don't grve in o this abhorrent practice

Clicktorate <> 4476 ¢ 92

ArchbishopBanterbury oo ton, Unsed Susties. 3 days ago j

You don't need 1o be consulted But, nol happy with the law of the land? Then move back o the
land you came from

: . ROBBE  coome oo o7
ﬂ Citizan f s 2

The UK massas were nol consulted when they starled making the practice of Helal the
norm s0 why would we need 1o ask a MINORITY ike Muslims ifwe sfop 2 Why aren't
the RSPA rakng the whole thing 10 court as the practics s CRUEL 10 animafs

Clicktorate <> 1458 < 6

There was ¢ recant patition:
https://www.chonge.org/p/rt-hon-theresa-maoy-mp-io-bon-halal-sloughter-in-the-uk
In which over 209,705 people ogreed with the subject Hitle.

Screenshot overeal.

Miltionisg Prima )

2 2d 4 ot

To ban halal and Kosher slaughter in the UK

1

) Petition Closed

IR eamEss

K1 SharecnFacsbook ~

Halal and Kosher slaughter was the onty way known to kil

ANIMALS far food Howevesthat was thoutands of years aga.

3 Send o Tacobook mevsage

Times have changedthis practice has no place ina cwvilised
society, The cruel slaughterwhich unqualified people perform on =1 Send on email 10 e s
a daily basis needs to be banned in this countty. Our slaughter

D Wicnond 0o vrs o Aabi soss

| sincerely hope you ore successiul in the implementation of introducing non-helcl meat 1o schools and
would be interested if you could keep me updotad on motters. Thank you Geoff.

Y, sincaraly,

e 26 o
Page 74



Lancashire County Council's policy on the supply of halal meat to schools —

consultation report 2018

Response 7

\\ BOARD OF DEPUTIES OF

ZX BRITISH JEWS

\

4

31 October 2017

Councillor Geoff Driver CBE
Lancashire County Council
County Hall

Preston

PR1 8XJ

Dear Councillor Driver,

| am writing on behalf of the Board of Deputies of British Jews, the national
representative body of the UK Jewish community.

It is with some concern thal we note coverage of the resolution passed by
Lancashire County Council on Thursday 26" October, concerning the provision of
non-mechanically stunned meat in Lancashire for school meals.

We found the tone of the debate conceming in the context of respecting an inclusive,
diverse and pluralist society. We also believe that the discussion assumed that
mechanical stunning is good while religious slaughter is bad. This could not be
further from the truth, as mechanical methods including drowning, electrocuting and
gassing cause pain and often go wrong, prolonging an animal's suffering.

We would therefore appreciate the opportunity to meet you to discuss the vote and
its implications. | would be grateful if you could send us some dates that you might
be available for this.

Yours sincerely,

Marie van dov 2y

Marie van der Zyl
Vice President

e 27 o
Page 75



Lancashire County Council's policy on the supply of halal meat to schools —

consultation report 2018

Response 8

8-1.-18 .
@w &'\r
éﬁe meaming o
ts %noﬂ Tove ;{15 inalgzs
an

topursue peace qmon_gd‘ Y
nq’HonsT):rn uf't‘h. Lam Herefore
w:«’t'in;\wd Gastresd %.-?{

10 JAN 2019

Chrastmas

0 all 'rnanH‘ nd.

A
desines Fo cause somuch 'fgnss and
qn\(l't'?a %o the. Or thodox Jewith

Community an@ the Mulim ¢ommuni’¥

regaf fh'n? rtual 'kmq'nj whith has

been pratice@ for centuires.
If Your refe/ %o the.

Sunﬁaﬂ{mes Nws q Suna‘lly

e.aq’h‘on‘ about 3 yeais la 40,

a fut page wes Wittt with
Jphobjrq of COws u)rm\inj'\':%)/
et haoing been S’l’unneﬂj&@bﬂj )
c'lfu'sfina'icq'ha hat " stunnl
nol"}hg)xr &t answer |

e hould o Ee,z;dm% al

nJ“ 15

% u;l’ore.s’foR aur peace ) d

anel dllow our @ring tvaldrons

To cortinue, cﬁa’h Teaches (H\Q?'

wtfws'% have to be indto our /
antmals and cai fr our ammak-Rr<t

and Then! cmefor Sthers
C’ﬁnlﬂirﬁ Jowin anti :{)oqq'ian
a‘ fc&eim'nj eace df mind. :

CN&? 4 nué’lj

*28-
Page 76



Lancashire County Council's policy on the supply of halal meat to schools —

consultation report 2018

Response 9

You get my backing on the subject of banning Hala Meat. This is a disgusting
practice and should be banned for the sake of animal welfare.

Response 10

| support your campaign to ban all non-stunned halal meat to schools. The law states
that non-stunned halal meat is not allowed to be served to people unknowingly.
Furthermore, the law states that non-stunned halal meat should not be given to non-
Muslim children and adults. | want the law uphelded.

The law should protect the welfare of all animals (including chickens) and protect

children and adults from being served non-stunned halal meat. It is well-known that
animals that are slaughtered without being stunned first can suffer a prolonged and
cruel death that is contrary to the protection of animal rights and welfare in the UK.

Response 11

I’'m in favour supplying animals slaughtered by full captive bolt for school meals.
Unstunned and recoverable stunned slaughter has been deemed cruel by vets and
other associations. We have fought long and hard in the UK for the least stressful
method of slaughter to see the results being undermined. Sikhs and some other
religions are not allowed to eat ritually slaughtered meat and their rights must be
considered.

Response 12

| think it's wrong that British children are forced to eat non stun Halal meat
unknowingly, and if we can prevent this from happening in our schools and
businesses, you get my backing.

Response 13

| was most disturbed to hear of your reversal of a decision to now allow halal meat to
be served in our schools . | do not agree with the inhuman slaughter methods used
in the preparation of halal meat and also having my granddaughter's right to eat non
halal meat taken away .

Concerned Lancashire resident !

Response 14

| would like to protest against halhal meat being served in our schools. | do not agree
with the slaughter of animals in this way and if it goes ahead | will be sending my
daughter to school with a packed lunch. Unless of course non halal is also available.

e 20 .
Page 77



Lancashire County Council's policy on the supply of halal meat to schools —

consultation report 2018

Response 15

| am against cruel methods of animal slaughter and therefore fully support your
campaign to ban non stunned halal meat from schools.

Response 16

| am writing to you to express my concern about Halal meat being served in our
schools. | am astonished that this has been allowed to happen. This meat is being
fed to children who do not know the nature of the slaughter. It is unfair to force this
on children by stealth.

The Government says in it's own legislation that Non stun Halal is not allowed to be
served to people unknowingly or who are not Muslim.

Britain has a high standard of animal welfare. Non stunned is cruel and unnecessary
and that's if the slaughter goes well. In many instances because the animal puts up
resistance it is a laborious death.

| am an animal lover and | find this completely unacceptable.

Please try your hardest to get this meat removed from our schools. It upsets me that
my beautiful nieces are being forced to eat this meat. | know that they would be very
distressed if they were told about the cruel method of the slaughter.

Response 17

| am utterly appalled that non stun Halal meat is being served to children in schools,
who do not follow the Muslim or Jewish faith and are totally oblivious to the fact that
the poor animal they are eating, had to die in such an abhorrent way.

| understand that Muslim and Jewish people eat non stun Halal meat, because of
their religious beliefs. However, they have lived in European countries for years and
have always managed to source meat which has been slaughtered in accordance
with their religious beliefs. So why are we suddenly having to purchase meat, that
has not been pre-stunned?

At the very least, the meat should be labelled as Halal, so that schools, or the
general public can make an informed choice as to what they are buying.

Animals are sentient beings who feel pain, emotion and grief the same as we do and
| for one, want to be able to choose meat that has been pre-stunned.

Response 18

| am a slaughterman who works in stunned slaughter and will happily sign any paper
to have non halal meat in our schools or even our country. Halal slaughter is barbaric
and should have no place in Any sort of civilised society

e300
Page 78



Lancashire County Council's policy on the supply of halal meat to schools —

consultation report 2018

Response 19

| support your campaign to ban all non-stunned halal meat to schools. The law states
that non-stunned halal meat is not allowed to be served to people unknowingly.
Furthermore, the law states that non-stunned halal meat should not be given to non-
Muslim children and adults. | want the law uphelded.

The law should protect the welfare of all animals (including chickens) and protect
children and adults from being served non-stunned halal meat. It is well-known that
animals that are slaughtered without being stunned first can suffer a prolonged and
cruel death that is contrary to the protection of animal rights and welfare in the UK.

Response 20

Good luck with your fight. Go for it%@?

Response 21

Further to my last e-mail | wholeheartedly support the ban on non-stunned halal
meat being served in Lancashire schools because:

« The Government says in its own legislation that Non stun Halal is not allowed
to be served to people unknowingly or who are not Muslim

« it completely violates the UK's animal welfare standards

« it causes totally unnecessary suffering to the millions of animals killed this way

e People who do not follow a religion that insists on this slaughter should not be
forced to accept it

« If you told the (non-muslim) children how the meat on their plate has been
killed they would stop eating it

« Halal meats are available pre stunned and supplied to supermarkets and
other caterers - and this is perfectly acceptable under Islamic 'law. The
Muslims for the sake of animal welfare should use this compromise.

« If the council of mosques or Muslims are concerned then they must make
alternative arrangements

e In very many European Countries they refuse to serve halal meat to anyone
who is not muslim and halal in the food chain is very tightly controlled.

« | have forwarded this to over 3000 followers on Facebook for them to use as
they see fit.

Please forward this to every councillor in Lancashire County Council on my behalf.

Response 22

| wish to show my support for CC Driver as | strongly uphold the view that we have
the right to know,and choose,what we eat according to animal welfare laws which we
fought very hard for years to get.

. 31 .
Page 79


http://www.incredimail.com/app/?tag=emoticon_click_me_im2_re&lang=9&version=6605328&setup_id=2&aff_id=1&addon=IncrediMail&upn=6061F165-D3C3-44CE-8A05-8D5B35EBFAEB&app_test_id=0&id=95202&guid=108FF06D-1633-4449-B034-854D099C502B

Lancashire County Council's policy on the supply of halal meat to schools —

consultation report 2018

| keep Shetland Sheep as pets and It would be a revelation to people who think they
are just dumb animals if they could see them interact with me and their fellow flock
members.They are with out a doubt SENTIENT beings and deserve as peaceful a
death as possible with full non recoverable stun-it is deceiving people when it is
said halal ritual slaughter DOES (sometimes) involve stunning because it is NOT full
captive bolt etc stunning- this recoverable stun can be far worse as they can and do
regain consciousness.

| would wish to see a total ban on all ritual slaughter-it is barbaric and has NO
PLACE in the 21c.

Ritual slaughter belongs in the history books -and it is wrong that an ideology takes
precedent over animals rights and cruelty.lt makes me feel ill and definately affects
my well being and as there is no labelling etc | cannot bear the thought of eating this
meat unwittingly so do not buy ANY now.Other countries HAVE banned ritual
slaughter-there are some things that must not be given as rights if they are morally
wrong just to appease an outdated ideology.

Muslims CAN and do eat what we eat-it says in Koran 'eat what is put before
you....."they can say bismala if they care to like we say 'for what we are about to
receive etc...my muslim friends do not eat halal certified meat or products and say it
is actually AGAINST the teaching in Koran --and just a huge money making business
that gets used for money laundering and jihad and funds extremist groups-and all
non muslims are paying the tax unwittingly that goes only to muslim causes to
furtherance of islamification-there is much more to this halal certification than we are
told ----It is the extremist elements in this ideology are demanding rights for sinister
purposes-this is from muslim friends who are as concerned about the whole thing as
we are.They are vegetarian.

It really is an OUTRAGE to a country who hold animal welfare as a top priority.
| believe there is a consultation questionaire ?-Please could | have a copy?

Thank you-I simply was going to ask for this but got carried away-l,and many
hundreds of thousands like me feel SO strongly on this and feel OUR rights -the
majority, and OUR customs and culture and ideology,are being totally ignored..and
we do not know what we are eating -have no choice.

Response 23

Firstly for meat to be halal the animal must be fully awake as it is being slaughtered
plus a "prayer" is said by

slaughterman. If the animal is
stunned in any way before slaughter the meat is not halal.

Muslims have a saying "the more an animal suffers before death - the sweeter the
meat." | have travelled extensively in the middle east and the torture and cruel

e 32 .
Page 80



Lancashire County Council's policy on the supply of halal meat to schools —

consultation report 2018

treatment these animals suffer is horrific. Believe me it also occurs in muslim places
of slaughter in the Uk.

Denmark is the only European nation to completely ban halal slaughter.

Uk vets and Rspca have long condemmed this practice but nothing is done as the
establishment do not want to upset the muslims. Disgraceful.

Australia exports live animals to the middle east and Indonesia. Last year a party of
vets went to Indonesia and covertly filmed at a slaughtter house. They reported
animals having metal poles thrust into their eyes- legs tied and men pulling animal in
opposite directions until it's legs snapped- kicked and punched before slitting it's
throat. The creature then hoisted up on a rack to slowly bleed to death. This is a
barbaric way to treat animals. In order that brainwashed muslims can supposedly
keep to the word of their so called god.

As a result australia banned export of live animals. The real problem in this nation
and western nations in general is that halal meat is creeping into supermarkets- fast
food shops- and we are unaware we are being given it. Some schools in uk only
serve halal meat sometimes when muslims in the school are less that 20%. One
final FACT- due to certification that meat is halal a payment is made to muslim
bodies for such certification - in case you are unaware part of that moneyy is diverted
to islamic terror groups to fund their war against the west. Australian counter terror
police discovered this and it is world wide.

So finally- the answer is only serve meat which is slaughtered in a british slaughter
house and not halal. If these people want it the answer is simple- go live in a muslim
country.

Off course the way things are going it might be uk next. French schools only served
one type of meat and its not halal!

Reading your report document it comments on practice of the animals not being able
to see another animal being slaughtered and a sharp knife being used and sarpened
for each animal- all rubbish. Recently in Bradford a muslim slaughter house lost its
licence- filthy premises- animals all crowed in so that they all saw what was
happening and the knife used was so blunt it was used to hack at the animals

throat. If you have any feelings for animals - ban this meat in your schools and
workplace

Response 24

Why, when there is no earthly reason, is un-stunned meat being given in our
schools. | always understood a prayer was all that was needed to make it conform to
Halal requirements.

¢33
Page 81



Lancashire County Council's policy on the supply of halal meat to schools —

consultation report 2018

Response 25

| think it is totally wrong British children are forced to eat non stun Halal meat
unknowingly.

Response 26

| am ashamed and disgusted that halal slaughtered meat is being dished out to our
children in Lancashire and probably everywhere else in England.

Halal slaughter is not the British way, is barbaric and abhorrent.

We all know now that certain abattoirs overproduce and sell halal slaughtered meat
as haram. That too is unacceptable.

Please work to get this vile practice stopped.

Response 27

| support your campaign to ban all non-stunned halal meat to schools. The law states
that non-stunned halal meat is not allowed to be served to people unknowingly.
Furthermore, the law states that non-stunned halal meat should not be given to non-
Muslim children and adults. | want the law uphelded.

The law should protect the welfare of all animals (including chickens) and protect

children and adults from being served non-stunned halal meat. It is well-known that
animals that are slaughtered without being stunned first can suffer a prolonged and
cruel death that is contrary to the protection of animal rights and welfare in the UK.

Response 28

| wish to repeat my grave concerns, for the possibility of a return to the practice of
none stunning of animals being slaughtered.

It is the law in this country that animals should be treated in a proper manner when
being killed for food. People from other countries have different customs, | have to
accept that, as much as | might not agree with them.

| feel it is totally unacceptable, that these people think they have a right to continue a
practice, that is not compatible with the laws of this country or with the majority of
people in this country.

| don't think the fight to continue your good work will be easy, but | wish you all the
best in your efforts to do what is right and for the animals.

. 34 .
Page 82



Lancashire County Council's policy on the supply of halal meat to schools —

consultation report 2018

Response 29

| would stun the animals before slaughtering. We have a minority population in the
U.K which has a religious stance for Halal meat.

We should care for the animals when they grow up, we have the highest standards
of care in farming. | strongly disagree that we have un-stunned animals before
slaughter. We should care for them when we slaughter the animal.

We manage in the UK for the small percentage in the population.
We should show some respect when they get slaughtered.

The throat is cut, blood loss takes perhaps 1 minute, have you looked on you
tube, its appalling.

| think we should do a tv program in reference to animals being slaughtered by Halal.
| strongly disagree without animals being un-stunned.

| will get some votes and get it discussed in Parliament.

Response 30

| wish to add my concern and to say that | am disgusted with how animals are killed
for the food chain in order to create Halal meat. The welfare of the animals should
always come first and their death should be brought about in the most caring and
humane way possible. Killing terrified animals in front of each other and allowing
them to bleed to death slowly is Inhumane. The thought of this practice taking place
in order to feed our children is abhorrent to me and not a part of our cultural heritage
as animal lovers.

Response 31

All animals should be stunned prior to slaughter

Response 32

Our schools should not be serving non stunned Halal meat at all. This cruel and
barbaric way of slaughtering should be outlawed.

Non muslims have a right not to be fed this meat it is morally reprehensible that you
are only providing Halal.

Shame on you.

Response 33

. 35 .
Page 83



Lancashire County Council's policy on the supply of halal meat to schools —

consultation report 2018

It is wrong that British children are forced to eat non-stun Halal meat unknowingly.

Response 34

It took decades of campaigning to get legislation to have animals slaughtered
humanely. As the duly elected representatives, the electorate assumes you act
ethically on their behalf and by supplying meat from barbarically slaughtered cattle to
children who are not aware of how these animals are treated you have breached that
trust. I, in some ways | feel sorry for you, you are being threatened with a lawsuit if
you stop supplying non-stun meat and quite possibly a lawsuit if you continue to

supply it illegally.

| understand a statement to the effect there was no demand for stunned meat. The
only reason is that the supply of non-stun meat was a deal done in the secret. In
secret as | suspect you know there would be an outcry if it was made public. | would
challenge you to put the question on your website and judge from the result how
strongly the public feels about this underhand decision.

Response 35

Killing of animals for human consumption without first stunning animals is barbaric!
Also, it is against the law in the United Kingdom. Parliament has forbidden the use of
Halal meat in restaurants within the Houses of Parliament.

Ideological reasons by some ethnic groups should not be allowed to supplant the law
of the land, and if such ideologues are not content to accept the law, they are free to
leave. There are more than fifty countries in the World who share and practise their
ideological beliefs.

Response 36

Muslims can have stunned Halal they have a totally acceptable choice, there is no
need for unnecessary suffering in the name of any religion.

| think it's wrong that British children are forced to eat non stun Halal meat
unknowingly. please stop serving halal school dinners this is totally unacceptable in a
Christian country!

Response 37

| am just emailing to raise my concerns that Halal meat is still being used in our local
schools. | am not at all happy that my daughter is being given this meat on a daily
basis and ask if there is any possibility of the Lancashire County Council getting
halal meat banned for once and all. If muslim's aren't happy with this then | suggest
that they send their children in with packed lunches. It outrages me that we have to
go by their law and beliefs in this country.

36 ¢
Page 84



Lancashire County Council's policy on the supply of halal meat to schools —

consultation report 2018

| could say a lot more but think | will leave it there for now.

Please Lancashire County Council don't back down for them!

Response 38
| write to urge you to continue with the fight to ban halal meat in Lancashire schools.

| cannot believe that any right thinking person would want to eat anything that has
died a fearful and painful death because of some mediaeval ideology masquerading
as a religion!

Animals are sentient beings, they have a brain and nervous system and feel fear and
pain the same as we do.

Where does the RSPCA stand on this issue, they surely have guidelines as to the
slaughter of animals?

I've seen an animal killed the halal way, and it's not something | ever want to see
again. The beast took around 6 minutes to die, making the most pitiful noise I've ever
heard and writhing on the ground! Barbaric is an understatement.

Personally, | don’t understand why this practice is allowed anywhere in the UK.
We, as a nation of animal lovers, really must stand together on this matter.

Why oh why are we always trying to appease the minorities? I'm sure other
European countries don't.

If muslims don’t like the idea of non halal meat, then surely a vegetarian option could
be considered or why not suggest a packed lunch?

Response 39

First of all " thank you" for trying to ban non stunned halal meat in schools! | was so
Pleased to hear this news-and saddened that it's now back on the menu!!

Torturing animals to death in the name of a mediaeval religion is barbaric and must
cease!

Animals are sentient beings with a brain and a nervous system-which means they
feel Fear and pain just like we do-just because they can't speak -we must speak up
for them!!

Saying there's no demand for non halal meat is simply not true!!!

Please continue to speak up for animals and the majority of citizens who do not
agree with halal slaughter!

. 37 .
Page 85



Lancashire County Council's policy on the supply of halal meat to schools —

consultation report 2018

Response 40

| am writing to express my great concern about non stun halal slaughter of animals
and that meat being given to school children.

There is absolutely NO reason to do this when animals can be stunned prior to
slaughter for those who are carnivores. | have seen graphic videos of what happens
in slaughterhouses that are non stun. It is disgusting how animals in this country are
being allowed to be killed in this inhumane way - the maltreatment and fear that
animals witness when other animals before them are having their throats slashed is
truly sickening and gratuitous.

We should be thinking of the welfare of these animals as a priority not a minority's
cultural needs. This is England.

Response 41

| have been reliably informed that you have capitulated to the Muslim minority to
allow Halal meat, and by inference all our non Muslim children weather they like it or
not will be forced to eat this Barbaric slaughtered meat.You are all weak and have
given in to these bully boys, women don't come in to the equation as they have no
voice within the Muslim house.You should have stood firm and said no, and if these
Muslims do no like to abide the laws of our stunning and slaughtering, they should
leave our country. | have very strong views on this

Response 42
Whilst I understand things may be difficult it should be a choice.

No one should be exposed to anything that could be offensive or cruel.

In this case the non stun of animals should be totally banned from this country
altogether, it's a vile practice and means we've gone backwards with the way we
deal with things.

No one | repeat no one should have to have halal forced upon them without knowing.

You are I’'m sure within your rights to ban this.

Response 43

Question 1 of the consultation is misleading. It says you are considering whether to
serve stunned or unstunned halal meat and then asks if | object to serving stunned
halal meat. If | say | object, I'm potentially saying | approve of unstunned halal meat.
It's a badly worded question that will sway the vote outcome toward unstunned halal
meat, but | think you knew this when the consulting questionnaire was being drafted.

e 38 .
Page 86



Lancashire County Council's policy on the supply of halal meat to schools —

consultation report 2018

And just for the record in a civilised society that have law protecting animals we
shouldn't be serving any kind of meat that has been slaughtered were the animal has
had its throat slit and bleed to death.

Response 44

People, schools should not be given halal meat. This is a Christian Country and we
have a right to choose what we are served. Halal meat means animals slaughtered

in a brutal way and | and my family do not want to eat this meat without being
informed.

«30.
Page 87



Lancashire County Council's policy on the supply of halal meat to schools —

consultation report 2018

Response 45

‘( w
-,
LANCASHIRE

COUNCIL OF MOSQUES
Charity registration Number: 1015119

7% March 2018

To Lancashire County Council

Dear Sir, Madam

Re: Halal Meat Consultation 2018

We write on behalf of the Lancashire Council of Mosques (“‘LCM”) in relation to the
consultation where the County Council is considering its current policy for the supply of
Halal meat to schools. The County Council has stated it is considering a proposal to
provide only stunned Halal meat to schools.

This is LCM's response to the consultation which we ask to be considered in addition to
a number of responses from members of our community which have been submitted
separately

Halal

LCM is opposed to any change in the Council’s current policy for supplying Halal meat
fo schools. We do not believe that meat derived from animals which are stunned
before slaughter complies with the requirements of slaughter so as to be in conformity
with the principles of Halal.

This is an issue of religious belief and adherence to the requirements of our faith and is
not something which can be modified or negotiated. We believe this view is shared by
many in the communities we represent.

We are aware that it has been suggested that this position is out of keeping with the
vast majority of Muslims. We do not accept this. We recognise that what is required for
Halal is a matter of some debate amongst Muslims and peoples views do differ. Many
Muslims are of the view that stunned meat is not meat produced in accordance with
Halal requirements.

The task group established in 2013 which carried out the previous review of the policy
expressly recognised the value of the work that LCM carmry out and acknowledged that
LCM is a representative body which speaks for the vast majority of Muslims in
Lancashire; and that the County Council has always sought the views of LCM in
developing its policy on Halal. Given our views and those of the community we
represent, that stunned meat is not compatible with the requirements of our religious
observance and given the authority with which we speak on behalf of our community,

1

e 40 o
Page 88



Lancashire County Council's policy on the supply of halal meat to schools —

consultation report 2018

as has been recognised by the County Council, we believe this should carry significant
weight with the Council.

Children’s welfare

In our view and our experience it is likely that a significant percentage of the Muslim
community of Lancashire who cumrently use the school meals service believe that
eating stunned meat would not be compatible with their religious beliefs and
requirements. If the change of policy is implemented this will lead to many children no
longer taking up school lunches, which may have serious adverse consequences for
those children.

Humane slaughter

The consultation document does not explain why the Council considers the change of
policy to be a good idea and in what respects it would be beneficial. However we
assume, given the debates which have taken place previously, that the proposed
change may be motivated by a belief that stunned meat is more “humane”.

This is a view that is by no means universally accepted and in fact the scientific
evidence on this matter is divided. It cannot be said definitively or authoritatively that
animals which are stunned before slaughter are subject to more humane or less painful
treatment. The scientific evidence does not support such a definitive conclusion.

In fact the practice of Halal is rooted in respect for animals and regard to their welfare.
Community Relations

We also want to raise our concems that there is a real risk that the continued pressure
to change this policy will have an significant adverse impact on community relations.
Some of the language used in the previous debate caused real offence to our
community. This is already a time of heightened tension and fearfulness for members
of our community. This proposal creates a risk of Muslims being characterised as
supporting cruel or abhorrent methods of slaughter.

It also creates an impression in the community that our religious beliefs are not given
serious regard or respect by those elected to represent us.

LCM has very serious concems about the implications for community cohesion if the
policy is implemented.

In view of these representations we would urge the Council not to change the current
policy or to press this matter any further.

Yours Sincerely
[:P\ o .Q«WJ

(Imam) Rafiq Ismail Patel
LCM, Chairman

Bangor Street Community Centre, Norwich Street, Blackburn, Lancashire, BB1 6NZ
Tel: 01254 692289 Web: lancashiremosques.com E-mail: admin@lancashiremosques.com

e4] e
Page 89



Lancashire County Council's policy on the supply of halal meat to schools —

consultation report 2018

Response 46

LL'?>~ 10‘81

J\Qﬁ%@ Mcﬁ.u '3\ *% _tt‘a

J
—P-QQP-S'LMQB_‘% At “19_.,(- Cmq.,\g Vi

Re - Sslam.e Sd'\ac\a ( Ho_fqu
oo SN e aen o \feqflamcm o/ |
Qe Loy WAk no Drg.é‘_,)g e
_L_o'hs eg’ Jojd-qf '('K.J\(‘S't-_e.&’\‘ q Q 5

ncst chc,_gﬁ‘t—a:k'aﬂi L‘\tha Jn—'\du...%

:e.remd X QLQ_C_@.LSCM QGJM

Ck()c\‘k l'\a.ué A(—o g‘(’&_q, L\L}{

\‘TJDW $W1Qa_luzui I

. 42 .
Page 90




Lancashire County Council's policy on the supply of halal meat to schools —

consultation report 2018

Response 47
national

Response to Lancashire SeCU lar

County Council’s halal EEEEW
meat consultation 2018 - e

ke, AR 4L
W DEIO TR BOTY
W g SR e g L
_ . E . AT R A
About the National Secular Society
The Mational Secular Society ks a party-paolitically neutral organdsation that works for the separation
of religion and state, and far equal respect for everyone’s human rights so that no one is either
advantaged or disadvantaged on account of their bellefs. We regard secularism and freedom of
expression as essential leatures of a fair and open society.

How strongly do you agree or dizagree with the preposal te provide enly stunned halal
meat to schools?
Strongly agree

Wiy do vou say this?
Stunned halal meat is the anly ethical aptien and it is accepted by the majority of Muslims.

The sclantific conssnsus s clear that 1T is mone humane 1o stun an animal prior to slaughter than not
dedng so. That Is why animal welfare legislation reqguires all anémals to be stunned before slaughter
in ordar to minimise suffering. with exemptions given only to animals slaughtered by halal or kosher
methods,

The governmant's own advisory body, the Farm Animal Welfare Councll (FAMWC), has recommended
that the slaughter of animals without pre-stunning shoutd be banned, with no exemptions. The
FAWC have concluded that animals slaughtered without pre-stunring are llkely to experience "very
significant pain and distrex” before they become unconscious,

Likewise, the EU's Scientific Panel on Anlenal Health and Welfare (AHAW) have stated that: “Due to
the seriows animal welfare concerns assoclated with slaughter withouwt sturning, pré-cut Stunneng
should always be performed.”

The Federation of Veterinariana of Curope (MVE) heve stated: "FVE s of the opinlon that the practice
of slaughtering animak without prior stunning is unacceptable wnder any drcumstances”,

REPCA, Compassion In World Farming and the British Veterinary Association all support anend to
non-stun slaughter to improve animal welfare at the time of death.

«43
Page 91



Lancashire County Council's policy on the supply of halal meat to schools —

consultation report 2018

Denmark, Estonia, Finland, lceland, Latvia, Liechtenstein, Lithuania, New Zealand, Norway, Sweden
and Switrerland have all banned non-stun slaughter.

It ks clear that the majority of Muslims in the UK accept pre-stunning prior to slaughter, Figures fram
the Food Standards Agency say that in 2012 of those enimals slasghtered in the UK according to
halal rules, 84% of cattle or calves, 81% of sheep and goats, and BEW of pouttry were stunned before
slaughter.

It is mok trwe that all Muslims agree that unstunned meat Is mare “authentically”™ halal than stunned
meat, or that unstunned meat i more widely accepted, Some halal suppliers consider stunned meat
to e more n-line with slambc values than unetenned meat because it causes bess suffering, Far
example, halal supplier Najmastates on (13 website : "We follow the islemic values of treating all
anirnals with kindness and compassion, To ensure the welfare of the animals, we do use recoverable
stunning prios 1o shughber, This i n accondance to the specific rules set out by the Istamic faith and
under superasion of our Eurapean Halal certifying bodies.”

It should also be noted that the non-stenmed halal sector is harming retailers of stunned hatal, The
Halal Monitaring Committes {HMC] Is putting halal suppliers under pressure by pushing the message
that anly non-stunned meat is "genuinely Halal®, imphying that suppliers whe sell stunned meat or
do mot berar the HMC logo are contravening [slamic law. Because halal suppliers fear losing the trust
of their cuttomers, they may feel forced to switch to unstunned halal meat and pay thousands of
pounds for HMC certification,

A BBC Mews Look North segment reported on the issuee of unstunnaed kalal in Halifax in 2011, One
halal trader intenviewed, Ahmed Pervaz of Medina Poultry who has 20 years’ axparience in the
industry, stated that HMC are “really hammering Uhe halal industry® and that “they're nothing but a
scam.” He said that "people believe them because they appear o be Islamically dressed, Bslamically
knowledgeabie, but when it comes to halal, they have no authority.”

Councils have a duty to provide healthy and nutritious schools meals. They akso have a duty to
ensure the food they provide ks sowrced ethnically in a manner that does not harm people, animals
or the environment. They do not have a duty to cater for every religious dietary preference of avery
pupil's family, and especially If those preferences mean contravening the advice of veterinary and
farming associations, and causing harm to local businesses,

What impact would this proposal have on you?

This proposal has nation-wide implications. If the council reverses its decision to stop supplying
unstunned meat i schools, it will give greater power to religious interest groups to assert their
agends on vouncils in other areas. it will glso set a direction of trave! for socdety as a whole with
regards to animal welfare policy.

IFLEC decide to supply unstunned meat to schoots, it will smount to state support for slaughter
methods that are regarded worldwide as unnecessarily cruel, it will send the messags that the LUK
prioritises the demands of orthodox rellgious minoaritles over the basic welfare needs of animals.
While increasing numbers of countries are deciding to ban non-stun slaughtsr, the UK will be moving
in the opposite direction bo the current trend in developed economies.

e 44 o
Page 92



Lancashire County Council's policy on the supply of halal meat to schools —

consultation report 2018

What, if anything, do vou think could be done differently in providing halal meat to
schoals?

While it is important for councils to consider distary requirements of school children, no counci

should be pressured Into supplying meat slaughtered in o method that contravenes anlmal welfare
out of religlous comeems.

The Mational Secular Society has been researching the provision af hakal meat to schools by UK
councils, The majority of cowunclls that the N55 has sunseyed do not supply unstunned hiatal meat to
schools, Several specifically state that they will not supply unstunned hakal on animal welfare
grounds: a few examples are given below:

"ALCC sources fts meat produocts via nationally procured frarmewerks. Our suppliers take animal
welfare very seriously. All farmed anfmals which are staughtered for their products are done so
humanely, in accordance with EU and UK law. This inchudes provision to ensure that animals are
rendered insansible ta pain, distress or suffering, prior to killing and Includes the stunning of animals
prior to shaughter. Traditional Halal slaughter, which forbids the stunning of animals, ks a practice
wihich i3 not aecepted by our suppliers on animal welfare grounds.” [Aberdeen County Couneil)

“All animal product s stunned before slaughter in line with our food life and better anirmal weifare
accreditations.” (Greenwich Barough Cauncil)

“The current providers providing school meals within the London Borough of Hammersmith &
Fulham central contract supply Halal meat which meets the HFA standards and is pre stunned. As &
loeal authority, we have specified that the halal meat provision i 1o meet the HFA standards and all
British ankmal welfare standards.” (Hammersmth & Fulham Councll)

"The eurrent prenviders providing schoal meals within the REKC central eantract supply Halal meat
which meats the HFA standards and ks pre stunned. As 3 local Authority we have specified that the
halal meat prowision Is to meet the HFA standards 2nd all British animal welfare standards.”
[Kensington & Chalsea Borough Councl]

"Sthools that work In partnerihip with Leicestershine Traded Services (LTS) Catering are provided
with halal products that have been stunned before slaughter.” [Lelcestershire County Councl)

*Thi Mottingharmshire Cownty Councll School Meals service does not Inchede halalkosher meat in s
meals - pupils opt to have a vegetarian option” [Mottinghamshire County Council)

A vegetarion option should always be avalkable in school meaks. This would be acceptable to those
Kuslims who refuse to est stunned meat.

It should also be stressed to families that those who wish thelr child to est unstunned meat would
still ke parmitted to provide the maat In a packed lunch.

e 45 e
Page 93



Page 94



Section 4

Equality

Analysis Toolkit

The supply of Halal Meat to Schools
For Decision Making Items

September 2018

Lancashire
County ‘@""’?"

: €08
www.lancashire.gov.uk Council ?&,‘3{)




What is the Purpose of the Equality Decision-Making Analysis?

The Analysis is designed to be used where a decision is being made at
Cabinet Member or Overview and Scrutiny level or if a decision is being
made primarily for budget reasons. The Analysis should be referred to
on the decision making template (e.g. E6 form).

When fully followed this process will assist in ensuring that the decision-
makers meet the requirement of section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 to
have due regard to the need: to eliminate discrimination, harassment,
victimisation or other unlawful conduct under the Act; to advance
equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and persons who do not share it; and to foster good
relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic
and persons who do not share it.

Having due regard means analysing, at each step of formulating,
deciding upon and implementing policy, what the effect of that policy is
or may be upon groups who share these protected characteristics
defined by the Equality Act. The protected characteristic are: age,
disability, gender reassignment, race, sex, religion or belief, sexual
orientation or pregnancy and maternity — and in some circumstance
marriage and civil partnership status.

It is important to bear in mind that "due regard" means the level of
scrutiny and evaluation that is reasonable and proportionate in the
particular context. That means that different proposals, and different
stages of policy development, may require more or less intense analysis.
Discretion and common sense are required in the use of this tool.

It is also important to remember that what the law requires is that the
duty is fulfilled in substance — not that a particular form is completed in a
particular way. It is important to use common sense and to pay
attention to the context in using and adapting these tools.

This process should be completed with reference to the most recent,
updated version of the Equality Analysis Step by Step Guidance (to be
distributed) or EHRC guidance at

http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/private-and-public-sector-
quidance/public-sector-providers/public-sector-equality-duty

2

Page 96


http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/private-and-public-sector-guidance/public-sector-providers/public-sector-equality-duty
http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/private-and-public-sector-guidance/public-sector-providers/public-sector-equality-duty

This toolkit is designed to ensure that the section 149 analysis is
properly carried out, and that there is a clear record to this effect. The
Analysis should be completed in a timely, thorough way and should
inform the whole of the decision-making process. It must be considered
by the person making the final decision and must be made available with
other documents relating to the decision.

The documents should also be retained following any decision as they
may be requested as part of enquiries from the Equality and Human
Rights Commission or Freedom of Information requests.

Support and training on the Equality Duty and its implications is available
from the County Equality and Cohesion Team by contacting

AskEquality@lancashire.gov.uk

Specific advice on completing the Equality Analysis is available from
your Service contact in the Equality and Cohesion Team or from
Jeanette Binns

Jeanette.binns@lancashire.gov.uk

Page 97


mailto:AskEquality@lancashire.gov.uk
mailto:Jeanette.binns@lancashire.gov.uk

Name/Nature of the Decision

The County Council's Policy on the supply of Halal meat to schools to
be amended to provide stunned halal meat only.

What in summary is the proposal being considered?

Where the County Council supplies school meals, we have to ensure
that the food provided is nutritious, and of high quality; to promote
good nutritional health in all pupils; protect those who are nutritionally
vulnerable and to promote good eating behaviour. We also should
make reasonable adjustments for pupils with particular requirements,
for example to reflect medical, dietary and cultural needs and that
school food menus are designed for the majority of the school
population.

The policy on "Supply of Halal Meat to Schools" currently states that
we will provide both stunned and un-stunned Halal meat and the
school will take the decision, based on local demand, on which option
to purchase if it chooses to purchase any halal meat.

It is proposed that this policy is amended to remove the un-stunned
halal meat option and that the County Council will only provide halal
meat which has been stunned.

It should also be clarified that in schools with a mixed faith population
the menu production is segregated between halal meat dishes for
Muslim pupils, where required, and British Red Tractor Farm Assured
meat dishes for all other pupils. A vegetarian option is also made
available daily and any pupils with special dietary requirements for
allergens or intolerances are provided with an applicably controlled
menu, ensuring that all pupils are offered an appropriate choice.

All Halal dishes are denoted by colour coded serving dishes and
utensils and in the case of secondary schools, with appropriate
signage too.

Regardless of the outcome of this proposal these arrangements would
continue to ensure all pupils are clear about what they are eating.

4

Page 98



This Equality Analysis seeks to reflect information gathered since this
issue first came to the fore in 2013, including the Task and Finish
Group's considerations in 2013 and the recent public consultation. It
seeks to set out the considerations in a fair, objective and rigorous
manner.

Is the decision likely to affect people across the county in a similar way
or are specific areas likely to be affected — e.g. are a set number of
branches/sites to be affected? If so you will need to consider whether
there are equality related issues associated with the locations selected —
e.g. greater percentage of BME residents in a particular area where a
closure is proposed as opposed to an area where a facility is remaining
open.

Whilst the policy is applied across the County it is of most significance
to schools in Burnley, Preston, Pendle, Chorley, South Ribble, Ribble
Valley and some schools in the Blackburn with Darwen Borough
council area which provide halal meat as part of their menu options for
pupils. Twenty seven schools currently provide halal meat as part of
their school lunch menus (as chosen by the school and Governing
Body) and all have chosen the un-stunned option. Although 12,000
pupils are on roll at these schools, not all will eat halal meat and it is
impossible to be certain how many of these pupils take the halal meat
menu option.

At this time none of the County Council's Older Peoples services use
halal meat as a menu option but potentially this could change in
establishments in some parts of the county in the future.

Could the decision have a particular impact on any group of
individuals sharing protected characteristics under the Equality Act
2010, namely:

o Age
e Disability including Deaf people

5

Page 99




Gender reassignment

Pregnancy and maternity
Race/ethnicity/nationality

Religion or belief

Sex/gender

Sexual orientation

Marriage or Civil Partnership Status

In considering this question you should identify and record any
particular impact on people in a sub-group of any of the above —
e.g. people with a particular disability or from a particular religious
or ethnic group.

It is particularly important to consider whether any decision is likely
to impact adversely on any group of people sharing protected
characteristics to a disproportionate extent. Any such
disproportionate impact will need to be objectively justified.

Age — this policy will impact on school age pupils who are consumers
of school meals provided through the County Council's Traded School
Meals Service and most particularly on those in the twenty seven
schools which currently provide halal meat options. Although 12,000
pupils are on roll at these schools, not all will eat halal meat and it is
impossible to be certain how many of these pupils take the halal meat
menu option.

Religion or Belief — Religion: for pupils who are Muslim, any change
in policy to provide only stunned halal meat options would result in
reduced choice of menu options such as having vegetarian or other
non-meat meals if they find stunned halal meat to be unacceptable. It
may result in a boycott of school meals, as occurred in 2013 when a
previous decision to provide only stunned halal meat was applied.
This resulted in Lancashire Council of Mosques (LCM) asking
pupils/parents to boycott their school meals. It is unlikely that LCM's
response would be different if this situation arose again. Affected
pupils might then need to bring packed lunches or leave school at
lunchtime to go home or elsewhere for lunch. This could impact
adversely upon family finances and the nutritional content of the pupils'

6

Page 100




lunch, as a school lunch is required to meet a range of food and
nutritional standards. In the areas where schools take the un-stunned
halal meat option Blackburn with Darwen has a 27% population who
identify as Muslim, 17% in Pendle and over 10% of residents in
Preston and Burnley according to the 2011 Census.

There is also concern that Jewish parents/pupils may also feel
adversely affected if the un-stunned halal meat option was removed as
similar requirements for meat to be "un-stunned" apply to kosher meat
products. This may prompt a concern that the school meals service
may no longer meet their own cultural dietary requirements. The most
significant percentage of Jewish residents is in Fylde, although
currently no schools in this area are included on the list of those
affected by this Review.

Other Religions — it has become clear during the review of consultation
responses, that a number of respondents believed that halal meat
would be provided to all children including those of Christian, Hindu,
Buddhist and other faiths. This was not part of the proposal and would
not have happened. It is important to be clear that in those schools
where it would be available, halal meat would be an available option,
but that for pupils not requiring halal meat British Red Tractor Farm
Assured meat dishes would be available and clearly identifiable.

There would be no "forcing" of halal meat on any non-Muslim pupils
and food provision would take account of other religions/beliefs and
meet legal requirements.

No Religion — the County Council received representations from
secular/humanist groups during summer 2017 when this issue
received publicity. These representations argued that food should not
be provided at all to meet religious requirements. These views were
also reflected amongst public consultation respondents. However, the
National Secular Society's written response strongly agreed with the
proposal to supply only stunned halal meat.

Belief — those with a strong belief in animal rights/animal welfare
(which may be seen as a strongly held philosophical belief) may be
affected by this review. A number of organisations including the
RSPCA, Humane Slaughter Association, Farm Animal Welfare Council

7

Page 101




and others as well as individuals, are opposed to the provision of un-
stunned halal meat and these groups and individuals are present in
Lancashire. These views were also represented amongst consultation
respondents. However, for many school pupils with these views,
alternative meal options are available - e.g. vegetarian options.

Ethnicity — the 2011 Census recorded that 7.7% of Lancashire's
population (or 90,652 people) are from a Black and Ethnic Minority
background, and 6.1% of the Lancashire population identify as
Asian/Asian British. Whilst people of all ethnicities may be affected by
the outcome of this review, it is likely to have a disproportionate impact
on those who are Asian/Asian British.

Gender - it was estimated that during the "boycott" of school meals in
2013, take up of school meals fell by over 7% across the county.
Should such a situation be repeated, it is possible that the impact on
revenue generated from school meals in affected schools, could
impact on how many catering staff are required. Women make up the
vast majority of employees in these roles.

If you have answered "Yes" to this question in relation to any of the
above characteristics, — please go to Question 1.

If you have answered "No" in relation to all the protected characteristics,
please briefly document your reasons below and attach this to the
decision-making papers. (It goes without saying that if the lack of impact
is obvious, it need only be very briefly noted.)

Page 102




Question 1 — Background Evidence

What information do you have about the different groups of people who
may be affected by this decision — e.g. employees or service users
(you could use monitoring data, survey data, etc to compile this). As
indicated above, the relevant protected characteristics are:

o Age

e Disability including Deaf people

e Gender reassignment/gender identity

e Pregnancy and maternity

e Race/Ethnicity/Nationality

¢ Religion or belief

e Sex/gender

e Sexual orientation

e Marriage or Civil Partnership status (in respect of which the s.
149 requires only that due regard be paid to the need to eliminate
discrimination, harassment or victimisation or other conduct which
is prohibited by the Act).

In considering this question you should again consider whether the
decision under consideration could impact upon specific sub-
groups e.g. people of a specific religion or people with a particular
disability. You should also consider how the decision is likely to
affect those who share two or more of the protected characteristics
— for example, older women, disabled, elderly people, and so on.

Age — this policy will impact on school age pupils who are consumers
of school meals provided through the County Council's Traded School
Meals Service and most particularly on those in the twenty seven
schools which currently provide Halal meat options. Although 12,000
pupils are on roll at these schools, not all will eat halal meat and it is
impossible to be certain how many of these pupils take the halal meat
menu option.

Religion or Belief — Religion: for pupils who are Muslim, any change
in policy to provide only stunned Halal meat options would result in

9

Page 103



reduced choice of menu options such as having vegetarian or other
non-meat meals if they find stunned halal meat to be unacceptable. It
may result in a boycott of school meals, as occurred in 2013 when a
previous decision to provide only stunned Halal meat was applied.
This resulted in Lancashire Council of Mosques (LCM) asking
pupils/parents to boycott their school meals. It is unlikely that LCM's
response would be different if this situation arose again. Affected
pupils might then need to bring packed lunches or leave school at
lunchtime to go home or elsewhere for lunch. This could impact
adversely upon family finances and the nutritional content of the pupils'
lunch, as a school lunch is required to meet a range of food and
nutritional standards. In the areas where schools take the un-stunned
Halal meat option Blackburn with Darwen has a 27% population who
identify as Muslim, 17% in Pendle and over 10% of residents in
Preston and Burnley according to the 2011 Census.

There is also concern that Jewish parents/pupils may also feel
adversely affected if the un-stunned Halal meat option was removed
as similar requirements for meat to be "un-stunned" apply to kosher
meat products. This may prompt a concern that the school meals
service may no longer meet their own cultural dietary requirements.
The most significant percentage of Jewish residents is in Fylde,
although currently no schools in this area are included on the list of
those affected by this Review.

Other Religions — it has become clear during the review of consultation
responses, that a number of respondents believed that halal meat
would be provided to all children including those of Christian, Hindu,
Buddhist and other faiths. This was not part of the proposal and would
not have happened. It is important to be clear that in those schools
where it would be available, halal meat would be an available option,
but that for pupils not requiring halal meat British Red Tractor Farm
Assured meat dishes would be available and clearly identifiable.

There would be no "forcing" of halal meat on any non-Muslim pupils
and food provision would take account of other religions/beliefs and
meet legal requirements.

No Religion — the County Council did receive representations from
secular/humanist groups during summer 2017 when this issue first

10

Page 104




received publicity. These representations argued that food should not
be provided at all to meet religious requirements. These views were
also reflected amongst public consultation respondents. However, the
National Secular Society's written response strongly agreed with the
proposal to supply only stunned halal meat.

Belief — those with a strong belief in animal rights/animal welfare
(which may be seen as a strongly held philosophical belief) may be
affected by this review. A number of organisations including the
RSPCA, Humane Slaughter Association, Farm Animal Welfare Council
and others as well as individuals, are opposed to the provision of un-
stunned Halal meat and these groups and individuals are present in
Lancashire. These views were also represented amongst consultation
respondents. However, for many school pupils with these views,
alternative meal options are available - e.g. vegetarian options.

Ethnicity — the 2011 Census recorded that 7.7% of Lancashire's
population (or 90,652 people) are from a Black and Ethnic Minority
background, and 6.1% of the Lancashire population identify as
Asian/Asian British. Whilst people of all ethnicities may be affected by
the outcome of this review, it is likely to have a disproportionate impact
on those who are Asian/Asian British.

Gender — it was estimated that during the "boycott" of school meals in
2013, take up of school meals fell by over 7% across the county.
Should such a situation be repeated, it is possible that the impact on
revenue generated from school meals in affected schools, could
impact on how many catering staff are required. Women make up the
vast majority of employees in these roles.

Question 2 — Engagement/Consultation

How have you tried to involve people/groups that are potentially affected
by your decision? Please describe what engagement has taken place,
with whom and when.

11

Page 105



(Please ensure that you retain evidence of the consultation in case of
any further enquiries. This includes the results of consultation or data
gathering at any stage of the process)

A public consultation was carried out between 7 February and 7 March
2018, seeking views on the proposal to only provide stunned halal
meat to schools and asking what the impact of this would be on
respondents. The consultation was placed on the "Have Your Say"
area of the County Council's website. A range of stakeholders were
given prior notice of the consultation's location and timescale. These
included:

e The Governing Bodies and Headteachers of affected schools;
e Lancashire Council of Mosques;

Lancaster and Lakes Jewish Community
Burnley Synagogue & Jewish Community Burnley, Lancashire
Lancashire Secular Humanists
Lancashire Police Chief Inspector lan Mills Head of Equality
and Community Engagement
Police & Crime Commissioner
Lancashire Safeguarding Children & Adults Board Chair
Lancashire Association of Local Councils

e County and District Councillors and Chief Executives
A Press Release was also issued which featured of local radio and
social media news outlets (e.g. Radio Lancashire and Blog Preston)
whilst an item about the consultation also appeared on the Staff News

area of the County Council's intranet.

8,545 responses were received to the consultation, 7,840 on-line
responses and 705 paper copies. In terms of demographics of
respondents:

53% of respondents said that they were responding as Lancashire
residents, this is a lower proportion than usually found in County
Council consultations. It is however possible that some people who
fitted into other categories such as parents or carers of school pupils,
school staff, members of VCFS groups, etc were also residents of
Lancashire. It was also clear that some respondents came from other
parts of the country and that this consultation attracted a lot of
attention from groups/individuals representing a wide range of

12

Page 106



viewpoints. 33% of respondents identified as being the parent/carer of
a Lancashire school pupil.

Ethnicity — 43% of respondents were White which is much lower than
for many consultations and far lower than the Census profile for the
White ethnic group. 18% of respondents "prefer not to say" and 34% of
respondents were Asian or Asian British. In terms of both the county's
population and the usual profile of consultation respondents, there is a
significantly higher proportion of respondents who are Asian or Asian
British. 2% of respondents identified as being of Mixed Ethnicity or
Other Ethnicity respectively and 1% of respondents were Black or
Black British.

Religion or Belief — 24% of respondents identified as being Christian,
17% as having "no religion", 45% of respondents identified as being
Muslim, 12% "prefer not to say" and 1% of respondents selected the
"any other religion" option. 21 respondents were Buddhist, 15
respondents were Jewish, 13 were Sikh and 8 were Hindu
respectively. The proportion of respondents who were Christian is
lower than in the Lancashire population whilst the proportion of
respondents who were Muslim is much higher than their representation
in the county's population. These trends also apply to usual County
Council service consultations.

Gender - Responses from males were higher than usual at 49% with
44% of respondents being female and the others "prefer not to say".
This response rate is more representative of the male population of the
county in gender terms than is usually the case. In most County
Council consultations women form the majority of respondents.

Age — 56% of respondents were aged 35-64, although this is a wide
age range it is noticeably higher than the usual response rate for this
group in County Council consultations. This may reflect numbers of
respondents amongst parents/carers of school pupils. There are 9%
of respondents in the 65-74 age group and 1% aged over 75. 3% of
respondents are aged under 16 and 2% are aged 16-19, which shows
some engagement of young people on this issue. 20% of respondents

13

Page 107




are aged 20-34 which is higher than the usual response rate for this
age group.

Respondents were asked if they had children in their household, the
percentage of those who answered that there were children in their
household was much higher than those who responded as "the parent
or carer of a Lancashire school pupil" (64% had children in the 5-16
age range in their household although this includes some who have
children in various age groups as 60% of respondents had children
aged under 20 in their household) whilst 33% of respondents
responded as a parent/carer of a Lancashire school pupil). 24% of
respondents had no children under 20 in their household. This profile
indicates that many people may have participated in the consultation
because of views they hold on this issue rather than because the
proposal will have a direct/personal impact on them or their family.

65% of respondents strongly disagreed with the proposal to provide
stunned halal meat in those schools which offered a halal meat option,
and 38 people tended to disagree. 90% of Muslim respondents
strongly disagreed with the proposal. Where respondents gave a
reason why they disagreed with the proposal, 70% of these
respondents did so because they supported un-stunned halal meat
being supplied to schools and 30% said they disagreed with the
proposal because they don't think any halal meat should be supplied to
schools in Lancashire.

33% of respondents strongly agreed with the proposal and 1% tended
to agree whilst 1% neither agreed or disagreed. Of those respondents
who agree with the proposal 77% agreed for animal welfare reasons.

Some of the themes emerging from consultation responses were:

e A misconception amongst some respondents that currently, or in
the future, halal meat would be served to all pupils in those
schools affected or even in all schools. When asked in the
consultation whether they agreed or disagreed with the proposal
9% of respondents said that "Halal meat should not be used in
schools — especially without prior knowledge", 3% said "It is
unlawful to feed un-stunned halal meat to non Muslims" and 3%

14

Page 108




said "Members of other religions can't eat halal meat". It is not
and will not be the case that halal meat is supplied in schools
without being clearly identified and separated. Non halal meat
products in schools are from British Red Tractor Farm Assured
sources whilst the halal meat products are also from clearly
accredited sources. Currently halal meat is only provided in 27
schools which have chosen to include this amongst their menu
options and it is clearly identifiable with colour coded serving
dishes and utensils and signage in secondary schools;

A number of respondents wanted to be reassured that pupils had
a choice of food and that halal or kosher food was served only to
those of the Muslim or Jewish faith. This is the arrangement
currently in place;

Many respondents cited issues of animal welfare as the reason
for their response and their support of the proposal to only
provide stunned halal meat, Many viewed this as "kinder" to
animals and a more humane method of slaughter. However,
there were opponents of the proposal whose view was that the
un-stunned method was more humane. A further group opposed
the proposal because it proposed providing stunned halal meat
and they believed any halal meat did not meet animal welfare
requirements. All views gave scientific evidence in support of
their respective positions;

Other respondents support the continued provision of un-stunned
halal meat for those who wish to have it and the importance of
having that choice. 22.6% of Muslim parent respondents, 12.2%
of other parents responding and 21.2% of other respondents said
that the proposal would remove their choices, Many indicated
that if un-stunned halal meat was not available pupils may no
longer eat school meals (32% of Muslim parents said this), would
be limited solely to vegetarian options/stop eating meat at school
(37.2% of Muslim parents said this) or might take packed
lunches or eat at home instead. A number of these respondents
had children in Lancashire schools and saw a potential direct
impact on them. For many of these respondents, stunned meat
was not acceptable as in their view stunned "halal" meat would
not be halal (39% of all respondents said this). Many also felt

15

Page 109




that the current arrangement of providing un-stunned halal meat
had worked well and they had confidence in the meals that were
being provided as meeting their/their childrens' religious
requirements. There was also concern that for those who opted
to take packed lunches to school, they would then "miss out" on
a hot meal which would be a particular issue in winter (25.8% of
Muslim parents mentioned an adverse impact on their children's
health/diet), and on the opportunity to eat meat and socialise with
their friends (4% of Muslim parents said that their children would
feel left out and discriminated against). A number of
respondents opposed to the proposal said their children "loved"
meat meals at schools whilst others said their children would be
unable to participate in school meals events - one mentioned
their daughter potentially missing Christmas and Easter lunches
or Fantastic Fridays - which their children enjoyed. The
importance of opportunities to socialise with friends of all
backgrounds over lunchtime was mentioned by a number of
respondents.

Choice was also emphasised, however, by those who supported
the proposal to supply stunned halal meat only. Some
consultation responses indicated that pupils may already have
switched to vegetarian or packed lunch options because they
thought incorrectly that all meat was halal (20.6% of Other
Parents responding said their children "would no longer eat meat
at school" and 27.1% of Other Respondents) and "We Would Not
Eat Halal Meat/Disagree with it/against our beliefs", 12.3% of
Other Parents and 10.4% of Other Respondents). Others
indicated that they would stop having school meals if the
proposal to provide stunned halal meat in schools was approved
because they interpreted incorrectly that this would be provided
to all pupils.

Nutrition was also a concern for many parents of children who
currently ate un-stunned halal meat, in consultation responses a
number felt their child's nutrition would be adversely impacted by
not having access to an appropriate meat option in their school
lunch. Conversely, a number of consultees stated that
vegetarian options were just as nutritious as meat.

16

Page 110




There were differing theological views on whether un-stunned
halal meat was required as part of their religious observance by
Muslims. Most Muslim respondents and some others who
referenced this were clear that stunned meat would not be
considered "halal" and would not be acceptable. Other
respondents stated that they believed it would be acceptable,
although only 4 respondents who identified as Muslim gave that
view.

Alongside issues about choice, respondents on both sides also
cited discrimination because of race or religion as a possible
effect of the proposal. 4% of Muslim Parent respondents
identified that it would make Muslim children feel left
out/discriminated against with 2.9% of Other Parents and 1.8%
of Other Respondents indicating this. Another comment that "it
would make me seek legal advice and make me look at bringing
charges/suing the Council attracted" was indicated by 0.4%
Muslim parents, 0.6% Other Parents and 0.5% of Other
Respondents respectively.

There were also a number of consultation responses which
raised concerns about the impact on community cohesion and
integration which the outcome of this decision, whatever it may
be, could have. Concerns about increased tensions between
different communities within schools or more widely, have been
reflected in a number of consultation responses.

The impact of the outcome of the proposal on take up of school
meals was mentioned in some responses. Some consultees
who supported the proposal and some who did not suggested
they may withdraw their children from having school meals or
provide a packed lunch instead — others said they had already
done so. There were also a few comments on whether fewer
children having school lunch might affect the prices charged. A
small number of respondents did specifically state that they
would boycott schools meals — e.g. "l would boycott the meals
and urge all Muslim parents to do the same. | would also protest
for my rights" was one such comment.

Some parents whose children currently have school meals
because un-stunned halal meat is available said that if the

17

Page 111




proposal was agreed they would need to provide packed lunches
but that this would be very difficult as they had — for example -
three children who would be affected. 31.7% of Muslim Parents
said it would be inconvenient or more expensive for them as their
children would stop having school dinners, and 29.8% of Other
Parents also said this, only 8,4% of Other Respondents said this.
One of these consultees also said they had health issues which
would increase the difficulty of making packed lunches for their
three children daily.

There were a number of consultees who commented that
providing halal meat in any form would mean the County Council
paying "zakat". This is not the case as the County Council's
procurement is controlled only by UK and EU legal requirements.
In representations made to the County Council during autumn
2017 and in some consultation responses, a specific issue was
highlighted in relation to provision of stunned chicken/poultry.
About 50 consultation respondents commented that, in their
view, stunning methods carried a greater risk of killing a small
bird/animal such as a chicken prior to slaughter which was seen
both as a less humane method of slaughter and meaning it
would not be halal. These views came from both Muslims and
non-Muslims and both those who agreed and disagreed with the
proposal. One comment from non-Muslims read "ensure the
meat is stunned, except chicken as | understand there are issues
stunning chicken...All halal meat should be clearly labelled as
such | would hate any child or person in hospital or in a council
run institution anywhere to serve me or mine meat ...which has
had prayers said over it that | do not believe in". Another said "I
am a white English woman married to an Asian man who is not a
practising Muslim but his family are. | have explained to his
family why | will not eat halal beef or halal lamb and they respect
my decision. If | am catering for any of my family | purchase
halal chicken and there is not an issue. Maybe the council
should consider just purchasing halal chicken and not risk
purchasing halal beef or lamb". Muslim respondents comments
included: "It is wrong to stun and torture an animal in this
inhumane way. It also kills the chicken before it can be

18

Page 112




humanely slaughtered according to halal and kosher
requirements. Stunned chicken is unhygienic..", "Because
chickens go through more pain when they are stunned as they
die a slow death", "Stunning is against my faith and it is proven
unhealthy, research shows that 1) animals, especially chickens
die prior to slaughter due to stunning ...." And "Halal meat is only
truly halal if the animal is alive at the time of slaughter. Stunning
small animals (poultry) often kills them so this means this
process is unreliable for halal meat".

Alongside the consultation responses, 47 other responses were
received — 10 letters and 37 emails. 44 of these were from members
of the public with all but one supporting the proposal. The others
received were from Lancashire Council of Mosques and the Board of
Deputies of British Jews who both opposed the proposal and the
National Secular Society which supported the proposal.

The following information/reports/views have also been considered:

e Lancashire Education Act 1984 - The Asian Religions, Their
Dietary Restrictions: March 1984;
e Report of the Halal Meat Supplies Task Group: December 2013;

We have also conducted a desk top exercise to research the current
national and local intelligence relating to the supply of Halal meat,
particularly to schools. The main bodies we referred to are:

e Food Standards Agency;

e Halal Monitoring Committee;

e Halal Food Authority;

e Humane Slaughter Association;

e The Farm and Animal Welfare Council;
e Muslim Council of Britain;

e Lancashire Council of Mosques.

We have also considered the demographics of the areas most affected
by this policy and consulted with representatives from key service
areas within the County Council including School Meals/Catering

19

Page 113




Service, Legal, Procurement, Adult and Older Peoples Services and
Equality and Cohesion.

Question 3 — Analysing Impact

Could your proposal potentially disadvantage particular groups sharing
any of the protected characteristics and if so which groups and in what
way?

It is particularly important in considering this question to get to grips with
the actual practical impact on those affected. The decision-makers need
to know in clear and specific terms what the impact may be and how
serious, or perhaps minor, it may be — will people need to walk a few
metres further to catch a bus, or to attend school? Will they be cut off
altogether from vital services? The answers to such questions must be
fully and frankly documented, for better or for worse, so that they can be
properly evaluated when the decision is made.

Could your proposal potentially impact on individuals sharing the
protected characteristics in any of the following ways:

- Could it discriminate unlawfully against individuals sharing any of
the protected characteristics, whether directly or indirectly; if so, it
must be amended. Bear in mind that this may involve taking steps
to meet the specific needs of disabled people arising from their
disabilities

- Could it advance equality of opportunity for those who share a

particular protected characteristic? If not could it be developed or
modified in order to do so?

- Does it encourage persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic to participate in public life or in any activity in which

participation by such persons is disproportionately low? If not could
it be developed or modified in order to do so?

20

Page 114



- Will the proposal contribute to fostering good relations between
those who share a relevant protected characteristic and those who
do not, for example by tackling prejudice and promoting
understanding? If not could it be developed or modified in order to
do so? Please identify any findings and how they might be
addressed.

Were a decision is to be taken to cease providing un-stunned halal
meat, it is possible that the County Council will be accused of
discrimination on either religion or belief or race grounds. The
previous boycott of school meals when such a policy was last in place
and the evidence that twenty seven schools all decided to use un-
stunned halal meat rather than the stunned version available, indicates
that the demand from the pupils affected is for un-stunned halal meat.
Failure to provide this could lead to claims that the Council is
discriminating against these pupils by not meeting their religious
requirements for un-stunned halal meat. This view was reflected in a
small percentage of consultation responses in terms of potential legal
action and more widely in terms of the view that the County Council
would not be meeting religious needs of Muslim pupils/parents.
Although there are local authorities who provide stunned halal meat
only and this appears to be acceptable to their communities (e.g.
Leicestershire County Council, Nottinghamshire County Council), the
volume and content of consultation responses from parents whose
children currently eat un-stunned halal meat in Lancashire schools,
suggest that this would not be the case in Lancashire.

Potentially Jewish pupils/parents may also be concerned that their
dietary requirements are also adversely affected by any change in

policy.

As the school meals service currently provides a meat-free menu for
some Roman Catholic schools on Fridays to meet their religious
requirements, there is the potential for claims to be made of both
religion or belief and race discrimination if the service no longer made
what is seen as specific provision to meet the dietary requirements of
Muslim pupils/parents.

21

Page 115




A number of respondents also said that the County Council was acting
unlawfully and discriminating against Christian pupils, pupils of other
religions (Sikh, Hindu and Buddhist were cited) and those with no
religion by serving halal meat generally to the school population. That
perception is wrong as the County Council clearly separates and
identifies halal food options from others available and these
arrangements are therefore non-discriminatory and meet legal
requirements.

Any change in policy — particularly if a school meals boycott did result
— could impact on the health and wellbeing of some pupils. School
meals provide a nutritious meal which must conform to national
standards on food and nutrition. It is possible that alternatives such as
packed lunches, eating at home or obtaining lunch from other sources
(e.g. fast food outlets or sandwich shops) may not meet the same
standards. Some consultation respondents whose children currently
ate un-stunned halal meat in their school lunches expressed a concern
that the proposal may result in health issues for their children in the
future.

It should be stated, however, that other respondents, many of whom
supported the proposal, said that vegetarian lunches were nutritious
and, in their view, would be much healthier for all children.

A number of respondents stated that if un-stunned halal meat was no
longer available they would have to provide a packed lunch or their
child would eat at home. Responses highlighted the impact this would
have as Muslim parent respondents clearly valued that their child
currently received a hot, healthy, nutritious meal at school and were
concerned that there could be ongoing issues for pupils if this were no
longer the case. Other Muslim parents mentioned that they had
children at schools where halal meat was not available and that
sometimes if the vegetarian option was something the child did not like
— e.g. Quorn — they came home very hungry from school on those
days. Others felt that the alternatives would be jacket potatoes or
pizza and that this would be "carb packed" as one put it.

There were suggestions amongst some Muslim parent consultees that
their children might opt for the vegetarian option if un-stunned halal

22

Page 116




meat was not available, but a number of parents added that their
children "loved meat" and felt that their opportunity to have choice
about what they could have from the menu was being significantly
reduced. It was clear that most respondents whose children currently
take the un-stunned halal meat option would not find stunned halal
meat an acceptable alternative and would feel that they were not being
treated fairly or equally.

In 2012/13, the County Council conducted a, limited, year group study
in Burnley and Pendle which indicated that 67% of pupils did not eat
breakfast before school — given the demographics of Burnley and
Pendle that is likely to include some pupils who could be affected by
any change in policy. For these pupils, a school lunch might be the
first and most nutritious meal of the day so there could be a particularly
adverse impact if a change in policy meant they no longer ate school
meals.

Free school meals for pupils in reception class, Years 1 and 2 have
been available since 2014 and there has also been increased
promotion and take up of free school meals by those low income
families who are eligible. This appears to have led to improvements in
attainment for some of the most disadvantaged pupils and general
improvements in behaviour.

As a number of the schools which use un-stunned Halal meat are in
more socio-economically deprived areas, it could be expected that if
pupils withdrew from school meals as a result of this policy, it could
impact on their future attainment and on their family budgets if
alternative lunches had to be funded.

However, we cannot claim that a potential change in the County
Council's current policy, would see academic attainment reduce as a
direct result. There are other providers, other than the County Council,
of halal meat available to schools, to help them meet their cultural food
requirements.

There is a possibility that if Muslim pupils were to take in packed
lunches or to boycott school meals, this may reduce the opportunities
for pupils to spend time together and may instead raise tensions

23

Page 117




between different groups of pupils. Some respondents to the
consultation mentioned the importance of pupils eating together and
were concerned that, if this no longer happened, it may foster a feeling
of "them and us" and undermine pupils' feelings of being part of the
school or local community. Furthermore, were it to be identified or
assumed that any reduction in take up of school meals had resulted in
a rise in school meals prices at affected schools, tensions may be
particularly heightened. This was mentioned in a number of the
consultation responses within the open question options.

Any media publicity which results from a change in policy may also
increase tensions through media or social media comment. This is of
particular concern as there have been increased tensions following
recent terrorist attacks in the UK and elsewhere and evidence of rises
in Islamaphobic hate crime both nationally and locally. The
consultation has produced some quite polarised opinions and it is
important to dispel those which are inaccurate — e.g. that pupils
generally do not have a choice of which meat they eat. It is also clear
from the tone and content of some of the consultation responses that
tensions have been heightened already. Other comments did highlight
individuals' concerns about the potential impact on community
cohesion and relations between pupils within schools and cohesion in
the wider community.

Question 4 —-Combined/Cumulative Effect

Could the effects of your decision combine with other factors or
decisions taken at local or national level to exacerbate the impact on any
groups?

For example - if the proposal is to impose charges for adult social care,
its impact on disabled people might be increased by other decisions
within the County Council (e.g. increases in the fares charged for
Community Transport and reductions in respite care) and national
proposals (e.g. the availability of some benefits) . Whilst LCC cannot
control some of these decisions, they could increase the adverse effect

24

Page 118



of the proposal. The LCC has a legal duty to consider this aspect, and
to evaluate the decision, including mitigation, accordingly.

If Yes — please identify these.

Consideration of this policy has identified that if a change to provide
stunned Halal meat only were made, there could be the following
impacts/effects within the County Council:

e Financial — in any lost revenue from reduced take-up of school
meals;

e Legal —itis possible that the Council would face a risk of
challenge to a decision to procure only halal meat that has been
stunned prior to slaughter. Such a challenge could be based
upon an allegation that:

(1) The Council has breached the Public Contracts Regulations

2015 and/or
(2) The Council has failed to comply with the Equality Act 2010
e Procurement - the County Council is obliged to procure in

accordance with the Public Contract Regulations 2015 (the
"Regulations") which prohibit any form of tender process which
effectively restricts or distorts competition. Accreditation (or any
aspect of the accreditation including for example a restriction on
stunning prior to slaughter) of meat as Halal is classed under the
Regulations as a "technical specification".

Regulation 42 (10) states that:
"Technical specifications shall afford equal access of economic
operators to the procurement procedure and shall not have the
effect of creating unjustified obstacles to the opening up of public
procurement to competition."

A requirement that animals should be stunned prior to slaughter could
also be categorised as a "characteristic" of a technical specification
addressed under Regulation 42 (6) which provides that:
"In the case of any public contract, the required characteristics may
also refer to —
(a) The specific process or method of production or provision of
the requested works, supplies or services, or

25

Page 119



(b) A specific process for another stage of its life cycle.
Even where such factors do not form part of the characteristics'
material substance provided that they are linked to the subject- matter
of the contract and proportionate to its value and its objectives".

To stipulate one sole accreditation body, or a specific slaughter
process, for Halal meat in Lancashire may breach Regulation 42 (10) if
it could be proved that it creates an unjustified obstacle to potential
bidders. However, Regulation 42 (6) suggests that there is some
flexibility allowing authorities to specify processes as part of a technical
specification provided that the process relates to what is being
procured and does not for example lead to a disproportionate increase
in costs.

It does not seem immediately apparent that limiting the range of
possible bidders to those who stun animals prior to slaughter would
either unfairly restrict competition or introduce an extraneous
requirement that would be unreasonable of itself;

e Emergency Planning — in its resilience plans and rest centre
arrangements the Service endeavours to meet the needs, where
practicable, of individuals or groups who may require special care
and attention or to consider cultural and religious requirements.

e Academic — lower attainment levels linked to lack of or no nutritional
meal at school

e Economic — impact on the market to suppliers of Halal meat and
also suppliers of other foodstuffs; reduction in school staff;
increased cost to families in terms of having to provide an
alternative lunchtime meal

e Older Peoples Services — potential that an aging population will
demand Halal provision and will select residential care or other
options which will cater for their requirements

e Social — potential rise in community tensions; religious or other
groups may react to the change negatively. The County Council's
reputation may be damaged in being seen to remove "choice" from
communities — particularly when the Council has had policies in

26

Page 120




place to meet the dietary requirements of different religions since
1984.

In March 2018 the Government published its Integrated Communities
Strategy Green Paper which includes sections focussed on schools
and young people alongside wider suggestions on how to further
integration between different communities, particularly in relation to
ethnicity/race, religion or belief and socio economic backgrounds. This
includes references to pupils of different backgrounds spending more
time socialising together at school as potentially benefitting integration.

Question 5 — Identifying Initial Results of Your Analysis

As a result of your analysis have you changed/amended your original
proposal?

Please identify how —

For example:

Adjusted the original proposal — briefly outline the adjustments
Continuing with the Original Proposal — briefly explain why

Stopped the Proposal and Revised it - briefly explain

The proposal has changed since its initial considerations in summer
2017. In the light of representations received and comments from the
public consultation and from Elected Members, there is a growing view
that un-stunned poultry/chicken be permitted in recognition of the
particular difficulties caused by stunning poultry/chickens

Question 6 - Mitigation

Please set out any steps you will take to mitigate/reduce any potential
adverse effects of your decision on those sharing any particular
protected characteristic. It is important here to do a genuine and
realistic evaluation of the effectiveness of the mitigation contemplated.

27

Page 121



Over-optimistic and over-generalised assessments are likely to fall short
of the “due regard” requirement.

Also consider if any mitigation might adversely affect any other groups
and how this might be managed.

Should the County Council cease to provide un-stunned halal meat, it
will clearly promote this to relevant schools and establishments and
continue to ensure that a vegetarian option is available as an
alternative to meet the dietary requirements of Muslim and other

pupils.

Cabinet member deliberations together with respondents to the
consultation have eluded to the continuation in supply of un-stunned
poultry/chickens due to the risks of death associated in stunning
poultry/chickens thus making it "haram". The amendment to continue
to supply un-stunned poultry products, if agreed, would provide some
measure of mitigation and should allow a halal meat option to be
available for Muslim pupils at those schools which require it.

Should the current policy remain in place, there are in-built
arrangements to address the needs of all pupils. Schools can
purchase stunned or un-stunned halal meat, Red Tractor Farm
Assured meat and poultry options which are available along with
vegetarian options. In all schools menus reflect the needs of other
religions or dietary requirements where schools request this. All non-
halal meat is Red Tractor Farm Assured meat.

Question 7 — Balancing the Proposal/Countervailing Factors

At this point you need to weigh up the reasons for the proposal — e.g.
need for budget savings; damaging effects of not taking forward the
proposal at this time — against the findings of your analysis. Please
describe this assessment. It is important here to ensure that the
assessment of any negative effects upon those sharing protected
characteristics is full and frank. The full extent of actual adverse
impacts must be acknowledged and taken into account, or the
assessment will be inadequate. What is required is an honest

28

Page 122



evaluation, and not a marketing exercise. Conversely, while adverse
effects should be frankly acknowledged, they need not be overstated or
exaggerated. Where effects are not serious, this too should be made
clear.

This proposal would result in the County Council only providing
stunned halal meat products to schools — which would largely affect
the provision of beef products for school meals. Cabinet member
deliberations together with respondents to the consultation have
eluded to the continuation in supply of un-stunned poultry/chickens
due to the risks of death associated in stunning poultry/chickens thus
making it "haram". The amendment to continue to supply un-stunned
poultry products, if agreed, would provide some measure of mitigation
and should allow a halal meat option to be available for Muslim pupils
at those schools which require it.

As at present there is no demand from schools for stunned halal meat
products, it is possible that some schools requiring halal meat would
make alternative arrangements.

Question 8 — Final Proposal

In summary, what is your final proposal and which groups may be
affected and how?

The County Council will only supply stunned halal meat products in
schools — which would largely affect the provision of beef products for
school meals. Cabinet member deliberations together with
respondents to the consultation have eluded to the continuation in
supply of un-stunned poultry/chickens due to the risks of death
associated in stunning poultry/chickens thus making it "haram". The
amendment to continue to supply un-stunned poultry products, if
agreed, would provide some measure of mitigation and should allow a
halal meat option to be available for Muslim pupils at those schools
which require it.

29

Page 123



This decision would mainly affect Muslim pupils and their families or
school staff who eat school meals at those schools where un-stunned
halal meat is currently available.

Question 9 — Review and Monitoring Arrangements

Describe what arrangements you will put in place to review and monitor
the effects of your proposal.

Any changes in the take up of school meals by pupils arising from this
policy outcome will be monitored on an ongoing basis by the School
Meals Service as will any changes in the numbers of schools using this
Traded Service.

Equality Analysis Prepared By: Dave Carr (Head of Service Policy,
Information and Commissioning: Start Well)

Equality Analysis Endorsed by Line Manager and/or Service Head: Ajay
Sethi (Head of Service Learning and Skills (Start Well)

Decision Signed Off By

Cabinet Member or Director

Please remember to ensure the Equality Decision Making Analysis
is submitted with the decision-making report and a copy is retained
with other papers relating to the decision.

For further information please contact:
Jeanette Binns

Equality and Cohesion Manager

30

Page 124



Jeanette.binns@lancashire.gov.uk

Telephone 01772 533516

Thank you

31

Page 125


mailto:Jeanette.binns@lancashire.gov.uk

Page 126



Agenda ltem 7

Meeting of the Full Council
Meeting to be held on Thursday, 18 October 2018

Report submitted by: Director of Finance

Electoral Division affected:
None;

Changes to Financial Regulations
(Appendix 'A' refers)

Contact for further information:

Joanne Ainsworth, Tel: (01772) 532358, Finance Manager - Capital & LEP and Special
Projects,

joanne.ainsworth@lancashire.gov.uk

Executive Summary

Financial Regulations currently require all amendments to the Capital Programme to
be approved by Cabinet, and this includes frequent minor operational changes
which can be met within the total approved budget for a service programme and
where the scope of works has not fundamentally changed.

Amendment of the Financial Regulations to allow delegation to officers to approve
amendments of this type will remove the necessity for Cabinet to approve these
changes in future. This will enable improved efficiency in the management and
monitoring of the Capital Programme and be overseen by the Capital Board.

Recommendation

Full Council is recommended to:

(i) Approve changes to the Financial Regulations relating to Capital Expenditure as
set out at Appendix 'A'".

(i) Authorise the Director of Corporate Services to make consequential
amendments to the Constitution arising from these changes.

Background and Advice

The Capital Programme, once agreed by Full Council, is managed and controlled by
an officer led Capital Board. However the Financial Regulations currently require
relatively routine adjustments to the capital programme that can be met within the

Lancashire
ancasas
Council (Srg:?)?

Page 127



approved budget for a service programme to be agreed by Cabinet, most often in
respect of the highways and transport programmes.

The majority of the changes within these Cabinet reports are not fundamental
programme changes but relate to operational adjustments concerning expenditure
amendments to smaller schemes and in-programme budget adjustments, for
example when outside factors mean that an individual scheme has to be
rescheduled and another scheme started in its place, or when initial work on a
scheme reveals that a lower than expected level of expenditure is necessary and
other schemes can be brought forward. There have also been instances where new
schemes are added to the programme through these reports, without affecting the
overall budget allocation for a programme.

In order to enhance the efficiency of decision making and ensure that decisions are
made at the most appropriate level within the organisation, it is proposed that the
changes to the Financial Regulations around capital expenditure as set out in
Appendix 'A'" are approved. In summary these are to delegate to officers:

e decisions relating to straightforward operational changes, that do not change
either the overall volume or scope of a particular service programme of works
but relate to changes to individual project budgets.

e approval of new small schemes where funding is from an outside
organisation, for example via a section 106 agreement.

If agreed, these decisions will be taken and recorded under the existing Heads of
Service "Scheme of Delegation" arrangements. The Capital Board will continue to
monitor and oversee these decisions.

Any requirement for significant new schemes, additional funding, or politically
sensitive matters will continue to require Cabinet approval, ensuring that the
transparency within the capital programme is maintained.

Cabinet and Cabinet Member oversight will continue, as will performance updates
through the regular money matters reporting. Additional arrangements will be put in
place to ensure that all county councillors are regularly updated to any changes that
affect their own electoral division.

Implications:

There are no financial implications for this report, it relates to procedural changes to
enable more streamlined management and reporting of the capital programme.

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
List of Background Papers

Paper Date Contact/Tel

None

Page 128



Reason for inclusion in Part Il, if appropriate

N/A

Page 129



Page 130



2.5.

2.6.

2.7.

2.8.

2.9.

2.10.

Appendix A

Extracts from Financial Regulations
Capital Expenditure - proposed amendments October 2018

Programmes of capital expenditure estimates shall be prepared jointly by the
Chief Finance Officer and the appropriate Heads of Service/Directors for
submission to the Cabinet and subsequently to the Full Council, for such
periods and at such times as shall be determined by the Full Council.

Programmes of capital expenditure estimates shall be consolidated into a
comprehensive report by the Chief Finance Officer in consultation with
individual Cabinet Members for submission to the Cabinet.

Approval by the Full Council of the programme of capital expenditure
estimates (The Capital Programme) shall constitute the authority for

incurring expenditure. Additions to the authorised Capital Programme may be
made by cabinet at any time provided that the source of finance is clear at the
point of approval and that the revenue consequences including that of any
increased borrowing can be contained within existing budgetary provision.
Amendments to the capital programme will be dealt with under the Scheme of
Delegation to officers where the changes are within the total approved budget
for a service programmeand the scope of works within it are not fundamentally
changed. Amendments requiring additional funding or a fundamental change
of scope of a programme will require Cabinet approval. The Cabinet shall have
the power to suspend all authority to commit or to incur any capital expenditure
which is not legally or contractually committed pending confirmation by the Full
Council.

The estimated expenditure committed by officers under the above authority
must not exceed the amount approved for the scheme in the Capital
Programme by more than 20% of the programme budget or £100,000
(whichever is the lower). If estimated expenditure does exceed the approved
Capital Programme figure by more than the above limits then approval to the
excess must be sought from Cabinet and Full Council as necessary before any
commitment is entered into.

The estimated expenditure referred to in para 2.7 shall be the amount of the
accepted tender (adjusted if necessary for any non-contract items), or, if
there is no tender, the latest estimate of cost. This figure shall constitute the
approved amount for monitoring purposes.

Cost increases which arise in the course of a programme are to be treated as
follows:

(a) if additional payments arising from cost increases are required to allow a
project to continue without delay or if the cost increases arise from
fluctuations in the price of loose furniture and equipment, no prior

approval is required but any action taken under this Regulation should

be reported by an officer decision under the scheme of delegation as long as
the programme budget is not breached.

(b) if total increased costs, including any previous increases are less than

Page 131



2.11.

2.12.

20% of the programme budget or £100,000 (whichever is the lower) approval
to the increase may be given by the Chief Finance Officer on the
recommendation of the appropriate Chief Officer and Capital Board, but any
action taken under this Regulation.

(c) approval to any other cost increases in a programme budget must be sought
from Cabinet before any expenditure arising from such cost increases is
committed. Where there are no additional costs to the council in relation to an
additional scheme, approval can be undertaken by officers under the Scheme
of Delegation.

For each capital project with an out-turn cost greater than £1,000,000 a
post-completion statement is to be presented to the relevant Cabinet
Member. The statement must show the original capital programme cost
estimate, the amount of the accepted tender, any subsequent approvals to
increased costs and the actual out-turn expenditure. The statement is to be
produced as soon as possible, and at the latest within two years after
practical completion of the project.

Where a capital scheme takes the form of a general approval to spend over a
programme and the detailed projects within the programme are identified,
officers can allocate funding between the projects as long as the overall funding
envelope is not exceeded and the scope is not changed. Where a change to
scope or overall costs is required this should be approval by Cabinet as
necessary. Where approval to a programme is a general allocation, with
scheme details to be worked up then approval by Cabinet to the detailed
programme of capital expenditure is necessary prior to expenditure being
incurred. This regulation does not apply to schemes for structural maintenance.

Page 132



Agenda ltem 8

Meeting of the Full Council
Meeting to be held on Thursday, 18 October 2018

Report submitted by: Executive Director of Growth, Environment, Transport and
Community Services

| Part A

Electoral Division affected:
None;

Report by the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman on the Blue
Badge Service - 20 August 2018
(Appendix 'A' refers)

Contacts for further information:

Angela Esslinger, Tel: (01772) 533950, Complaints & Appeals Manager,
angela.esslinger@lancashire.gov.uk

Sarah Jenkins, Tel: (01772) 537401, Head of Customer Access Service,
sarah.jenkins@lancashire.gov.uk

Executive Summary

Following a finding of fault causing injustice after an investigation by the Local
Government and Social Care Ombudsman, Full Council is required to consider what
action should be taken.

This report sets out the actions that have already been taken in response to the
Ombudsman's recommendations and Full Council is asked to endorse the further
actions that have been put in place in response.

Recommendation

That Full Council:

(i) Notes the recommendations set out in the Local Government and Social Care
Ombudsman's report at Appendix 'A'.

(i) Notes the actions already taken and endorses the further steps proposed in
response to the report's recommendations as set out below.

Background

On 20 August 2018 the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman published a
public report which found fault causing injustice by Lancashire County Council. A
copy of the report is attached at Appendix 'A'.

Lancashire
Sncadie
Council (Srg:?)?

Page 133



The report at paragraph 30 onwards includes recommendations as to how the
County Council could best remedy the injustice caused. The actions already taken in
response and further actions proposed are set out below.

1. Apologise to the complainant for the failure to offer his son a face to face
assessment and pay him £250 for the time and trouble it has put him to;

A letter of apology was sent to the complainant by the relevant Cabinet Member on 3
September. This fully acknowledged the distress caused and accepted the findings
of the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman report. A payment has been
made.

2. Review the way it deals with applications for blue badges to ensure:
a. It does not discount people with variable conditions;

The Blue Badge Team is responsible for the determination of an applicant's eligibility
using the information provided on the application form. The information is entered
into a matrix which is used to establish if the applicant meets the eligibility criteria for
a Blue Badge in line with Department for Transport guidelines.

The matrix has now been amended to ensure all applicants who have a variable
condition are immediately identified through this process. The matrix now highlights
a variable condition and instructs the assessor to implement a face to face
Independent Mobility Assessment. In these cases we will instruct Able2, the
company which carries out the Independent Mobility Assessments on our behalf, to
arrange a face to face assessment. This type of assessment will give the applicant
the opportunity to discuss the frequency and severity of their condition and how this
affects their ability to walk. It will also give the assessor the opportunity to observe
the customer to ensure the decision they make is based on both written and visual
observation.

b. It takes account of people with hidden or non-physical conditions which
affect walking ability.

The Department for Transport guidelines are currently unclear and can cause
confusion for local authorities when determining eligibility for an applicant who
suffers with a hidden or non-physical disability. We were recently invited to contribute
to the Draft consultation regarding changes to the eligibility criteria and have
positively supported the proposed changes.

Within the proposal the Department for Transport also identified the need for clearer
guidelines for authorities to enable applicants with these types of disabilities to have
a clear route to a Blue Badge. The Department for Transport is currently developing
new guidance which is expected to be released in 2019. In advance of this, new
practice has been implemented within the Blue Badge Team which ensures that
applicants who suffer non-physical conditions or hidden disabilities which affect their
ability to walk will automatically be referred for a face to face Independent Mobility
Assessment.

Page 134



Following on from the Ombudsman report we will offer a face to face Independent
Mobility Assessment in all cases where a desk based assessment result is disputed
by the applicant. In addition Able2 has implemented a review process whereby any
applicant who has undergone an assessment by the Mobility Assessors, and the
decision is to decline, will have their application reviewed by a senior occupational
therapist before the results are sent back to Lancashire County Council.

Advice

It is the requirement of the Local Government Act 1974 as amended that, where
there is a finding of fault causing injustice, the report is laid before the Council and,
within three months of receipt of the report, the Council notifies the Local
Government and Social Care Ombudsman of the action that it has taken.
Consultations

N/A

Implications:

This item has the following implications, as indicated:

Risk management

If the Council fails to comply with the legislation, the Local Government and Social
Care Ombudsman has power to require the Council to publish a statement detailing
why they have not complied with the recommendations in the report.

Financial

The cost of administrating Blue Badge payments is expected to increase due to a
higher number of assessments going forward for a face to face assessment but the
exact figures are not currently able to be determined. Should the actions not be put
in place there may be further claims payable by the County Council if the Local
Government and Social Care Ombudsman decides that their recommendations have
not been followed.

List of Background Papers

Paper Date Contact/Directorate/Tel
None

Reason for inclusion in Part Il, if appropriate

N/A

Page 135



Page 136



Appendix A

Local Government &
Social Care

OMBUDSMAN

Investigation into a complaint against

Lancashire County Council
(reference number: 17 014 970)

20 August 2018

Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman
PO Box 4771 | Coventry | CV4 OEH
www.lgo.org.uk

Page 137


http://www.lgo.org.uk/

The Ombudsman’s role

For 40 years the Ombudsman has independently and impartially investigated complaints.
We effectively resolve disputes about councils and other bodies in our jurisdiction by
recommending redress which is proportionate, appropriate and reasonable based on all
the facts of the complaint. Our service is free of charge.

Each case which comes to the Ombudsman is different and we take the individual needs
and circumstances of the person complaining to us into account when we make
recommendations to remedy injustice caused by fault.

We have no legal power to force councils to follow our recommendations, but they almost
always do. Some of the things we might ask a council to do are:

> apologise
> pay a financial remedy

> improve its procedures so similar problems don’t happen again.

Section 30 of the 1974 Local Government Act says that a report should not normally
name or identify any person. The people involved in this complaint are referred to by a
letter or job role.

Key to names used

Mr X The complainant

The Company Able 2 Occupational Therapy Services

Final Report 2
Page 138




Report summary

Adult care services
Mr X complains about the Council’s decision not to give his son a blue badge.

Finding
Fault found causing injustice and recommendations made.

Recommendations

The Council must consider the report and confirm within three months the action it
has taken or proposes to take. The Council should consider the report at its full
Council, Cabinet, or other appropriately delegated committee of elected

members, and we will require evidence of this. (Local Government Act 1974, section
31(2), as amended)

In addition to the requirements set out above, the Council has agreed to take
these actions based on our recommendations:

+ apologise to Mr X for the failure to offer his son a face to face assessment and
pay him £250 for the time and trouble it has put him to;

* review the way it deals with applications for blue badges to ensure:
o itdoes not discount people with variable conditions;

o it takes account of people with hidden or non-physical conditions which
affect walking ability.

Final Report 3
Page 139



Introduction

The complainant, whom we shall refer to as Mr X, complains about the Council’s
decision not to give his son a blue badge.

Legal and administrative background

We investigate complaints about ‘maladministration’ and ‘service failure’. In this
report, we have used the word 'fault' to refer to these. We must also consider
whether any fault has had an adverse impact on the person making the
complaint. We refer to this as ‘injustice’. If there has been fault which has caused
an injustice, we may suggest a remedy. (Local Government Act 1974, sections 26(1) and
26A(1), as amended)

We investigate complaints about councils and certain other bodies. Where an
individual, organisation or private company is providing services on behalf of a
council, we can investigate complaints about the actions of these providers. (Local
Government Act 1974, section 25(7), as amended)

How we considered this complaint

We have produced this report following the examination of relevant files and
documents and discussions with the complainant.

We gave the complainant and the Council a confidential draft of this report and
invited their comments. The comments received were taken into account before
the report was finalised

Investigation

What happened

Mr X’s son has Down’s syndrome, and a medical condition which causes
dizziness and loss of balance. He had a blue badge which expired in
September 2017. He had been eligible for the blue badge “without further
assessment” as he received the higher rate of the mobility component of the
Disability Living Allowance (DLA).

Mr X’s son now receives a Personal Independence Payment (PIP), rather than
DLA. He no longer qualifies for a blue badge “without further assessment” as he
does not have 8 points or more under the moving around activity of the mobility
component of PIP to do so. Mr X applied to renew his son’s blue badge in
October last year. The Council turned him down based on the information
provided on the application form.

Mr X complained to us in December. He said the Council had turned his son’s
application down on a technical issue to do with the points system for PIP. He
said his son’s problems were mental as well as physical. He said non-disabled
parking bays were too restrictive as his son needs space to get in and out of the
car. He said he needed to be able to drop his son off close to where he is going
as he needs to support him all the time.

We told Mr X he needed to complain to the Council before we could investigate
his complaint.

Mr X complained to the Council in January 2018. When the Council replied to
Mr X’s complaint it referred to the Department for Transport’s Guidance. It said
entitlement to a blue badge depended on the applicant’s difficulty in walking. It

Final Report 4

Page 140



said mental/cognitive disabilities did not qualify someone for a blue badge but
they could still be eligible if not able to walk or had very considerable difficulty in
walking. It said it could not take into account the need for more space to fully
open the car doors. However, it said it would offer his son an Independent
Mobility Assessment by an Occupational Therapist, initially “in the form of a paper
assessment and in the event that a decision cannot be made a face to face
assessment may be required”. It invited Mr X to contact the Blue Badge Team to
arrange an assessment and obtain an application form.

On the application form Mr X said his son could walk short distances but could not
come down stairs on his feet. He said he used a wheelchair on longer trips and
needed full support/supervision to keep him safe. He said his son could walk 100
metres in 30 minutes (including rests and walking for 10 minutes). He added that
this could vary from 7 minutes to an hour, depending on his son’s condition. He
said his son was short of breath when:

* hurrying or going up a slight hill;
» walking with people of the same age; and

« walking at his own pace on level ground. He said he could be too breathless to
leave home or after dressing.

He put the walking difficulties down to a severe mental impairment which means
he gets anxious and refuses to walk.

The Council uses a Company to do its independent mobility assessments. The
Company did a paper assessment on 6 February on a paper screen assessment
form for another local authority’s disabled parking scheme. The Company says
the terms of that scheme are the same as those for the blue badge scheme.

The form does not say how far the son can walk. It says he uses no walking
equipment indoors or outdoors but also says he sometimes uses a wheelchair
outdoors. It says he can negotiate steps indoors and outdoors with physical
assistance and using a handrail. It says he experiences moderate pain when
walking. It says he needs to stop when walking but does not identify the “recovery
time”. It says he does not experience breathlessness but suggests he may need
to stop walking due to breathlessness. The Company says it could not use all the
information provided on the application form because it says “varies” and Mr X did
not provide information in the requested format.

The assessment says the son was not eligible for a blue badge because:

» “Whilst we do appreciate that [Mr X’s son] has difficulties mobilising; however
he is independently mobile. Unfortunately cognitive difficulties do not form part
of the Department for Transport criteria for Blue Badges and cannot be
considered. There is insufficient evidence to support that [his] mobility is
significantly impeded to meet the current eligibility criteria for provision of a
Blue Badge.”

The Council wrote to Mr X on 9 February. It said the October 2017 application
and the follow up independent mobility assessment had both been considered
under the “eligible subject to further assessment” scheme. It said the information
provided on his son’s applications showed he did not meet the eligibility criteria
for a blue badge. It repeated what the assessment had said about the son’s
eligibility (see paragraph 14 above). It said the decision was final and no further
application could be made for three months, unless there was a significant
change in the son’s mobility.

Mr X complained to us.

Final Report 5
Page 141



20.

21.

22.

23.

The Company accepts there are some anomalies between the application and
assessment forms which it says it is addressing. However, it says it could not use
all the information provided by Mr X’s father as he did not fill the form in properly
but said his son’s condition “varies”. The Council says the decision on the son’s
application was clear so there was no need for the Company to see him face to
face. The Council says the Company makes 64% of its decisions on blue badge
applications without a face to face assessment.

When advised we were considering issuing a public report on this complaint, the
Council asked the Company to do a face to face mobility assessment. This
resulted in the Company deciding Mr X’s son is eligible for a blue badge. The
Council says the Company has confirmed it is following the Guidance regarding
both physical and non-physical disabilities. The Council has asked the company
to do face to face assessments for all applicants with non-physical disabilities,
pending receipt of advice from the Department for Transport. The Council says it
will also refer applicants for a face to face assessment if they question a negative
decision following a desk based assessment.

What should have happened

The Department for Transports’ Blue Badge Scheme Local Authority Guidance
(England) is not statutory guidance. Nevertheless, the Council says it is following
that Guidance. The Guidance says:

* “... whilst desk-based assessments have a role as a filtering mechanism to
identify applicants who are clearly eligible or clearly ineligible for a badge, they
cannot be successfully used as the sole means of determining all applicants’
eligibility for a badge.”

» ‘It is good practice for local authorities to provide scope for an applicant to be
referred for an independent mobility assessment if they are unable to make a
clear and robust decision on eligibility using cross-checking or desk-
assessment.”

The Guidance says when considering whether someone has very considerable
difficulty in walking several factors may be relevant: excessive pain;
breathlessness; distance walked; speed; use of walking aids; outdoor walking
ability; and whether walking presents a danger to the applicant’s life or would be
likely to lead to a serious deterioration in their health.

The Guidance also says:

*  “Whilst medical conditions such as asthma, Crohn's disease/incontinent
conditions, autism, Myalgic Encephalomyelitis (M.E.) and other
mental/cognitive/intellectual disabilities are not in themselves a qualification for
a badge, people with these conditions may be eligible for a badge if they are
unable to walk or have very considerable difficulty in walking. Eligibility is not
determined by the presence or absence of any particular diagnosis or
condition. Provided that an applicant has a permanent and substantial
disability, a local authority's eligibility decision should be based on whether the
applicant’s difficulty in walking meets the criterion in the regulations.”

Appendix G of the Guidance identifies the “core principles” for independent
mobility assessments. They include “observing” the applicant walking.

The Department for Transport has carried out a consultation exercise with a view
to making changes to clarify its Guidance. The forward to the consultation
exercise, which has now ended, said “The current rules embrace all conditions,
physical or otherwise, but it has become clear to us that the regulations and
guidance are not clearly understood by local authorities. People with hidden

Final Report 6

Page 142



24,

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

disabilities may be finding it difficult to access badges, even though their condition
causes them very significant difficulties undertaking a journey.”

Conclusions

The Council did two desk based assessments of the son’s application but did not
offer him a face to face independent mobility assessment. In relying solely on
desk based assessments for 64% of the cases referred to the Company for an
independent mobility assessment, the Council was not complying with the
Guidance. The expectation within the Guidance is that independent mobility
assessments will be done face to face so walking ability can be observed. It is
good practice to offer someone a face to face assessment if they question the
outcome of a desk based assessment. That did not happen with Mr X’s son. That
was fault by the Council. The Council has now confirmed that people who
question the outcome of a desk based assessment will be offered a face to face
assessment.

The Company’s desk based assessment of the son’s application was flawed. The
assessment did not include all the relevant information (e.g. distance walked,
speed and recovery time) and some of it was contradictory (e.g. use of equipment
outdoors and breathlessness). That was also fault for which the Council is
accountable.

The Guidance does not include advice on assessing variable conditions.
However, that does not mean they can be ignored. The right way to assess a
variable condition is via a face to face mobility assessment, at which questions
can be asked about their frequency and the severity of any impact on walking
ability. The Council has confirmed that it is now working to improve the way it
deals with people who have variable conditions. It has confirmed that the
Company will invite people with variable conditions to a face to face assessment.

The Council is right to say that a mental health condition does not qualify
someone for a blue badge. But it is at fault for saying walking difficulties arising
from cognitive impairments cannot be taken into account. The relevant
consideration is walking ability. The Department for Transport has consulted on
changes to the Guidance which, when implemented, will make it clearer that
walking difficulties can arise from hidden disabilities as well as physical
disabilities. However, that is simply to clarify what is already the case. The
Council has confirmed that it is now refering all applicants with non-physical
disabilities for a face to face assessment.

Decision

The Council was at fault because it:

+ did not offer Mr X’s son a face to face mobility assessment;

» said he was not eligible for a blue badge because he has cognitive rather than
physical disabilities; and

+ did not properly consider the variable nature of his condition.

The Council’s faults caused injustice to Mr X’s son because he has been denied

the opportunity of having his application for a blue badge considered properly. It

has caused injustice to Mr X because of the time and trouble he has been put to

in pursuing the complaint. It needs to take the action identified in paragraph 30
below.

Final Report 7
Page 143



30.

31.

32.

Recommended action

The Council must consider the report and confirm within three months the action it
has taken or proposes to take. The Council should consider the report at its full
Council, Cabinet, or other appropriately delegated committee of elected

members, and we will require evidence of this. (Local Government Act 1974, section
31(2), as amended)

When a council commissions another organisation to provide services on its
behalf it remains responsible for those services and for the actions of the
organisation providing them. So, although we found fault with the actions of the
Company, we have made recommendations to the Council.

Based on our recommendations, the Council has agreed to:

» apologise to Mr X for the failure to offer his son a face to face assessment and
pay him £250 for the time and trouble it has put him to;

* review the way it deals with applications for blue badges to ensure:
o it does not discount people with variable conditions;

o it takes account of people with hidden or non-physical conditions which
affect walking ability.

Final Report 8
Page 144



Agenda ltem 9

Meeting of the Full Council
Meeting to be held on Thursday, 18 October 2018

Report submitted by: Head of Legal and Democratic Services

Electoral Division affected:
None;

Rural Services Network - Appointment of County Council Representative

Contact for further information:
Dave Gorman, Tel: (01772) 534261, Senior Democratic Services Officer,
dave.gorman@lancashire.gov.uk

Executive Summary

Full Council is asked to approve the appointment of a county council representative
to serve on the Rural Services Network for the 2018/19 municipal year.

Recommendation
Full Council is asked to approve the appointment of County Councillor Cosima

Towneley to serve on the Rural Services Network until the Annual Meeting of Full
Council in May 2019.

Background and Advice

The Rural Services Network is a Special Interest Group of the Local Government
Association and was formed as a successor body to the Local Government
Association's Rural Commission. It acts as the national champion for rural services,
ensuring that people in rural areas have a strong voice, and works for a fair deal for
rural communities to maintain their social and economic viability for the benefit of the
nation as a whole.

The County Council has been invited to nominate a member to serve on the Rural
Services Network and it is considered that membership would benefit Lancashire
and its rural communities. It is proposed that County Councillor Cosima Towneley be
appointed to serve as the County Council's representative on the Rural Services
Network until the Annual Meeting of Full Council in May 2019.

Lancashire
ancasas
Council (Srg:?)?

Page 145



Consultations

N/A

Implications:

This item has the following implications, as indicated:

Risk management

There are no risks associated with the proposals set out in this report.

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
List of Background Papers

Paper Date Contact/Tel
None
Reason for inclusion in Part Il, if appropriate

N/A

Page 146



Agenda ltem 10

Meeting of the Full Council
Meeting to be held on Thursday, 18 October 2018

Report submitted by: Head of Legal and Democratic Services

Electoral Division affected:
None;

Lancashire County Council Timetable of Meetings 2019/20
(Appendix 'A' refers)

Contact for further information:
Cath Rawcliffe, Tel: (01772) 533380, Democratic Services Officer
cath.rawcliffe@lancashire.gov.uk

Executive Summary

This report sets out a draft timetable of Full Council, Cabinet and Committee
meetings for the period 1 June 2019 to 31 May 2020.

Recommendation
Full Council is asked to approve the timetable of Full Council, Cabinet and

Committee meetings for the period 1 June 2019 to 31 May 2020 inclusive as set out
at Appendix 'A'.

Background and Advice

Attached at Appendix 'A' is a draft timetable of Full Council, Cabinet and Committee
meetings for the period 1 June 2019 to 31 May 2020 inclusive.

The timetable has been prepared taking into account:

* The county council's existing governance and decision making arrangements

+ School holiday closures

» Conferences, e.g. annual political party, national local government events
(where dates are confirmed)

* Major religious holidays

+ District Council budget meeting dates (where dates are confirmed)

» District Council elections to be held on 7 May 2020

Once agreed the timetable of meetings will be circulated widely around the County
Council and to all 12 Lancashire District Councils for information.

Lancashire
ancasas
Council (Srg:?)?

Page 147



Consultations

N/A

Implications:

This item has the following implications, as indicated:
Risk management

No significant risks have been identified.

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
List of Background Papers

Paper Date Contact/Tel
None
Reason for inclusion in Part Il, if appropriate

N/A

Page 148



611 abed

Lancashire County Council Timetable of Meetings 2019/20

JUN"9]| JUL'9 | AUG™"9 |SEP'19| OCT'19 | NOV'19 | DEC'19 | JAN'20 | FEB '20 MAR '20 | APR'20 | MAY '20
Audit, Risk ar?d Governance 2.00 pm 29 28 27 18
Committee (w) Monday
. 2.00 pm
Cabinet (w) Thursday 13 11 8 5 3 7 5 16 6 12 9 14
. . 2.00 pm
Cabinet Committee on Thursday 6 12 *15 *11 *19 30
Performance Improvement
Children's Ser_‘wces Scrutiny 2.00pm on 3 0 8 15 2 23
Committee (w) Wednesday
. 6
Corporate Parenting Board prm on 24* 12 26 30 25 12
various days
Corporate Complaints Committee| 10.00 am » 18 3 .
# Monday
Development Control Committee | 10.30 am 19 24 1 16 27 ” 4 -
(w) Wednesday
Education Scrutiny Committee 10.30 am
18 29 3
(w) Tuesday
Employment Committee 2.00 pm 10 8 *3 7 11 9 13 10 9 6 11
Monday
. . 10.30 am
External Scrutiny Committee (w) 16 15 21 21
Tuesday
. 1.30 pm 13 (B)
Full Council (w) Thursday 18 17 12 27 21(AGM)
. . 10.30
Health Scrutiny Committee (w) T am 2 24 5 10 4 31 *13
uesday
. . 10.00.
Internal Scrutiny Committee (w) L 12 27 15 17 13 15
Friday
Lancashire Health and Wellbeing 2.00pm 3 10 19 28 17 19
Board Tuesday
. . 10.00 am
Pension Fund Committee . 21 20 29 6
Friday
. 10.30 am
Regulatory Committee (w) Wednesday 26 18 20 29 11
Student Support Appeals 10.00 am
K 3 1 2 *8 4 2 20 16 20
Committee # Monday
A = Provisional meeting B = Budget # = Meeting not open to press and public

* = Change of day

AGM = Annual General Meeting

(w) = Meeting is webcast

V. XIpuaddy



Page 150



Agenda Iltem 12

Meeting of the Full Council
Meeting to be held on Thursday, 18 October 2018

Report submitted by: Head of Legal and Democratic Services

Electoral Division affected:
None;

Report of the Cabinet (Part B)

Contact for further information:
Ryan Hyde, Tel: (01772) 536212, Business Support Officer,
ryan.hyde@lancashire.gov.uk

Executive Summary

The report of the Cabinet from its meetings on 12 July 2018, 9 August 2018, and 13
September 2018.

Recommendation

That the report of the Cabinet, as now presented, be noted.

Background and Advice

The agenda and minutes of the meetings below may be viewed at
http://council.lancashire.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=122.

Meeting 12 July 2018

Policy position on the future provision of Halal Meat

Resolved: That:

i. The review, as set out at Appendix 'A' and associated annexes together with
background papers demonstrating the history of this policy area, be noted.

i. The findings from the public consultation (Appendix 'B') and the updated
Equality Analysis (Appendix 'C') be noted.

iii. The supply of un-stunned halal meat, with the exception of poultry, to schools
be ceased.

iv. A further discussion be held with the Lancashire Council of Mosques to see
how the implications of the decision at (iii) above can be mitigated should the

Lancashire
ancasas
Council (Srg:?)?

Page 151


http://council.lancashire.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=122
http://council.lancashire.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=122

Lancashire Council of Mosques proceed with its threat to boycott school
meals.

Annual Reports of the County Council's Champions 2017/18

Resolved: That the annual reports of the county council's five Champions for
2017/18 be noted.

Procurement Report - Request Approval to Commence Procurement Exercises

Resolved: That the commencement of procurement exercises for the following
areas be approved:

i. Provision of Rosebud Investment Fund Management; and
ii. Traffic Management.

Changes to the County Council's Minimum Revenue Provision Policies

Resolved: That Full Council be recommended to approve the revised Minimum
Revenue Provision policy statements for both 2017/18 and 2018/19, utilising the
annuity method to calculate the Minimum Revenue Provision of both supported and
self-financed capital expenditure, as set out in the report now presented.

Appointments to Outside Bodies

Resolved: That:

i. Subject to the changes confirmed at the meeting, the representation and
appointments listed in Appendix 'A' for outside bodies be approved for
2018/19 and until the next county council elections in May 2021 with
subsequent appointments being determined every four years following a
county council election.

ii. The Political Group secretaries be requested to co-ordinate the nomination of
members to fill any in-year changes and vacancies, and in consultation with
Democratic Services and the Deputy Leader of the county council, notify the
Director of Corporate Services who will approve the changes and
appointments under the Scheme of Delegation to Heads of Service.

Preston Riversway and Broadgate Flood Risk Management Scheme

Resolved: That:

i. The submission of a bid to the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local
Government for £5.77m of European Regional Development Funding to
enable progress with design and delivery of the flood risk management
scheme shown in Appendix 'A' and described in the report now presented, be
approved.

ii. The Director of Corporate Services be authorised to establish a legal
agreement between the county council and the Environment Agency to
ensure that all risks arising for the county council from the administration of
the grant be minimised and managed responsibly.

Page 152



iii. The Director of Corporate Services be authorised to establish a legal
agreement between the county council and the Ministry of Housing,
Communities and Local Government to ensure that the administration of the
grant will meet all European Union, national government and county council
requirements for audit and accountability.

Lancashire County Council (Barlow Street, Bobbin Street, Dale Street,
Grimshaw Street, Lower Antley Street, Wheat Street, Accrington, Hyndburn)
(Prohibition of Waiting) Order

Resolved: That the making of a Traffic Regulation Order, as set out in Appendices
'B' and 'C' to the report now presented, be approved.

Padiham Public Realm Improvements

Resolved: That:

i. Approval be given to the county council entering into a section 278 agreement
under which the council will accept staged payments totalling £2,072,873 from
Burnley Borough Council together with any other additional financial
resources for the project that may be agreed.

ii. Payments received be added to the Highways block of the 2018/19, 2019/20,
2020/21 and 2021/22 capital programme in advance of any application for
payment from the appointed contractor.

Proposed Amendments to the Highways and Transport Capital Programmes

Resolved: That the proposed amendments to the Highways and Transport Capital
Programmes be approved.

University of Central Lancashire Masterplan and Associated Highways
Modifications

Resolved: That approval be given to the addition to the capital programme of an
advance payment of £10.4m proposed at present from the University of Central
Lancashire to be paid once the section 278 agreement is completed with the
following estimated profile: £0.75m (2018/19), £7.5m (2019/20), and £2.15m
(2020/21).

Publication of the Draft Revised Minerals and Waste Local Plan for Public
Consultation

Resolved: That:

i. The publication of the draft revised Joint Lancashire Minerals and Waste
Local Plan, as set out at Appendix 'A', be approved for consultation purposes
during the summer.

ii. The revised Joint Lancashire Minerals and Waste Local Plan Local
Development Scheme 2014-20, as presented at Appendix 'B', which sets out
the timetable for plan production, be adopted.

Page 153



iii. The outcomes of the scoping consultation, and the proposed changes to the
Local Plan review, set out in the Scoping Consultation Outcomes Report
presented at Appendix 'C', be noted.

Awarding of Small Grants to Third Sector Groups which are Registered with
the Children and Family Wellbeing Service, including Grants to Individual
Young People

Resolved: That:

i. The recommendations of the District Youth Councils on the applications for
grants from third sector groups which are registered with the Children and
Family Wellbeing Service, as set out in the report, be approved.

ii. The full application submitted by King's Church Youth Group be supported
and that the Group be awarded a total grant of £980 including the grant
approved at (i) above, subject to the approval of the District Youth Council.

Recommendation of the Edwards Stocks Massey Bequest Fund Joint Advisory
Committee

Resolved: That:

i. The allocation of funds as recommended by the Joint Advisory Committee at
its meeting on 15 June 2018, as set out at Appendix 'A' now presented, be
approved.

ii. In respect of the Higher Education Student Scholarship Awards, the interview
panel of the Joint Advisory Committee be authorised to award the
scholarships at its meeting on 21 December 2018.

Revision of Foster Care Allowances

Resolved: That the increase in the current scale of Foster Care Allowances for
2018/19, as set out in the report and at Appendix 'A' now presented, be approved.

Primary Authority Status

Resolved: That:

i. The formation of an Environmental Health Primary Authority working
relationship with Preston City Council, as set out in the report, be approved.

ii. The Lancashire School and Residential Care Catering Service be requested
to establish future safe systems of work within Lancashire's catering
establishments, and that the current and future systems be scrutinised and
ratified by Preston City Council.

Capital Strategy for Schools — Condition Led Capital Investment Programme,
part 2018/19

Resolved: That the proposed list of maintenance schemes in Lancashire schools, as
set out at Appendix 'A' now presented, totalling £969,980, be agreed as a further
phase of high priority school repairs.

Page 154



Police Community Support Officers - Budget Proposals

Resolved: That the county council's part funding of Police Community Support
Officers be withdrawn.

Implementation of the Care Act 2014 - Approval of Revised Adult Social Care
Policies and Procedures

Resolved: That the implementation of the new 'Managing Provider Failure' policy, as
set out at Appendix 'A' now presented, be approved.

Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act: Annual Report to Cabinet

Resolved: That the updated corporate policies, as presented at Appendices 'A’, 'B'
and 'C', be approved.

Appendix 'A' of Item 19 - Capital Strategy for Schools — Condition Led Capital
Investment Programme, part 2018/19

Resolved: That the additional information in relation to item 19 on the agenda —
Capital Strategy for Schools — Condition Led Capital Investment Programme, part
2018/19 be noted.

Meeting 9 Auqust 2018

Update on Preston Youth Zone Operator

Resolved: That:

i. The council withdraw from the delivery of a Preston Youth Zone on the
Preston Bus Station site and extend the public realm treatment associated
with the Bus Station redevelopment across the whole western apron.

ii. The additional public realm works estimated at £1.25m be funded from the
£5.925m currently allocated to the Preston Youth Zone.

iii. The £3.431m capital funding remaining following reductions of £1.244m
abortive costs and £1.25m additional Public Realm costs be repurposed.

iv. The £150,000 revenue allocation previously committed to the operation of the
Preston Youth Zone be released.

v. Officers explore with stakeholders alternative options that might work in the
current environment.

Request Approval to Commence Procurement Exercises
Resolved: That the commencement of procurement exercises for the following
areas be approved:

i. The collection, transportation and treatment of wood waste.
ii. The provision of Extra Care Services, Greenbrook House and Brookside.

Page 155



Provision of Mobile Phones to Councillors

Resolved: That the proposals set out in the report for the future provision of mobile
phones to councillors be approved.

Discretionary Concessionary Travel - Results of Public Consultation

Resolved: That:
i. Anincrease to the charge made to disabled NoWcard holders for travel before
9.30a.m. Monday to Friday from 50p to £1 be approved.
ii. Officers be authorised to amend the Joint Concessionary Travel Scheme and
liaise with bus operators to ensure that they make the necessary
arrangements for collection of the fare.

Transport Information Centres - Results of Public Consultation

Resolved: That:

i. Officers be authorised to investigate the expressions of interest received from
interested parties who may wish to take over the management of some or all
of the transport information centres.

ii. The service be maintained whilst the expressions of interest are investigated.

Lancashire Cycling and Walking Strategy

Resolved: That:

i. The Lancashire Cycling and Walking Strategy document, as presented, be
approved for publication subject to Blackburn with Darwen and Blackpool
Councils also approving the document for publication.

ii. Responsibility to approve any further changes to the strategy be delegated to
the Executive Director for Growth, Environment, Transport and Community
Services in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Highways and
Transport.

iii. Draft Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plans for the five Highway and
Transport Masterplan areas of Central Lancashire, Lancaster, West
Lancashire, Fylde Coast and East Lancashire, be submitted to Cabinet in due
course, for the purposes of wider consultation.

A6 Corridor Works, Broughton, Additional Measures

Resolved: That the following additional measures along the existing A6 Garstang
Road, Broughton, be approved:
i. Aroad narrowing with priority to eastbound traffic and associated relocation of
a bus stop, Whittingham Lane, Broughton, as set out in the report.
ii. An additional length of footway and a cycle track with right of way on foot,
Garstang Road, Broughton, as set out in the report.

Proposed Amendments to the Highways and Transport Capital Programmes

Resolved: That the proposed amendments to the Highways and Transport Capital
Programmes be approved.

Page 156



Winter Service Plan & Proposal to Lower Treatment Intervention Level

Resolved: That:

i. The recommendations of the Internal Scrutiny Committee's Task and Finish
Group on the proposed lowering of the treatment intervention level as set out
in the report be noted

ii. The proposed amendment to the Winter Service Plan, as set out in the report,
be approved

Lancashire County Council (Liverpool Road South, Lordsgate Drive, Unnamed
Road Opposite Lordsgate Drive, Burscough, West Lancashire
Borough)(Prohibition of waiting) Order 201*

Resolved: That the proposals as advertised and as shown on the plans in the report
be approved.

S278 Olive School, Adelaide Street, Preston
Addition of Proposed Changes to Highway Layout at Adelaide Street and Miller
Street, Preston, Associated with the Olive School Development, (Section 278
funded) to the Highways Block of the 2018/19 Capital Programme

Resolved: That the addition of £38,560 to the Highways block of the 2018/19 Capital
Programme be approved, as set out in the report.

Capital Redevelopment of the Harris Museum, Art Gallery and Library
Resolved: That:

i. Capital expenditure of £1m be allocated as a contribution to the
Redevelopment of the Harris.

ii. The submission of a bid for approximately £4.5 million to the Heritage Lottery
Fund be approved as part of a redevelopment project estimated to cost £10.5
million.

Works to Operational Premises

Resolved: That the recommendations set out in the report be approved.

Waste Transport Services

Resolved: That the recommendations set out in the report be approved.

Pennine Reach: Making and advertising of the Lancashire County Council
(Church Gateway - Junction Improvement at Market Street and Blackburn
Road, Church, Accrington) Compulsory Purchase Order 2018

Resolved: That the recommendations set out in the report be approved.

Proposed M55 to St Annes Link Road

Resolved: That the recommendations set out in the report be approved.

Page 157



Cuerden Strategic Site - Lancashire Central
Resolved: That the recommendations set out in the report be approved.

Community Asset Transfer - Bamber Bridge Library and Brunshaw Young
People's Centre

Resolved: That recommendations (ii), (iii), (iv) and (v) as set out in the report be
approved, but that recommendation (i) be not approved.

Meeting 13 September 2018

Lancashire Safeguarding Boards — Annual Report 2017/18
Resolved: That the draft report be noted.
Money Matters 2018/19 Position — Quarter 1

Resolved: That

i. The current forecast overspend of £2.680m on the revenue budget in 2018/19
be noted.

i. The reduced funding gap of £135.300m covering the period 2019/20 to
2022/23 as set out in the revised financial outlook forecast for the council, be
noted.

iii. The budget adjustments for 2019/20, and following years' increases, included
in the revised MTFS, be approved.

iv. The contents of the county council's reserves position be noted, and the
transfers between reserves contained within the report be approved.

v. The re-profiled Capital Delivery Programme of £114.817m for 2018/19 be
approved.

vi. The current forecast under-delivery of £3.435m on the capital programme in
2018/19 be noted.

Procurement Report — Request Approval to Commence Procurement
Exercises

Resolved: That the commencement of procurement exercises for the following
areas be approved:

i. Provision of a food distribution network.

ii. Provision of Extra Care Services at Primrose Gardens.

iii. Provision of Legionella Risk Assessment Services.

iv. Provision of Banking Services.

Change to Debt Management Policy

Resolved: That the removal of the current £1,500 limit on debt that can be passed to
the appointed debt collection agency for collection be approved.

Page 158



Appointment of Trustee — Marsden Heights Educational Foundation

Resolved: That County Councillor Albert Atkinson be appointed to serve as the
council's trustee on the Marsden Heights Educational Foundation.

Tree Safety Management Guidance — Risk Based Inspections

Resolved: That the Tree Safety Management Guidance, as set out in the report, be
approved.

Signing Policy (Tourist and Leisure Destinations)

Resolved: That the policy set out in the report for evaluating applications for tourism
signing, and the provision and ongoing maintenance of any such signing, be
approved.

Proposed Amendments to the Highways and Transport Capital Programmes

Resolved: That the proposed amendments to the Highways and Transport Capital
Programmes be approved.

Road Traffic Regulation Act (Lancashire County Council) (Preston City Centre)
(Revocation and Bus Lanes) Order 201*

Resolved: That the proposals in connection with Fishergate Hill and Church Street
as set out in the report be approved.

Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984
Moss Hey Lane, Mere Brow, West Lancashire Borough, Prohibition of Driving
Order

Resolved: That the Prohibition of Driving Order of the southern arm of Moss Hey
Lane at its junction with the A565 Southport New Road be approved.

Section 106 Highway Works, Church Road, Tarleton

Resolved: That the addition of £22,000 to the externally funded block of the 2018/19
Capital Programme be approved.

Procurement of Services to deliver the Lancashire Careers Hub

Resolved: That:

i. The proposal to waive the procurement rules to allow the county council to
enter into a contract with Inspira Cumbria Ltd (Inspira) for the delivery of the
careers hub service be approved.

i. The Director of Finance and Director of Economic Development and Planning
be authorised to finalise the contractual arrangements and funding principles,
on behalf of the Lancashire Enterprise Partnership and the county council.

Page 159



Awarding of Small Grants to Third Sector Groups which are Registered with
the Children and Family Wellbeing Service, including Grants to Individual
Young People

Resolved: That the recommendations of the District Youth Councils on the
applications for grants from third sector groups which are registered with the
Children and Family Wellbeing Service, as set out in the report, be approved.

Pennine Plan: Improving Health, Care and Well Being in Pennine Lancashire

Resolved: That

The Pennine Plan, as set out in the report, be approved as the blueprint for
health and care transformation in Pennine Lancashire.

Assurance be sought from the Pennine Partnership that in its delivery of the
Pennine Plan it will also take account and ensure delivery of the emerging
priorities of the Lancashire and South Cumbria Integrated Care System.

The future of Lower Ridge, Burnley — Older Person's Residential Care Home

Resolved: That

iv.

The background and rationale for considering the possible closure of Lower
Ridge as set out in the report be noted.

The results of the consultation process conducted between 23 April and 15
July 2018 be noted.

The closure of Lower Ridge Older Person's Residential Care Home, Burnley,
be approved.

The Director of Adult Services be authorised to:

i) Ensure a schedule is drawn up for the home closure, that balances the
need for each individual and their family to have appropriate time to
make decisions against the overall need for the closure process, to be
managed within a timescale that minimises uncertainty for residents,
families and staff affected.

i) Hold any appropriate vacancies within county council operated care
homes in East Lancashire, until current Lower Ridge residents and their
families have had an opportunity to decide to which home they would
prefer to move.

iii) Ensure appropriate delegation of responsibility for officers to exercise
oversight, discretion and flexibility in agreeing fee levels for Lower
Ridge residents who wish to move into independent sector homes.

The county council's proposal to collaborate with local government and NHS
partners to develop Extra Care services for older people in Burnley be
endorsed in response both to the strategic needs of the area and the views of
local people and stakeholders expressed through this consultation.

Housing with Care and Support Strategy 2018-2025

Resolved: That:

The draft Housing with Care and Support Strategy 2018 — 2025, as set out in
the report, be endorsed.

Page 160



ii. The undertaking of consultation with key partners on the draft strategy be
approved.

iii. The Executive Director of Adult Services and Health & Wellbeing, in
consultation with the Cabinet Member for Adult Services and the Cabinet
Member for Health and Wellbeing, be authorised to make any necessary
amendments to the Strategy at the conclusion of the consultation.

Chorley Council Extra Care Scheme — Care and Support Model

Resolved: That the preferred model for the new Chorley Extra Care

Scheme (Primrose Gardens) as set out within the report, including a core weekly
charge of £17.50, be approved.

Appointment of Building Schools for the Future Consultant

Resolved: That the recommendation set out in the report be approved.

Works to Operational Premises

Resolved: That the recommendations set out in the report be approved.
Community Asset Transfers — former Thornton Young People's Centre

Resolved: That the recommendation set out in the report be approved.

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
List of Background Papers

Paper Date Contact/Tel
None
Reason for inclusion in Part Il, if appropriate

N/A

Page 161



Page 162



Agenda ltem 13

Meeting of the Full Council
Meeting to be held on Thursday, 18 October 2018

Report submitted by: Head of Legal and Democratic Services

Electoral Division affected:
None;

Report of an Urgent Key Decision

Contact for further information:
Dave Gorman, Tel: (01772) 534261, Senior Democratic Services Officer,
dave.gorman@lancashire.gov.uk

Executive Summary

It is a requirement of Standing Order C22 that any urgent Key Decisions taken
under the provisions of Standing Order C21, must be reported to Full Council for
information. This report presents details of an urgent Key Decision taken since the
last meeting of Full Council.

Recommendation

That the report of an urgent Key Decision, as now presented, be noted.

Background and Advice

It is a requirement of Standing Order C22 that any urgent Key Decision taken under
the provisions of Standing Order C21, must be reported to Full Council for
information. The following urgent Key Decision has been taken since the last
meeting of Full Council.

The following urgent decision was taken by the Leader of the County Council, on
behalf of Cabinet, on 16 July 2018:

Disposal of Land at Bluebell Way, Preston

The report recommended acceptance of terms for the sale of land at Bluebell Way,
Preston.

Lancashire
Sncadie
Council (Srg:?)?

Page 163



This decision was implemented immediately for the purposes of Standing Order C29
as any delay could have adversely affected the execution of the county council's
responsibilities. The reasons for this were set out in the report.

This decision was taken under Part Il. The full report is not available for publication
as it contains exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule
12A to the Local Government Act, 1972. The report contains information relating to
the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the authority
holding that information). It is considered that in all the circumstances of the case the
public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interests in
disclosing the information.

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
List of Background Papers

Paper Date Contact/Tel
None
Reason for inclusion in Part Il, if appropriate

N/A

Page 164



Agenda ltem 14a

Meeting of the Full Council
Meeting to be held on Thursday, 18 October 2018

Report submitted by: Head of Legal and Democratic Services

Electoral Division affected:
None;

The Audit, Risk and Governance Committee
(Annex 1 refers)

Contact for further information:
Dave Gorman, Tel: (01772) 534261, Senior Democratic Services Officer,
dave.gorman@lancashire.gov.uk

Executive Summary

The report of the Audit, Risk and Governance Committee from its meetings held on
30 July and 28 August 2018 is attached at Annex 1.

The agenda, reports and minutes of the meetings are available to view here.

Members can also contact the officers specified in each report for further information
about each item.

Recommendation

That the report of the Audit, Risk and Governance Committee, as now presented, be
noted.

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
List of Background Papers

Paper Date Contact/Tel
None
Reason for inclusion in Part Il, if appropriate

N/A

Lancashire
Sncadie
Council (Srg:?)?

Page 165


http://council.lancashire.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=728
http://council.lancashire.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=728

Page 166



Annex 1

Meeting of the Full Council - 18 October 2018

Report of the Audit, Risk and Governance Committee meeting held on 30 July
2018

Chair: County Councillor Alan Schofield
Part | (Open to Press and Public)

Approval of the County Council and County Pension Fund Letters of
Representation 2017/18

The Committee considered a report setting out, for approval, the County Council and
Lancashire County Pension Fund Letters of Representation for 2017/18.

Resolved: - That:

(i) The management representation letters set out at Appendices 'A' and 'B', to
the report now presented, and as updated and tabled, be noted;

(i) It be agreed that, as updated and tabled, they be signed by the Chief Financial
Officer and the Chair of the Audit, Risk and Governance Committee prior to
being made available to the external auditor.

External Audit - Lancashire County Council Audit Findings Report 2017/18
The Committee considered a report setting out the findings of the external auditor in
relation to the audit of the 2017/18 statement of accounts of Lancashire County

Council, and the proposed opinion on the accounts and value for money conclusion.

Resolved: - That the adjustments to the financial statements and the other issues
raised by the auditor as set out in the report, now presented, be noted.

External Audit - Lancashire County Pension Fund Audit Findings Report 2017/18
The Committee considered a report setting out the findings of the external auditor in
relation to the audit of the annual accounts of the Lancashire County Pension Fund,
and the proposed opinion on the accounts.

Resolved: - That the report, now presented, be noted.

Internal Audit Progress Report

The Committee considered a report setting out further information to support the

Internal Audit Annual Report considered by the Committee at its meeting on 30 April
2018

Page 167



Resolved: - That the report, now presented, be noted.
Annual Governance Statement 2017/18

The Committee considered a report setting out a revised draft Annual Governance
Statement for publication with the Statement of Accounts for 2017/18.

Resolved: - That the Annual Governance Statement as set out at Appendix 'A' to the
report, now presented, be approved for publication with the 2017/18 Statement of
Accounts.

Approval of the Council's Statement of Accounts 2017/18

The Committee considered a report setting out, for approval, the County Council's
Statement of Accounts for 2017/18.

Resolved: - That:

(i) The Statement of Accounts for 2017/18 as set out in the report, now presented,
together with the changes tabled at the meeting, subject to external audit, be
noted;

(i) Approval of the Statement of Account for 2017/18 be deferred to a further
meeting of the Committee to be held as soon as practically possible after the
completion of the outstanding audit work.

Review of Treasury Management Activity 2017/18

The Committee considered a report setting out a review of the County Council's
treasury management activities in 2017/18.

Resolved: - That the treasury management activities for 2017/18, as set out in the
report, now presented, be noted.

Grant Thornton Fee Letter for Lancashire County Council and Lancashire
County Pension Fund 2018/19

The Committee considered a report setting out details of the planned fees for the audit
work to be undertaken by Grant Thornton in respect of the County Council and the

Lancashire County Pension Fund for 2018/19

Resolved: - That the fees for 2018/19 as set out at Appendix 'A' to the report, now
presented, be approved.

Page 168



Corporate Risk and Opportunity Register Q1

The Committee considered a report setting out an updated (Quarter 1) Risk and
Opportunity Register.

Resolved: - That the report, now presented, be noted.
Chairman's Annual Report 2017/18

The Committee considered a report setting out the Chairman's Annual Report for
2017/18.

Resolved: - That:
(i) The report, now presented, be noted;
(i) The draft knowledge and skills framework set out at Annex 2 to the
Chairman's Annual Report, now presented, be agreed;
(i) A report on delays and overspends on major projects, with specific
reference to the Central Lancashire strategic site, be presented to the
Committee at its next meeting on 29 October 2018.

Committee Work Plan 2018/19

The Committee considered a report setting out details of a work plan for the Committee
for 2018/19.

Resolved: - That the report, now presented, be approved.
Update on the Review of Neighbourhood Wellbeing Initiative Grants

The Committee considered a verbal update from the Director of Corporate Services,
on the review of neighbourhood wellbeing initiative grants.

Resolved: - That the update, now presented, be noted.

CC A Schofield
Chair

Page 169



Report of the Audit, Risk and Governance Committee meeting held on 28 August
2018

Chair: County Councillor Alan Schofield
Part | (Open to Press and Public)
External Audit - Audit Findings Report and Opinion for 2017/18 (Revised)

The Committee considered a report setting out a revised audit findings report and
opinion for 2017/18, detailing the revised and final position following the original report
which was considered and noted by the Committee at its meeting on 30 July 2018.

Resolved: - That the report, now presented, be noted.
Statement of Accounts 2017/18

The Committee considered a report setting out, for approval, the County Council's final
statement of accounts for 2017/18.

Resolved: - That:

(1) The management representation letter set out at Appendix 'A' to the report, now
presented, be signed by the Chief Financial Officer and the Chair of the Audit,
Risk and Governance Committee prior to it being made available to the external
auditor;

(i) Approval be given to the 2017/18 Statement of Accounts, as set out at Appendix
'B' to the report, now presented, for Lancashire County Council and the
Lancashire County Pension Fund.

CC A Schofield
Chair

Page 170



Agenda Iltem 14b

Meeting of the Full Council
Meeting to be held on Thursday, 18 October 2018

Report submitted by: Head of Legal and Democratic Services

Electoral Division affected:
None;

The Employment Committee
(Annex 1 refers)

Contact for further information:
Dave Gorman, Tel: (01772) 534261, Senior Democratic Services Officer,
dave.gorman@lancashire.gov.uk

Executive Summary

The report of the Employment Committee from its meetings held on 11 September
2018 is attached at Annex 1.

The agenda, report and minutes of the meeting are available to view here.

Members can also contact officers specified in each report for further information
about each item.

Recommendation

That the report of the Employment Committee, as now presented, be noted.

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
List of Background Papers

Paper Date Contact/Tel
None
Reason for inclusion in Part Il, if appropriate

N/A

Lancashire
ancasas
Council (Srg:?)?

Page 171


http://council.lancashire.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=710
http://council.lancashire.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=710

Page 172



Annex 1

Meeting of the Full Council - 18 October 2018

Report of the Employment Committee meeting held on 11 September 2018 (first
meeting)
Chair: County Councillor Geoff Driver

Part Il (Not Open to Press and Public)

Shortlisting and Recruitment and Assessment Process for the Post of Executive
Director of Education and Children's Services

(Exempt information as defined in Paragraphs 1, 2 and 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to
the Local Government Act 1972. It was considered that in all the circumstances of the
case the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighed the public interest in
disclosing the information).

The Committee considered a report setting out the proposals for the shortlisting and
recruitment and assessment process for the post of Executive Director of Education
and Children's Services.

Resolved: -

(1) That the shortlist identified by the Committee be invited for interview for the
position of Executive Director of Education and Children's Services on 23
October 2018.

(i) That the recruitment and assessment process include interview questions and
a presentation topic.

(iif)  That the draft presentation topic be approved and, subject to further comments
on the draft interview questions following the meeting, the final questions be
agreed by correspondence prior to the interview date.

(iv)  That, subject to the committee wishing to make an appointment, the Head of
Service for Human Resources be authorised to discuss and agree terms and
conditions with the successful candidate in consultation with the Chair of the
Employment Committee.

Report of the Employment Committee meeting held on 11 September 2018
(second meeting)
Chair: County Councillor Geoff Driver

Part | (Open to Press and Public)

Shared cost salary sacrifice scheme for additional voluntary contributions

The Committee considered a report setting out proposals for the introduction of a
salary sacrifice 'Shared Cost' scheme for the additional voluntary contributions as part
of the Local Government Pension Scheme arrangements.

Page 173



Resolved: -

(1) That the commencement of a salary sacrifice shared cost scheme for additional
voluntary contributions as part of the Local Government Pension Scheme, as
set out in the report, be approved.

(i) That the proposed amendments to the current Lancashire County Council
Discretionary Statement of Policy, as set out at Appendix 'B', to allow for the
implementation of the salary sacrifice shared cost scheme for additional
voluntary contributions, be approved.

(i)  That all existing additional voluntary contribution employees are entered into
the new scheme and all new additional voluntary contributors are automatically
opted-in, with the option for each employee to opt-out, be approved.

Part Il (Not Open to Press and Public)

Shortlisting and Recruitment and Assessment Process for the Post of Chief
Executive and Director of Resources

(Exempt information as defined in Paragraphs 1, 2 and 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to
the Local Government Act 1972. It was considered that in all the circumstances of the
case the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighed the public interest in
disclosing the information).

The Committee considered a report setting out the proposals in relation to the
Council's Shortlisting and Recruitment and Assessment Process for the Post of Chief
Executive and Director of Resources.

Resolved: -

(i) That the recommended shortlist, as set out in the shortlist pack, be invited for
interview for the position of Chief Executive and Director of Resources on 9
October 2018.

(i) That the recruitment and assessment process include interview questions and
a presentation topic.

(i)  That the draft presentation topic be approved and, subject to further comments
on the draft interview questions following the meeting, the final questions be
agreed by correspondence prior to the interview date.

(iv)  That, subject to the committee wishing to make an appointment, the Head of
Service for Human Resources be authorised to discuss and agree terms and
conditions with the successful candidate in consultation with the Chair of the
Employment Committee.

(v)  That the absence of all members of the Committee from the Labour Group be
noted.

Winter Maintenance - Extension of Collective Agreement
(Not for Publication — Exempt information as defined in Paragraphs 3 and 4 of Part 1
of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act, 1972. It is considered that in all the

circumstances of the case the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs
the public interests in disclosing the information)

Page 174



The Committee considered a report on the extension of the collective agreement with
the council's recognised Trade Unions in relation to winter maintenance duties.

Resolved: - That the recommended extension of the previous collective agreement,
as set out at Appendix 'A', be agreed.

Page 175



Page 176



Agenda ltem 14c

Meeting of the Full Council
Meeting to be held on Thursday, 18 October 2018

Report submitted by: Head of Legal and Democratic Services

| Part B |

Electoral Division affected:
None;

The Pension Fund Committee
(Annexes 1 and 2 refer)

Contact for further information:
Mike Neville, Tel: (01772) 533431, Senior Democratic services Officer,
mike.neville@lancashire.gov.uk

Executive Summary

The report of the Pension Fund Committee from its meetings held on 5 July 2018
and 14 September 2018 are attached at Annexes 1 and 2.

The agenda, reports and minutes of the meetings are available to view here.

Members can also contact officers specified in each report for further information
about each item.

Recommendation

That the report of the Pension Fund Committee, as now presented, be noted.

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
List of Background Papers

Paper Date Contact/Tel
None
Reason for inclusion in Part Il, if appropriate

N/A

Lancashire
ancasas
Council (Srg:?)?

Page 177


http://council.lancashire.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=183
http://council.lancashire.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=183

Page 178



Annex 1

Meeting of the Full Council - 18 October 2018

Report of the Pension Fund Committee meeting held on 5th July 2018
Chair: County Councillor Eddie Pope

Part | (Open to Press and Public)

LCPF Pension Administration Strategy Statement

The Head of Fund reported that in accordance with the decision of the Committee
in March 2018 employers within the Fund had been consulted on the revised
Pension Administration Strategy Statement (PASS) which extended the number
of employer and fund performance standards to be measured and introduced
charges to be levied on any scheme employer whose performance fell short of
the employer performance standards.

The Committee was informed that comments received during the consultation
had been addressed and a copy of the latest version of the draft was presented
at Appendix 'A'. However, due to issues with the new operating model for the
pension administration business introduced by the Local Pension Partnership the
revised PASS would not be implemented until later in the year. It was reported
that whilst the issues had resulted in a backlog of cases remedial action had
been taken and priority cases cleared by the end of June and it was anticipated
that the remaining cases would be cleared by the end of July.

Resolved: That the revised Pension Administration Strategy Statement, as set
out at Appendix 'A' to the report presented, is approved for publication later this
year.

LCPF Annual Report for the year ended 31 March 2018

The Committee considered a report on the draft Lancashire County Pension
Fund Annual Report for the year ended 31st March 2018 (which included the
Fund accounts for the same period) and made the following observations:

e The most significant element of investment management costs was fees
based upon the value of the Fund and this was expected to increase year on
year as the value of the Fund increased. With regard to performance fees the
Head of Fund confirmed that the Fund did not pay the Local Pension
Partnership any such fees.

e Transition costs had reduced by £1.7m from the previous year as the majority
of costs associated with the transition of the Infrastructure, Private Equity and
Credit portfolios had been incurred. The Head of Fund reported that further
details would be included in a report to the Committee in September 2018.

e Any reference to a 4.0% return on assets throughout the Annual Report would

be updated to reflect the fact that the return had improved to 4.6% since the
document was produced.

Page 179



In the Infrastructure section of the accounts the reference to "Trad energy'
would be amended to 'Renewable energy'

The figures for current and long term liabilities in the 'Net Asset Statement as
at 31st March 2018' would be amended following advice from the Auditor that
the reduced contribution rates for some employers were not a liability due to
the returns on cash. The Head of Fund confirmed that an explanatory note on
this point would be included in the final document and an update given to the
Committee in September 2018.

Clarification was requested regarding figures in a table in section 1.2 on
Membership which showed that whilst 1 employer had left the Fund the total
membership of the Fund had increased by over 5,000. It was reported that an
explanation for the increase would be included in a further report to the
Committee in September 2018.

It was acknowledged that whilst the Lancashire County Pension Fund was
well run and continued to perform well this was not specified in the Annual
Report and it was suggested that the final version of the Annual Report should
include a comparison of performance against other Funds.

The importance of Committee members having sufficient knowledge and skills to
perform their duties and responsibilities effectively was also discussed and it was
noted that the Training Record for 2017/18 (which covered internal/external
training attended by members of the Committee) had been presented to the last
meeting. It was suggested that the respective political groups be requested to
nominate a pool of alternate members who could attend future internal training to
increase their knowledge of the subject and attend meetings in the event that a
member of the Committee was unavailable.

Resolved:

1.

That the comments of the Committee regarding the Lancashire County
Pension Fund Accounts, as set out above, are taken into consideration
when finalising Accounts for referral to the Audit, Risk and Governance
Committee on the 30t July 2018 for approval.

That, subject to any further minor amendments in relation to 1 above, the
draft Lancashire County Pension Fund Annual Report for the year ended
31st March 2018, as set out at Appendix 'A' to the report presented, is
approved.

That a final version of the Lancashire County Pension Fund Annual Report
for the year ended 31st March 2018 be presented to the full county council
on the 18 October 2018 for approval.

That an update on transition costs, current/long term liabilities and the

membership figures referred to in the Annual Report be presented to the
next meeting.

Page 180



County Councillor E Pope
Chair

Page 181



Page 182



Annex 2

Meeting of the Full Council - 18 October 2018

Report of the Pension Fund Committee meeting held on 14 September 2018
Chair: County Councillor Eddie Pope

Part | (Open to Press and Public)

Lancashire County Pension Fund - External Audit Findings Report

Mr R McGahon, Senior Manager from Grant Thornton, presented a report on the
findings of the external audit of the Pension Fund Accounts for 2017/18 and
informed the meeting that the outstanding items highlighted in the Report had
been finalised and the final unqualified audit opinion issued. It was noted that the
Report had been considered and approved by the Audit, Risk and Governance
Committee on the 30t July 2018.

Resolved: That the findings of the external audit of the Lancashire County
Pension Fund Accounts for 2017/18, as set out in the report presented, are
noted.

Lancashire County Pension Fund - Update on 2017/18 Annual Report

The Head of Fund presented a report regarding amendments which had been
made to the draft Lancashire County Pension Fund Annual Report since its
approval by the Committee on the 5t July 2018.

It was reported that the amendments related to current and long term liabilities
and that explanatory text was added to the final version of the Annual Report in
respect of membership figures. The queries around transition costs and
membership figures raised by the Committee in July were also addressed. The
Committee noted that the amendments referred to in the report had been made
following consultation with the Fund's external auditor.

Resolved:

1. That the amendments to the Lancashire County Pension Fund 2017/18
Annual Report, as specified in the report presented, are noted.

2. That the responses to queries regarding the contents of the Lancashire
County Pension Fund 2017/18 Annual Report, as raised at the meeting on the
5t July 2018 are noted.

Lancashire County Pension Fund - Budget monitoring for the period 1st
April to 30t June 2018

The Head of Fund presented a report which set out the financial results for the

Lancashire County Pension Fund for the period 1st April to 30" June 2018 and
compared those results with the agreed budget for the same period.

Page 183



Resolved: That the variances between the actual and budgeted results for the
period 15t April to 30t June 2018 and the forecast financial results for the year
ending 315t March 2019, as set out in the report presented, are noted.

Responsible Investment

The Head of Fund informed the meeting that she and the Chair had recently been
elected to the Executive of the Local Authority Pension Fund Forum.

The Committee discussed publicising the Fund's current investments in
renewable energy and the Chief Investment Officer and Managing Director
Investments from the Local Pensions Partnership confirmed that he would
provide details of specific activity to the Responsible Investment Working Group
for consideration. During consideration of the report reference was made to the
Transition Pathway Initiative which provided investors with information which they
could use to assess the relative position of investee companies based on how
they planned for and managed the risks associated with the transition to a lower
carbon economy.

Resolved:
1. That the updates set out in the report are noted.
2. That the future use of the Transition Pathway Initiative by Local Pensions

Partnership Investments in relation to the Fund is referred to the
Responsible Investment Working Group for consideration with any
recommendations to be reported to the Committee in November 2018.

3. That the Responsible Investment Working Group consider how the Fund
can best promote investments in renewable energy with any
recommendations to be reported to the Committee in November 2018.

Local Pensions Partnership Annual Report 2017/18

The Head of Fund presented a report on the Local Pensions Partnership Annual
Report for 2017/18 which had been approved by the LPP Board on the 31st July
2018.

In considering the report the Committee acknowledged that the Local Pensions
Partnership Group had made a loss of £2.110m in the year compared to a profit
in 2017 of 3.443m and noted that the situation was expected to be rectified over
the 5 year budget period.

Resolved: That the Local Pensions Partnership Annual Report for 2017/18, as
set out at Appendix 'A' to the report presented, is noted.

Page 184



Feedback from members of the Committee on pension related training,
conferences and events

A report was presented on the attendance by members of the Committee at
various internal/external pension related training events which had taken place
since the last meeting. Both the Chair and County Councillor Schofield provided
feedback regarding their experiences at the LGC Investment Seminar on the 6-7t
September 2018.

The Chair also informed the meeting that Ms Devitt, the Independent Adviser to
the Committee, would attend the pension workshop at 10.00am on the 26t
September 2018 on the macro backdrop for investments and the subsequent
workshop at 2.00pm on the 6" November 2018 would be attended by Mr J
Livesey, the Actuary.

Resolved:
1. That the report and feedback given at the meeting is noted.
2. That the arrangements for the pension workshops on the 26" September

2018 and the 6" November 2018 are noted.
Part Il (Not open to Press and Public)
Pension Administration Update

(Exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the
Local Government Act 1972. It was considered that in all the circumstances of
the case the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighed the public
interest in disclosing the information).

The Director of Strategic Programmes and Group Company Secretary from the
Local Pensions Partnership updated the Committee on the performance of the
Pension Administration Service for the period 15t April to 30t June 2018.

It was reported that following the introduction of a new operating model for the
pension administration service on the 1t April 2018 there had been a backlog of
cases which was anticipated to be cleared by the end of October 2018. The
lessons which had been learned from the experience were discussed and the
Director outlined the actions taken to address the service level failures. It was
also confirmed that during August 2018 the issue of Annual Benefit statements to
Active/Deferred members and the issue of a newsletter to Active members had
been completed in accordance with the Service Level Agreement.

Whilst noting the remedial action which had been taken several members of the
Committee expressed their disappointment at the low level of performance of the
pension administration service and the subsequent impact on individuals. It was
suggested that the Committee receive regular updates outside of the meeting in
order to provide reassurance of the effectiveness of the service stabilisation
measures and other activity outlined in the report.

Page 185



Resolved:

1. That the concerns of the Committee regarding the level of performance of
the pension administration service, as referred to in the report presented,
be noted.

2. That members of the Committee be provided with regular updates ahead

of the next scheduled meeting on 30" November 2018 in order to provide
reassurance of the effectiveness of the service stabilisation measures and
other activity outlined in the report in relation to the pension administration
service.

Local Pensions Partnership Q1 2018/19 report

(Exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the
Local Government Act 1972. It was considered that in all the circumstances of
the case the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighed the public
interest in disclosing the information).

The Director of Strategic Programmes and Group Company Secretary from the
Local Pensions Partnership presented a report on the investment and
administration activity of the Partnership since the last meeting.

It was reported that the addition of a new client from the 1st June 2018 would
increase the total assets under management by Local Pensions Partnership
which had now established 6 out of the 8 pooling vehicles. The Committee noted
that the Minister for Housing Communities and Local Government continued to
support for the progress made in relation to pooling and the Chair suggested that
the Chairman of the Local Pension Partnership be invited to attend a future
meeting to discuss progress.

Resolved:

1. That the updates on investment and administration activity of the Local
Pensions Partnership since the last meeting, as set out in the report, are
noted.

2. That the Chairman of the Local Pensions Partnership Board be invited to

attend a future meeting to discuss progress to date on pooling and future
activity of the Partnership.

Lancashire County Pension Fund Performance Overview June 2018

(Exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the
Local Government Act 1972. It was considered that in all the circumstances of
the case the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighed the public
interest in disclosing the information).

A detailed report on the performance of the Lancashire County Pension Fund
was presented which highlighted key areas to the Committee including the
following:

Page 186



¢ An update on the economic and market backdrop

e The total Fund return as at 30" June 2018

e Updates on the performance of the equity, credit, real estate, infrastructure
and private equity

e Asset allocations

e The funding ratio at 30t June 2018 and

e Details of contributions net of benefits and investment income.

Resolved: That the report and updates on performance presented at the meeting
are noted.

Investment Panel Report

(Exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the
Local Government Act 1972. It was considered that in all the circumstances of
the case the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighed the public
interest in disclosing the information).

The Head of Fund presented a report on matters considered by the Investment
Panel since the last meeting which included an update on the investment and
Market context in which the Lancashire County Pension Fund operated. It was
reported that the Panel had discussed the rate of return on a proposed
development and had recommended a particular base case investment rate
return be applied to the project.

Resolved:
1. That the report of the investment panel is noted.
2. That a base case investment rate of return of 4.7% per annum (based on

an assumed CPI rate of 2% per annum) be applied to the proposed
development referred to in the report presented.

County Councillor E Pope
Chair

Page 187



Page 188



Agenda ltem 14d

Meeting of the Full Council
Meeting to be held on Thursday, 18 October 2018

Report submitted by: Head of Legal and Democratic Services

Electoral Division affected:
None;

The Overview and Scrutiny Committees
(Annexes 1 - 4 refer)

Contact for further information:
Gary Halsall, Tel: (01772) 536989, Senior Democratic Services Officer,
gary.halsall@lancashire.gov.uk

Executive Summary

The most recent cycle of meetings of the Overview and Scrutiny Committees took
place in the period July to September 2018.

The reports of the committees are attached as Annexes 1 to 4 as follows:
Annex 1 - Children's Services Scrutiny Committee

Annex 2 - Education Scrutiny Committee

Annex 3 - Health Scrutiny Committee

Annex 4 - Internal Scrutiny Committee

The agenda, reports and minutes of the meetings are available to view here.

Members can also contact officers specified in each report for further information
about each item.

Recommendation

That the report of the Overview and Scrutiny Committees, as now presented, be
noted.

Lancashire
ancasas
Council (Srg:?)?

Page 189


http://council.lancashire.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
List of Background Papers

Paper Date Contact/Tel
None
Reason for inclusion in Part Il, if appropriate

N/A

Page 190



Annex 1

Meeting of the Full Council - 18 October 2018

Report of the Children's Services Scrutiny Committee meeting held on 4
July 2018

Chair: County Councillor Andrea Kay

The agenda and minutes of the meeting may be viewed on the county
council’s website at the following link:

Children's Services Scrutiny Committee

Contact - for Families with Disabled Children

The report provided a brief overview of Contact, a charity for families with
disabled children which offered support, news and resources for parent carer
forums.

Resolved: That;

i.  The report presented be noted.

ii. A letter be sent from the Chair of the Committee to the Regional
Manager at Contact with a copy to the Department for Education
highlighting the concerns raised on the progress in Lancashire on the
establishment of a Lancashire Parent Carer Forum,

iii.  Anaction plan be drafted on delivery and timescales by Contact, and

iv. A further update on progress from Contact be provided to the
Committee later in the autumn.

SEND Partnership Team - Engagement

The report provided an overview on the progress of the Lancashire SEND
Partnership engagement with parent / carers.

Resolved: That;
i.  The report presented be noted;

ii. Members attend engagement events in their areas and report back to
the Committee.

CC A Kay
Chair

Page 191


http://council.lancashire.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=1260

Page 192



Annex 2

Meeting of the Full Council - 18 October 2018

Report of the Education Scrutiny Committee meeting held on 10 September
2018

Chair: County Councillor Christian Wakeford

The agenda and minutes of the meeting may be viewed on the county council’s
website via the following link:

Education Scrutiny Committee

The Journey of a School Causing Concern and the Impact on Services

The report presented provided an overview of the key services involved in the
situation where there was a school causing concern.

Resolved: That;

i.  The report presented be noted;

i. The Committee agree the formation of a task group looking at school
improvement for schools facing challenges;

iii.  Further consideration be given to potential targeted support from local
councillors with officers for under-subscribed schools or where there were
signs a school may be having difficulties; and

iv. ~ An annual report come to the Education Scrutiny Committee on school
admissions and schools causing concern.

CC C Wakeford
Chair

Page 193


http://council.lancashire.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=181
http://council.lancashire.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=181
http://council.lancashire.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=181
http://council.lancashire.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=181

Page 194



Annex 3

Meeting of the Full Council - 18 October 2018

Report of the Health Scrutiny Committee meetings held on 3 July and 25
September 2018

Chair: County Councillor Peter Britcliffe

The agenda and minutes of the meeting may be viewed on the county council’s
website via the following link:

Health Scrutiny Committee

3 July 2018

Our Health Our Care Programme — Update on the future of acute services in
central Lancashire

The purpose of the report was to provide the Committee with an early opportunity to
consider the emerging model of care and agree the next steps and future
consultation on the future of acute services in central Lancashire.

Resolved: That:

1. The update be noted;

2. Further updates be presented to the Health Scrutiny Committee at its
scheduled meetings in September and November 2018;

3. The importance of all partners working together on prevention and early
intervention form a part of developing the new models of care for acute
services in central Lancashire; and

4. Public information and education be included in the new model of care for
acute services in central Lancashire.

Lancashire Dementia Strategy — Dementia Friendly Lancashire 2018-2023

The Committee received an overview of the opportunities and challenges with
implementing the council's Dementia Strategy.

Resolved: That;
1. The report be noted; and
2. The Cabinet Member for Health and Wellbeing be invited to a future

scheduled meeting of the Health Scrutiny Committee to present on the
development of a housing strategy and the ageing population.

Page 195


http://council.lancashire.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=182

25 September 2018

Our Health Our Care Programme - Update on the future of acute services in
central Lancashire

The report provided a further update on the future of acute services in central
Lancashire detailing a range of options and benefits, emerging concepts and next
steps for the Our Health Our Care programme.

Resolved: That;
1. The report be noted; and

2. An update on the Our Health Our Care programme be presented at a future
scheduled meeting of the Committee.

CC P Britcliffe
Chair

Page 196



Annex 4

Meeting of the Full Council - 18 October 2018

Report of the Internal Scrutiny Committee meetings held on 20 July, 21
August (special meeting) and 21 September 2018

Chair: County Councillor David O'Toole

The agenda and minutes of the meeting may be viewed on the county
council’s website at the following link:

Internal Scrutiny Committee

20 July 2018
Winter Service Plan Update

The report provided an update to the Committee on the 2017/18 winter
season as well as proposed updates to the Highways Winter Service Plan for
the forthcoming season.

Resolved: That;

i.  The content of the report presented be noted.
ii. The task and finish group relating to grit bin assessment and provision
is currently in progress and will report back to the service be noted.
iii.  The treatment intervention level proposal be reviewed by the Grit Bin
task and finish group.
iv.  Legal advice be sought on the gritter tracking system and twitter feed.

Progress Report on Potholes

The Committee was updated on progress with rectifying potholes, the impact
of additional funding and new equipment. The update also covered response
times, repeat visits, the HAMS (Highways Asset Management System) project
and the 'Report It' website.

Resolved: The update report be noted.

Budget Scrutiny Review Panel

The report set out a proposal to establish a Budget Scrutiny Review Panel to
further enhance the scrutiny of budget proposals under consideration by

Cabinet.

Resolved: The Internal Scrutiny Committee approve the establishment of the
Budget Scrutiny Review Panel.

Page 197


http://council.lancashire.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=120

Local Authority Funding and Income Generation Task Group - Initial
Response

The Committee was advised that the report from the task group had been
received and each recommendation had been reviewed and assigned to an
appropriate senior officer at the council. A feasibility study would be carried
out on each of the recommendations to identify the nature and scale of the
opportunity to generate income, as well as the scale of any investment that
might be needed and the timeframe required for implementation. The
outcomes would be reported back to the task group. Where recommendations
were not considered viable opportunities for income generation, details would
be provided as to the reasons why this conclusion had been reached.

Resolved: The verbal update provided be noted.

21 August 2018 (Special meeting)

Call In Request — Update on Preston Youth Zone Operator

On 9 August 2018, Cabinet received and approved recommendations
contained in the update report on Preston Youth Zone Operator.

Following requests from nine County Councillors in accordance with the “Call
In” procedures, the Chair of the Internal Scrutiny Committee had called a

meeting to consider calling in the decision.

Resolved: The Cabinet decision on 9 August 2018 in relation to the update
on the Preston Youth Zone Operator should not be called in.

21 September 2018
Lancashire Parking Services
The report provided an overview of Lancashire parking services provision of
school and village enforcement, the centralisation of permit administration and
the differences of on and off street enforcement.
Resolved: That;
i.  The report presented be noted.
ii. Information on the pilot scheme and any new parking schemes be
circulated to members when available.
iii.  The Lancashire parking services report and presentation be circulated
to all county councillors.

Report of the Grit Bins and Non-Priority Routes Task and Finish Group

The final report of the Grit Bins and Non-Priority Task and Finish Group was
presented.

Resolved: That;

i.  The recommendations of the task and finish group be supported.

Page 198



ii. An additional recommendation on engaging external contractors for
treating secondary routes be added to the report.

iii. Responses from the Cabinet Member for Highways and Transport be
presented to the Internal Scrutiny Committee at an appropriate
scheduled meeting.

Task and Finish Group Request — Education Scrutiny Committee
The report set out a request from the Education Scrutiny Committee for a task
and finish group to be established on schools causing concern — support

arrangements.

Resolved: That the request to establish a task and finish group on schools
causing concern — support arrangements be approved.

CC D O'Toole
Chair

Page 199



Page 200



Agenda ltem 14e

Meeting of the Full Council
Meeting to be held on Thursday, 18 October 2018

Report submitted by: Head of Legal and Democratic Services

Electoral Division affected:
None;

The Lancashire Health and Wellbeing Board
(Annex 1 refers)

Contact for further information:
Sam Gorton, Tel: (01772) 532471, Democratic Services Officer,
sam.gorton@lancashire.gov.uk

Executive Summary

The report of the Lancashire Health and Wellbeing Board from its meeting held on
18 September 2018 is attached at Annex 1.

The agenda, reports and minutes of the meeting are available to view here.

Members can also contact officers specified in each report for further information
about each item.

Recommendation

That the report of the Lancashire Health and Wellbeing Board, as now presented,
be noted.

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
List of Background Papers

Paper Date Contact/Tel
None
Reason for inclusion in Part Il, if appropriate

N/A

Lancashire
ancasas
Council (Srg:?)?

Page 201


http://council.lancashire.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=825

Page 202



Annex 1

Meeting of the Full Council - 18 October 2018

Report of the Lancashire Health and Wellbeing Board meeting held on 18
September 2018

Chair: County Councillor Shaun Turner

The agenda and minutes of the meeting may be viewed on the county council's
website site via the following link:

Lancashire Health and Wellbeing Board

Review of Central Lancashire Plan — Improving Health Care and Wellbeing in
Central Lancashire

An update on the central Lancashire integrated care partnership and acute
sustainability.

Resolved: That the Health and Wellbeing Board:

i) Agreed that a report be brought to a future meeting in the New
Year and that this be added to the forward plan.

Review of Pennine Plan — Improving Health Care and Wellbeing in Pennine
Lancashire

Summary of how the proposals for improving health, care and wellbeing across
Pennine Lancashire had been developed.

Resolved: That the Health and Wellbeing Board:

i) Approved the Pennine Plan as the blueprint for health and care
transformation in Pennine Lancashire.

ii) Sought assurance from the Pennine Partnership that in its delivery
of the Pennine Plan it would also take account and ensure delivery
of the emerging priorities of the Lancashire and South Cumbria
Integrated Care System.

iii) Agreed any further requirements, aspirations or expectations that
should be communicated on behalf of the Lancashire Health and
Wellbeing Board in relation to the future development of the Pennine
Partnership and the delivery of the Pennine Plan.

Page 203


http://council.lancashire.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=825

Lancashire Adult Learning — Opportunities for Collaboration and Partnership
to Support Health and Wellbeing Strategies in Lancashire

Overview of what Lancashire Adult Learning was and what it provided in line with the
three programmes of work in the Lancashire Health and Wellbeing Strategy, the
seven health behaviours as identified in the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment and
working in partnership with Lancashire County Council's Public Health Team and the
NHS.

Resolved: That the Health and Wellbeing Board:

i) Raised awareness of Lancashire Adult Learning and its curriculum
offer within Lancashire County Council and Public Health in order to
identify opportunities for collaboration and partnership.

i) Made recommendations to Clinical Commissioning Groups and
locality managers to identify opportunities for Lancashire Adult
Learning to support and contribute to health initiatives within districts
and localities.

iii) Supported Lancashire Adult Learning to ensure that the learning offer
was directly linked to Lancashire’s strategies to support adults.

Better Care Fund (BCF) and Active Ageing Alliance

Summary of the Integration and Better Care Fund Guidance 2017/19 which sets out
the continuing role for the Better Care Fund and confirmed the ongoing conditions
and requirements that varied little from those set out at the creation of the current
Lancashire better care fund plan in September 2017. Also, an overview of the Active
Ageing Alliance model.

Resolved: That the Health and Wellbeing Board:

i) Noted the guidance and its implications for the Lancashire BCF and
Health and Wellbeing Board.

i) Approved the revisions to the BCF/iBCF plan, for 2018/19, as set out
in Appendix B.

iii) Approved the maintenance of the BCF metrics for Non Elective
Admissions, Residential and Nursing Home Admissions and
reablement at the original 2017/19 plan levels.

iv) Noted the expected performance for Delayed Transfers of Care for
2018/19.

v) Noted the success of joint working across health and social care in
significantly improving DToC performance and enabling the
expectations to be met.

vi) Requested that the Better Care Fund Steering Group review the
Active Ageing Alliance model, consider its inclusion as part of the
wider Better Care Fund spending proposals for 2019/2020 onwards,
to be agreed at a future Health and Wellbeing Board meeting.

vii) Requested that the readmission rate figures were included in the
report for future meetings.

Page 204



viii)Agreed to include Residential Care on the forward plan as a future
item.

Mental Health and Wellbeing — Time to Change Hub

Outlining the proposed approach for developing a Time to Change Hub in Lancashire.

Resolved:

That the Health and Wellbeing Board:

i) Endorsed an application and acknowledged the external funding
stream associated with this, to become the Host for the Lancashire
Time to Change Hub and support the Time to Change social
movement to end the stigma and discrimination experienced by
people with mental health problems

i) Agreed to oversee the local Hub Partnership and uphold the
responsibilities of the Host as described

iii) Nominated and endorsed the organisation proposed to fulfil the role
of the Hub Co-ordinator

iv) Delegated the responsibility for submitting the application to the
Chair of Lancashire Health and Wellbeing Board, in consultation with
the Director of Public Health and Wellbeing.

Lancashire Special Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND) Partnership —
Update on the Implementation of the Written Statement of Action

Summary of progress on the immediate priorities for action and the implementation of
these actions since the last update received in July 2018.

Resolved:

That the Health and Wellbeing Board:

i) Noted the progress of delivery on the written statement of action.

i) Received an update on progress at the November Board meeting.

iii) Noted that Adrian Leather, would link in with John Readman and Sian
Rees with regards engagement and wider partners.

Lancashire Safeguarding Boards Annual Report 2017/18

Overview of the points of progress and highlights with the reports specifically for the
Health and Wellbeing Board.

Resolved:

That the Health and Wellbeing Board:

i) Noted the contents of the report.

i) Commented on any key issues and consider the implications for the
conduct of business.

iii) Louise Taylor and John Readman to report back at a future meeting
on the key issues from the report and what the Lancashire

Page 205



Safeguarding Adults Board and Lancashire Safeguarding Children
Board were doing with regards those issues.

Role of Lancashire Fire and Rescue Service on the Board
Summary of Lancashire Fire and Rescue Service progress to date, and to explore
further opportunities for the Service to work in partnership going forward.
Resolved: That the Health and Wellbeing Board:
i) Noted the preventative work which Lancashire Fire and Rescue
Service currently undertake.
i) Explored [where appropriate] opportunities for Lancashire Fire and

Rescue, to undertake preventative work, in partnership, aimed at
improving health and wellbeing outcomes across Lancashire.

CC S Turner
Chair

Page 206



Agenda ltem 15

Meeting of the Full Council
Meeting to be held on Thursday, 18 October 2018

Report submitted by: Head of Legal and Democratic Services

Electoral Division affected:
None;

Report of the Lancashire Combined Fire Authority
(Annex 1 refers)

Contact for further information:
Diane Brooks, Tel: (01772) 534261, Lancashire Fire and Rescue Service,
dianebrooks@lancsfirerescue.org.uk

Executive Summary

Annex 1 sets out a summary report of the Lancashire Combined Fire Authority
following its meeting on 17 September 2018. This is now presented to the Full
Council for information.

Recommendation

That the report of the Lancashire Combined Fire Authority, as now presented, be
noted.

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
List of Background Papers

Paper Date Contact/Tel
None
Reason for inclusion in Part Il, if appropriate

N/A

Lancashire
ancasas
Council (Srg:?)?

Page 207



Page 208



Annex 1

REPORT OF THE LANCASHIRE COMBINED FIRE AUTHORITY (CFA)
17 SEPTEMBER 2018

1. HER MAJESTY'S INSPECTORATE OF CONSTABULARY, FIRE AND RESCUE
SERVICES (HMICFRS) PROGRESS TOWARDS INSPECTION - UPDATE BRIEFING 3

Members received an update following the recent inspection by Her Majesty’s Inspectorate
of Constabulary, Fire and Rescue Services (HMICFRS). The inspection took place during
the week 9t — 13" July 2018 with the HMICFRS team speaking to staff, selected partner
agencies, representative bodies, the Executive Board and the Chairman. This was
facilitated during the Winter Hill deployment and was managed through staff flexibility. A
strategic brief took place at the end of the inspection week and feedback was received on
the very positive culture that was found within Lancashire Fire and Rescue Service (LFRS),
the ‘can do attitude’ of staff and that the Service’s values were committed to ‘making
Lancashire safer. A second data request was received and returned to HMICFRS on
14 July 2018. A HMICFRS staff survey had been received which asked staff their opinion
on working for LFRS. This had been circulated for staff for completion by 30 September
2018.

Information had recently been received from HMICFRS advising that fieldwork for services
in tranche one had now been completed and HMICFRS was currently analysing the
evidence and drafting service reports. These would be shared on a confidential basis with
each Service in late October to check for factual accuracies before publication in early
December. The findings of which would be discussed at the next Authority meeting.

2. COLLABORATION UPDATE

Members received a report which gave an overview of the collaboration since the last
meeting in June 2018. Only one Fire Authority (Essex) had adopted a Police and Crime
Commissioner (PCC) governance model but there had been a further 6 business cases
going forward which were the subject of 3 Judicial Review applications. Hertfordshire had
discontinued their change to a PCC governance model in favour of collaboration between
the PCC and the Local Authority and potentially co-location of premises.

With regard to Lancashire, the sequence of events had been that on 25 July 2018 at Service
Headquarters the Chairman, Vice-Chairman, the Leader of the Opposition and Clerk had
met with the PCC and his consultant and had been well prepared to challenge the proposal.
Shortly after commencing a presentation it became clear that the PCC no longer wanted to
pursue taking over the Combined Fire Authority’s governance responsibilities but hoped that
closer collaboration could be used to achieve common goals for both services.

Having received a letter from the PCC dated 27 July there was growing concern that the
proposal made was done so with more conditions than first apparent. The Authority
responded on 30 July 2018 and subsequently to seek clarification on a) whether the
Commissioner was withdrawing plans to continue with the Business Case; and b) what the
new collaboration regime would look like. In one subsequent response the Commissioner
stated that ‘collaboration was not enough’ which led to some further concern. The latest
response was sent from the Authority on 30 August 2018 and a further response was
awaited. Until a response was received LFRS would continue with its well established
collaboration activities and would continue to look for further areas of development.

Page 209



3. ANNUAL SERVICE REPORT

Members viewed the Annual Service Report which had been prepared as a video.
Alongside the video was a supporting document which had also been produced and in order
to encourage a wider audience and engagement this was accessible to all members of staff
on the intranet and would be available to the public on the LFRS website.
https://www.lancsfirerescue.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2018/09/Annual-Service-Report-

2017-18.pdf

4. COMMUNITY FIRE SAFETY REPORTS

As part of the report members received a presentation by Assistant Chief Fire Officer, David
Russel on the Service’s response to Winter Hill.

Following the presentation Members asked that the Authority’s thanks be passed onto all
those involved during the Winter Hill major incident, including our partner agencies. The
Chief Fire Officer confirmed that the Service had organised a Winter Hill “Thank-You’ event
for all the partner agencies involved on 25 September 2018 to recognise their contribution
and the assistance they provided during the incident. The Fire Minister and others from
central government had also been complimentary about the level of hard work involved in
the incident. Members expressed that they had been encouraged by the hard work and
resilience of the Service and would welcome the opportunity for the video to be circulated to
a wider audience which  would include organisations and  schools.
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=qUoDFo_puXE&feature=youtu.be

5. RE-APPOINTMENT OF CLERK TO THE AUTHORITY
The Authority approved the re-appointment of Mr Mark Nolan as Clerk and Monitoring

Officer to the Lancashire Combined Fire Authority for a period of twelve months, to the
September meeting of the Authority in 2019.

FRANK DE MOLFETTA LFRS
Chairman Fulwood

Page 210


https://www.lancsfirerescue.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2018/09/Annual-Service-Report-2017-18.pdf
https://www.lancsfirerescue.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2018/09/Annual-Service-Report-2017-18.pdf
https://www.lancsfirerescue.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2018/09/Annual-Service-Report-2017-18.pdf
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=qUoDFo_puXE&feature=youtu.be

Agenda ltem 16

Notices of Motion submitted under Standing Order B36
1. By County Councillor Nikki Hennessy
That this Council:

(i) Will support and sign the Cooperative Party Charter Against Modern Slavery which
sets out the following commitments:

e Train its corporate procurement team to understand modern slavery through
the Chartered Institute of Procurement and Supply’s (CIPS) online course
on Ethical Procurement and Supply.

e Require its contractors to comply fully with the Modern Slavery Act 2015,
wherever it applies, with contract termination as a potential sanction for non-
compliance.

e Challenge any abnormally low-cost tenders to ensure they do not rely upon
the potential contractor practising modern slavery.

e Highlight to its suppliers that contracted workers are free to join a trade union
and are not to be treated unfairly for belonging to one.

e Publicise its whistle-blowing system for staff to blow the whistle on any
suspected examples of modern slavery.

e Require its tendered contractors to adopt a whistle-blowing policy which
enables their staff to blow the whistle on any suspected examples of modern
slavery.

e Review its contractual spending regularly to identify any potential issues
with modern slavery.

e Highlight for its suppliers any risks identified concerning modern slavery and
refer them to the relevant agencies to be addressed.

e Refer for investigation via the National Crime Agency’s national referral
mechanism any of its contractors identified as a cause for concern regarding
modern slavery.

e Report publicly on the implementation of this policy annually.

(ii) Will promote awareness of Modern Day Slavery amongst our residents and work
with officers to support survivors.

2. By County Councillor Kim Snape

Lancashire County Council notes the consultation due to be launched by Our Health Our
Care regarding the future of Accident & Emergency services in the Chorley, South Ribble and
Preston areas. The Council strongly opposes any proposal for a single site Accident &
Emergency at either Preston or Chorley & South Ribble Hospital. The Council believes such
a proposal would have a detrimental impact on the quality of local health care for the local
population and that Chorley & South Ribble Hospital along with Preston Hospital both need
a 24 hour Accident & Emergency department.

Page 211



3. By County Councillor Nikki Hennessy

Council welcomes the recent commitment by the Scottish Government and the Private
Members Bill by Monica Lennon MSP to tackle period poverty through the free provision of
sanitary products in educational establishments and notes that Scotland is one of the first
countries in the world to tackle 'period poverty' through a pilot scheme in Aberdeen.

Council recognises however that whilst many women and girls will benefit from this, others in
vulnerable situations, may not.

Lancashire County Council therefore instructs the Director of Public Health to consult with
women and girls, to develop and implement an action plan to introduce free sanitary products,
including menstrual cups, in schools in Lancashire and to scope out extending access to
others.

4. By County Councillor Gina Dowding

Council notes:

The Joint Lancashire Minerals and Waste Local Plan is currently under review.

Council believes:

That in light of the controversial processes currently underway within the County for

exploration and appraisal, and ultimately production of unconventional hydrocarbons, it is

imperative that the Minerals and Waste Local Plan includes criteria for the production of

hydrocarbons within the plan.

Council resolves:

As part of the review:

- To instruct officers to include a section in the Minerals and Waste Local Plan on criteria
related to the production of hydrocarbons.

- Toinclude a criterion for production of hydrocarbons which takes into account the growing
need for action on reducing carbon emissions.

This is in line with ongoing UK government commitments in the 2008 Climate Change Act

and as signatories to the COP21 Paris Agreement. National Planning Policy Framework

(NPPF) and National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) support a move to a low carbon

future and NPPG provides examples of where hydrocarbon extraction proposals can

integrate mitigation measures.

5. By County Councillor Gina Dowding

Council notes that two years have passed since the EU Referendum and little concrete

progress has been made in negotiating the terms of the United Kingdom’s withdrawal from
the EU.

Page 212



Lancashire County Council:

- Recognises the significant support it has received through EU funding over many
years.

- Notes the reports from 1 August highlighting the serious concerns local authorities
have over delivery of public services post-Brexit.

- Notes the reported difficulties experienced by Lancashire NHS Trusts in recruiting
adequate numbers of professionally qualified staff as well as difficulties experienced
by the care sector in maintaining a sufficient workforce of care staff.

- Recognises the mounting popular concern at the prospect of leaving the EU with either
a bad deal or no deal at all.

- Understands that the EU Withdrawal Bill threatens the rights of citizens as well as
environmental protections, which could have a negative impact on the quality of life of
Lancashire's residents.

- Shares the anxiety of EU citizens living in the County who feel unwelcome in the place
they have made home, and uncertain about their future.

- Notes that many councils have adopted a motion supporting the calls for a People’s
Vote on the final Brexit Deal.

- Notes that The People’s Vote campaign has worked hard to successfully develop
cross-party support at the highest level, with signatories from MPs of the Conservative
Party, the Green Party, the Labour Party and the Liberal Democrat Party.

- Notes that many local authority areas have already produced Brexit Impact studies.

Accordingly, Lancashire County Council resolves to:
- Conduct and publish without delay a Brexit Impact study for Lancashire.

- Write to Lancashire's MPs to ask them to support a People’s Vote in the interests of
the residents, businesses and the public sector in the County.

Page 213



Page 214



	Agenda
	3 Question Time
	4 Confirmation of the Minutes from the Meeting held on 19 July 2018
	5 Report of the Employment Committee - Appointment of Chief Executive and Director of Resources
	6 Policy Position on the Future Provision of Halal Meat
	Appendix A
	Appendix A - Annex 1
	Appendix A - Annex 2
	Appendix A - Annex 3
	Briefing 11- 48 September 2011
	To APSE catering and main contacts throughout the UK.
	Rob Bailey
	Principal Advisor

	Appendix B
	Appendix C

	7 Changes to Financial Regulations
	Appendix A

	8 Report by the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman on the Blue Badge Service - 20 August 2018
	Appendix A

	9 Rural Services Network - Appointment of County Council Representative
	10 Lancashire County Council Timetable of Meetings 2019/20
	Appendix A

	12 Report of the Cabinet (Part B)
	13 Report of an Urgent Key Decision
	14a The Audit, Risk and Governance Committee
	Annex 1

	14b The Employment Committee
	Annex 1

	14c The Pension Fund Committee
	Annex 1
	Annex 2

	14d The Overview and Scrutiny Committees
	Annex 1
	Annex 2
	Annex 3
	Annex 4

	14e The Lancashire Health and Wellbeing Board
	Annex 1

	15 Report of the Lancashire Combined Fire Authority
	Annex 1

	16 To consider the Notices of Motion submitted under Standing Order B36



